
Table of Contents

Agenda 6
Presentation of the Building Officials Association of Texas
Award for Excellence in Code Enforcement

Staff memo 11
Blank page 12

Consider approval of the minutes from the Tuesday, September
6, 2016 regular city council meeting, and take any action
necessary.

Minutes 9-6-16 13
Blank Page 28

Consider approval of the 16-inch Water line Relocation FM 3097
(Horizon Road) and authorize the City Manager to execute a
contract with  Four Star Excavating, Inc. of Dallas, Texas in the
amount of $80,916 to be reimbursed by TxDOT up to 90% and
the remainder to be funded by the 2016 Water & Sewer Bonds,
and take any action necessary.

Memo 29
Recommendation Letter 30
Bid Tabulation 31
Qualifications 32
Form 1295 46
blank page 47

P2016-038 - Consider a request by Billy & Autumn Quinton for
the approval of a final plat of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Autumn
Addition being a replat of a 0.35-acre tract of land identified as
Lot 120, Block F of the B. F. Boydstun Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 7 (SF-
7) District, addressed as 601 E. Rusk Street, and take any
action necessary.

P2016-038 48
blank page 54

P2016-039 - Consider a request by Jay Maddox of Maddox
Survey on behalf of Casey & Andrea Burke for the approval of a
final plat of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Burke Addition being a 2.970-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 19 of the D. Atkins Survey,
Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Single Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the
Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1406 Ridge Road,
and take any action necessary.

P2016-039 55
blank page 60

1
1



Z2016-026 - Consider a request by Jason Lentz of Atticus
Rockwall, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a PD
Development Plan establishing 36 townhouses on a 3.462-acre
portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land identified as Lots 3A,
4A & 5A, Isaac Brown Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-
32), situated within the Residential Subdistrict and within the
Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, located north of the intersection
of Ridge Road [FM-740] and Glen Hill Way, and take any action
necessary (2nd Reading).

Ord_2nd reading 61
Blank Page 69

Consider approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 18. Fire
Prevention and Protection, Article II. Fire Code Standards,
Section 18-34. Plan Review Fee, authorizing the Office of the
Fire Marshal to assess fees for fire permits, construction and
operational services, inspections, third party reviews, and
miscellaneous fees, and take any action necessary.  (2nd
reading)

Ord 2nd reading (fire plan fees) 70
Blank Page 74

Consider approval of the engineering services contract with
Hydrological Support Services, LLC to perform flood study
reviews for developments within the City in an amount not to
exceed $40,000. Funding provided from the FY 2016-17
Engineering Department Operations Budget and developer
reimbursement and take any action necessary

City Manager Memo 75
Professional Services Contract 76
blank page 87

Consider approval of one year renewal of Yellowjacket Ball
fields Facility Use Agreement between Lake Pointe Church and
The City and take any necessary.

Memo 88
Lake Pointe Request Letter 89
Lake Pointe Agreement 90
blank page 100

Z2016-023 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by Kevin Dale Wommack & Pamela McCollum for the
approval of an ordinance amending Specific Use Permit (SUP)
No. S-118 [Ordinance No. 14-02] to allow for an accessory
building that exceeds the maximum size requirements as
stipulated by Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified
Development Code for a 1.4952-acre tract of land identified as
Lot 17, Block B, Sterling Farms Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-
1.5) District, addressed as 1970 Copper Ridge Circle, and take
any action necessary (1st Reading).

Z2016-023 101
blank page 116

2
2



Z2016-025 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by Jason Lentz of Atticus Rockwall, LLC for the
approval of an ordinance for a PD Development Plan
establishing a 228 unit, condo development situated on a 3.453-
acre portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land identified as Lots
3A, 4A & 5A, Isaac Brown Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-
32), situated within the Interior Subdistrict, located adjacent to
Summer Lee Drive southwest of the intersection of Horizon
Road [FM-3097] and Summer Lee Drive, and take any action
necessary (1st Reading).

Z2016-025 117
blank page 129

Z2016-028 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by Susan Gamez for the approval of an ordinance for a
zoning change from an Agricultural (AG) District to Residential
Office (RO) District on a 0.478-acre tract of land identified as
Tract 7 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District,
situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as
2001 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Z2016-028 130
blank page 149

Z2016-029 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by Jimmy Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer Architects on
behalf of D. W. Bobst of J-BR2, LLC for the approval of an
ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a retail store
with more than 2 gasoline dispensers on a 2.59-acre tract of
land being a portion of a larger 7.32-acre tract of land identified
as Tract 17-12 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail
(GR) District, situated at the southwest corner of the intersection
of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] and FM-549, and take any action
necessary (1st Reading).

Z2016-029 150
blank page 171

Discuss and consider the City of Rockwall's participation in a
Back the Blue event to be held on October 27, 2016 and take
any action necessary.

Memo re Mobile Restroom Trailer for Back the Blue
Event 172
blank page 173

SP2016-016 - Discuss and consider a request by Tim Seymore
of Seymore Custom Homes, LLC on behalf of James & Robin
Meade for the approval of an exception to the masonry
requirements and a variance to the parking standards as
stipulated by the Unified Development Code in conjunction with
an approved site plan for a commercial/industrial building on an
existing 2.02-acre commercial/industrial facility identified as
Tract 2-22 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128, City
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial
(HC) District, addressed as 496 National Drive, and take any
action necessary.

SP2016-016 174
blank page 198

3
3



SP2016-017 - Discuss and consider a request by Rex Walker of
Life Springs Church for the approval of a variance to the
horizontal articulation requirements in conjunction with an
amended site plan for a church facility on a seven (7) acre
portion of a larger 28.881-acre tract of land identified as Tract
15-01 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG)
District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Corridor Overlay
(SH 205 BY-OV) District, located on the north side of John King
Boulevard east of the intersection of John King Boulevard and
SH-205, and take any action necessary.

SP2016-017 199
blank page 210

Discuss and consider a request from Suntex RHCL Marina to
Assign the Concession Agreement for the marina at Chandlers
Landing to Ray Hubbard SMI, LLC and take any action
necessary

Memo re Consent to Assign Suntex RHCL Marina to
Ray Hubbard SMI 211
DOCS1-#245089-v1-
Suntex_Rockwall_(Consent_to_Assignment) 212
blank page 214

Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Economic
Development Corporation (REDC) budget for fiscal year 2017
and amended budget for fiscal year 2016, and take any action
necessary.

REDC staff memo 215
REDC budget worksheets 216
blank page 223

Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Technology Park
Association budget for fiscal year 2017 and amended budget for
fiscal year 2016, and take any action necessary.

RTPA staff memo 224
RTPA budget worksheets 225
blank page 230

Discuss and consider the Hotel Tax Subcommittee
recommendations for  funding allocations in fiscal year 2017,
including authorizing the City Manager to execute associated
funding agreements, and take any action necessary.

Subcommittee Memo 231
Subcommittee recommendations spreadsheet 232
blank page 233

Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance amending the
budget for fiscal year 2016, and take any action necessary.

Staff memo 234
Amending Ordinance 235
blank page 236

Discuss and consider the proposed budget for fiscal year 2017
and approval of an ordinance adopting the proposed budget,
and take any action necessary.

Staff memo 237

4
4



Adopting Ordinance 238
General Fund worksheets 239
blank page 244

Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance levying ad
valorem taxes for the tax year 2016, and take any action
necessary.

Staff memo 245
Tax rate ordinance 246
blank page 248

Discuss and consider appointments to the city's Youth Advisory
Council (YAC) for the 2016-17 school year, and take any action
necessary.

Memo_YAC appt. recommendations 249
Blank Page 250

Discuss and consider an amendment to the Fixed Base
Operator / Airport Management Agreement with Todd Parks of
Texas Air Center and take any necessary action.

FBO Amendment 251
Original Contract 254
blank page 307

5
5



AGENDA 
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, September 19, 2016 
5:00 p.m.  Regular City Council Meeting 

City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, Texas 75087 

I. CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER 

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION.

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT 
CODE: 

1. Discussion regarding the lease of land in the vicinity of the downtown
area pursuant to  Section §551.072 (Real Property)

2. Discussion regarding the status of ambulance services contract pursuant
to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

3. Discussion regarding terms and conditions of Zanata’s Restaurant
Agreement pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

4. Discussion regarding Primary Media failure to comply with court order in
City of Rockwall v. Primary Media pursuant to Section §551.071
(Consultation with Attorney)

III. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION

6
6



AGENDA 
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL 
Monday, September 19, 2016 

6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 
City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, Texas 75087 

IV. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING

V. TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

VI. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – COUNCILMEMBER MILDER

VII. PROCLAMATIONS / AWARDS

1. Presentation of the Building Officials Association of Texas Award for Excellence
in Code Enforcement

VIII. OPEN FORUM

IX. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the Tuesday, September 6, 2016
regular city council meeting, and take any action necessary.

2. Consider approval of the 16-inch Water line Relocation FM 3097 (Horizon
Road) and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with  Four
Star Excavating, Inc. of Dallas, Texas in the amount of $80,916 to be
reimbursed by TxDOT up to 90% and the remainder to be funded by the
2016 Water & Sewer Bonds, and take any action necessary.

3. P2016-038 - Consider a request by Billy & Autumn Quinton for the
approval of a final plat of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Autumn Addition being a
replat of a 0.35-acre tract of land identified as Lot 120, Block F of the B.
F. Boydstun Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Single Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 601 E. Rusk Street, and
take any action necessary.

4. P2016-039 - Consider a request by Jay Maddox of Maddox Survey on
behalf of Casey & Andrea Burke for the approval of a final plat of Lots 1 &
2, Block A, Burke Addition being a 2.970-acre tract of land identified as
Tract 19 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 10 (SF-10) District,
situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1406
Ridge Road, and take any action necessary.

5. Z2016-026 - Consider a request by Jason Lentz of Atticus Rockwall, LLC
for the approval of an ordinance for a PD Development Plan establishing
36 townhouses on a 3.462-acre portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land
identified as Lots 3A, 4A & 5A, Isaac Brown Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-
32), situated within the Residential Subdistrict and within the Scenic
Overlay (SOV) District, located north of the intersection of Ridge Road

7
7

p. 29

p. 13

p. 48

p. 55

p. 61

p. 11



[FM-740] and Glen Hill Way, and take any action necessary (2nd 
Reading). 

6. Consider approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 18. Fire
Prevention and Protection, Article II. Fire Code Standards, Section 18-34.
Plan Review Fee, authorizing the Office of the Fire Marshal to assess
fees for fire permits, construction and operational services, inspections,
third party reviews, and miscellaneous fees, and take any action
necessary.  (2nd reading)

7. Consider approval of the engineering services contract with Hydrological
Support Services, LLC to perform flood study reviews for developments
within the City in an amount not to exceed $40,000. Funding provided
from the FY 2016-17 Engineering Department Operations Budget and
developer reimbursement and take any action necessary

8. Consider approval of one year renewal of Yellowjacket Ball fields Facility
Use Agreement between Lake Pointe Church and The City and take any
necessary.

X. APPOINTMENTS 

1. Appointment with the Planning and Zoning Chairman to discuss and
answer any questions regarding cases on the agenda and related issues
and take any action necessary.

XI. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

1. Z2016-023 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by
Kevin Dale Wommack & Pamela McCollum for the approval of an
ordinance amending Specific Use Permit (SUP) No. S-118 [Ordinance
No. 14-02] to allow for an accessory building that exceeds the maximum
size requirements as stipulated by Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the
Unified Development Code for a 1.4952-acre tract of land identified as Lot
17, Block B, Sterling Farms Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District, addressed as
1970 Copper Ridge Circle, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

2. Z2016-025 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by
Jason Lentz of Atticus Rockwall, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for
a PD Development Plan establishing a 228 unit, condo development
situated on a 3.453-acre portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land
identified as Lots 3A, 4A & 5A, Isaac Brown Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-
32), situated within the Interior Subdistrict, located adjacent to Summer
Lee Drive southwest of the intersection of Horizon Road [FM-3097] and
Summer Lee Drive, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

3. Z2016-028 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by
Susan Gamez for the approval of an ordinance for a zoning change from
an Agricultural (AG) District to Residential Office (RO) District on a 0.478-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 7 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract

8
8

p. 70

p. 75

p. 88

p. 101

p. 117

p. 130



No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) 
District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 
2001 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

4. Z2016-029 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by
Jimmy Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer Architects on behalf of D. W. Bobst of
J-BR2, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit
(SUP) to allow a retail store with more than 2 gasoline dispensers on a
2.59-acre tract of land being a portion of a larger 7.32-acre tract of land
identified as Tract 17-12 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail (GR) District,
situated at the southwest corner of the intersection of SH-205 [S. Goliad
Street] and FM-549, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

XII. ACTION ITEMS

1. Discuss and consider the City of Rockwall's participation in a Back the
Blue event to be held on October 27, 2016 and take any action
necessary.

2. SP2016-016 - Discuss and consider a request by Tim Seymore of
Seymore Custom Homes, LLC on behalf of James & Robin Meade for the
approval of an exception to the masonry requirements and a variance to
the parking standards as stipulated by the Unified Development Code in
conjunction with an approved site plan for a commercial/industrial building
on an existing 2.02-acre commercial/industrial facility identified as Tract
2-22 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) District,
addressed as 496 National Drive, and take any action necessary.

3. SP2016-017 - Discuss and consider a request by Rex Walker of Life
Springs Church for the approval of a variance to the horizontal articulation
requirements in conjunction with an amended site plan for a church
facility on a seven (7) acre portion of a larger 28.881-acre tract of land
identified as Tract 15-01 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG)
District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Corridor Overlay (SH 205
BY-OV) District, located on the north side of John King Boulevard east of
the intersection of John King Boulevard and SH-205, and take any action
necessary.

4. Discuss and consider a request from Suntex RHCL Marina to Assign the
Concession Agreement for the marina at Chandlers Landing to Ray
Hubbard SMI, LLC and take any action necessary

5. Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Economic Development
Corporation (REDC) budget for fiscal year 2017 and amended budget for
fiscal year 2016, and take any action necessary.

6. Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Technology Park
Association budget for fiscal year 2017 and amended budget for fiscal
year 2016, and take any action necessary.

9
9

p. 150

p. 172

p. 174

p. 199

p. 211

p. 215

p. 224



7. Discuss and consider the Hotel Tax Subcommittee recommendations for
funding allocations in fiscal year 2017, including authorizing the City
Manager to execute associated funding agreements, and take any action
necessary.

8. Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance amending the budget for
fiscal year 2016, and take any action necessary.

9. Discuss and consider the proposed budget for fiscal year 2017 and
approval of an ordinance adopting the proposed budget, and take any
action necessary.

10. Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance levying ad valorem taxes
for the tax year 2016, and take any action necessary.

11. Discuss and consider appointments to the city's Youth Advisory Council
(YAC) for the 2016-17 school year, and take any action necessary.

12. Discuss and consider an amendment to the Fixed Base Operator / Airport
Management Agreement with Todd Parks of Texas Air Center and take
any necessary action.

XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT
CODE:
1. Discussion regarding the lease of land in the vicinity of the downtown

area pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property)
2. Discussion regarding the status of ambulance services contract pursuant

to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)
3. Discussion regarding terms and conditions of Zanata’s Restaurant

Agreement pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)
4. Discussion regarding Primary Media failure to comply with court order in

City of Rockwall v. Primary Media pursuant to Section §551.071
(Consultation with Attorney)

XIV. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

XV. ADJOURNMENT

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available.  Request for accommodations or 
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting.  Please contact the City Secretary’s Office at (972) 
771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for further information. 
The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time to discuss any of 
the matters listed on the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code § 551.071 (Consultation with 
Attorney) § 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property) § 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and § 551.086 (Economic 
Development) 
I, Kristy Cole, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby certify that this Agenda was posted at City 
Hall, in a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 16th day of September, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 
and remained so posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

_____________________________________ _________________________ 
Kristy Cole, City Secretary Date Removed 

10
10

p. 231

p. 234

p. 237

p. 245

p. 251

p. 249



MEMORANDUM  

TO:  Mayor Pruitt and Council members 

FROM:  Rick Crowley, City Manager    

DATE: September 16, 2016 

SUBJECT:  BOAT Award for Excellence in Code Enforcement 

The Building Officials Association of Texas at their annual conference presented their 
Excellence in Code Enforcement Award to the City of Rockwall.  Mr. Selso Mata, 
President of BOAT will attend the September 19th Council meeting to formally present 
the award. 

11
11



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

12
12



MINUTES 1 

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL 2 
Tuesday, September 06, 2016 3 

4:00 p.m.  Regular City Council Meeting 4 
City Hall - 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, Texas 75087 5 

6 
I. CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER 7 

8 
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  Present were Mayor Jim Pruitt, Mayor 9 
Pro Tem Mike Townsend, and City Council Members David White, John Hohenshelt, Scott 10 
Milder and Kevin Fowler.  Also present were City Manager Rick Crowley, Assistant City 11 
Managers Mary Smith and Brad Griggs, and City Attorney Frank Garza.  Council Member 12 
Dennis Lewis was absent from the meeting. 13 

14 
II. WORK SESSION 15 

16 
1. Hold work session with representative(s) of the Rockwall Professional17 

Firefighters Association to hear presentation regarding emergency medical18 
services ("first responder") related duties.19 

Mike Caffey, Rockwall firefighter and current President of the Rockwall Professional 20 
Firefighters Association, came forth and introduced himself and Adam Honea, current Vice 21 
President of the RPFA.  Mr. Caffey then provided a lengthy presentation to the city council 22 
regarding the possibility of the Rockwall Fire Department potentially beginning to provide 23 
“first responder” type services when emergency medical calls (EMS calls) come in within 24 
the city.  Dialogue ensued among council members and Mr. Caffey pertaining to things like 25 
the EMS system in Rockwall (including the current ambulance service provider), response 26 
times, and potential fire department assistance with regards to being dispatched to assist 27 
with administering basic life support (“first responder”).  Mitch Ownby of Medic Rescue 28 
(Rockwall County EMS) came forth and provided input during the work session as well, 29 
generally indicating that he believes having assistance from FD first responders would be 30 
beneficial, especially on certain calls (depending on the acuteness of the patient’s 31 
circumstances and the situation overall). 32 
 33 
Mayor Pruitt read the below listed Executive Session discussion items into the public 34 
record as well as Z2016-026 and Z2016-025 before recessing the meeting to go into 35 
Executive Session (at 5:08 p.m.). 36 

37 
III. EXECUTIVE SESSION.38 

39 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS40 
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT 41 
CODE: 42 

43 
1. Discussion regarding legal options available to the City pertaining to possible44 

violations of drainage and detention development standards pursuant to45 
Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)46 

2. Discussion regarding proposed sale of city land for a possible private project47 
pursuant to Sections 551.072 (Real Property) and Section 551.08748 
(Economic Development Negotiations).49 

13
13



3. Discussion regarding negotiations of an Access Agreement generally located 50 
along Ridge Road south of Summit Ridge, pursuant to Section 551.071 51 
(Consultation with Attorney). 52 

 53 
IV. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION 54 
 55 
Council adjourned from Executive Session at 5:35 p.m. 56 
 57 
V. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING 58 
 59 
Mayor Pruitt reconvened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m. with all council members except 60 
Councilman Lewis being present. 61 
 62 
VI. TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 63 
 64 
Mayor Pro Tem Townsend moved to authorize the City Manager to finalize a settlement with 65 
Skorburg Development Corporation regarding the detention pond development.  66 
Councilmember White seconded the motion, which passed unanimously of those present 67 
(Lewis absent). 68 
 69 
VII. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – MAYOR PRUITT 70 
 71 
Mayor Pruitt delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 72 
 73 
VIII. PROCLAMATIONS / AWARDS 74 
 75 

1. Constitution Week 76 
 77 
Mayor Pruitt recognized several members of the “Daughters of the American 78 
Revolution” who were present to say a few words about the U.S. Constitution hand 79 
out small American flags and encourage everyone to take about forty-five minutes to 80 
read the U.S. Constitution.  He then read this proclamation into the public record. 81 
 82 

2. National Preparedness Month 83 
 84 
Mayor Pruitt called forth Police Chief Kirk Riggs and Fire Chief Mark Poindexter.  He shared 85 
a few words, acknowledging the training and work that our first responders participate in, 86 
year round, to help prepare and keep our citizens safe.  He then read a proclamation 87 
declaring the month of September as “National Preparedness Month.”   88 
 89 
Chief Riggs of the Rockwall Police Department provided brief comments, expressing that 90 
his staff is well trained and prepared to any sort of tactical or other event.  He generally 91 
thanked the city council for approving appropriate budgetary items that allow his staff to be 92 
ready.  He thanked the community for its outpouring of support, especially following the 93 
tragic events that recently affected the Dallas PD. 94 
 95 
Chief Poindexter shared that most people do not typically think about making an emergency 96 
supply kit to allow them to sustain themselves for a period of 72 hours or keep important 97 
documents in two, separate places (i.e. social security card, driver’s license, birth 98 
certificate) in case they are needed following a disaster like the tornado that affected 99 
Rowlett and Garland.  He encouraged citizens to take personal emergency preparedness to 100 
heart and to handle it with a proper level of seriousness, especially in light of the tornado 101 

14
14



that hit our neighboring cities this past December.  He thanked his staff and the city’s CERT 102 
Team for their work. 103 
 104 
IX. OPEN FORUM 105 
 106 
Mayor Pruitt explained how Open Forum is conducted and asked if anyone would like to 107 
come forth and speak at this time.  There being no one indicating such, he then closed the 108 
Open Forum. 109 
 110 
X. CONSENT AGENDA  111 
 112 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the August 15, 2016 regular City 113 
Council Meeting, and take any action necessary. 114 

2. Consider approval of the minutes from the August 16, 2016 Town Hall 115 
Meeting, and take any action necessary. 116 

3. Consider approval of the minutes from the August 25, 2016 Budget Work 117 
Session, and take any action necessary. 118 

4. Z2016-022 - Consider a request by Mark W. Pross of Pross Design Group, 119 
Inc. on behalf of Robert Reece of SPR Packaging, LLC for the approval of 120 
an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow for a structure that 121 
exceeds 60-feet in height in a Light Industrial  (LI) District in conjunction with 122 
an existing manufacturing facility situated on 10.1893-acre parcel of land 123 
identified as Lot 2, Block A, SPR Packaging Addition, City of Rockwall, 124 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, addressed as 125 
1480 Justin Road, and take any action necessary. (2nd Reading) 126 

5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Memorandum of 127 
Understanding with surrounding agencies to form the Northeast Texas Child 128 
Abduction Team (CART) for the purpose of providing additional resources to 129 
law enforcement agencies during missing children situations, and take any 130 
action necessary. 131 

6. Consider approval of an expenditure to Double R Utilities, Inc. for the 132 
emergency repair/relocation of a 20-inch water main at the northwest corner 133 
of John King Boulevard and SH 276 in the amount of $28,630.00 to be paid 134 
from the water operating budget, and take any action necessary. 135 

7. Consider approval of a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 136 
Interlocal and Cooperative Purchasing Program Contract between the Harris 137 
County Department of Education and the City of Rockwall, and take any 138 
action necessary. 139 

8. Consider awarding a bid to ICOR Technology and authorizing the City 140 
Manager to execute a Purchase Order for the purchase of a SWAT Robot in 141 
the amount of $48,498.11 with $20,000 to be funded from a grant through 142 
the Texas Governor's Office, and $28,498.11 to be funded from Seized 143 
Funds, and take any action necessary. 144 

9. P2016-036 - Consider a request by Matt Moore of Claymoore Engineering, 145 
Inc. on behalf of Saint George Partners, LTD for the approval of a final plat 146 
for Lot 1, Block A, Service King IH-30 Addition being a 3.293-acre tract of 147 
land currently described as Tract 7-01 of the J. Lockhart Survey, Abstract 148 
No. 134, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, located at 1780 E IH-30, 149 

15
15



zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 150 
OV) District, and take any action necessary. 151 

10. P2016-037 - Consider a request by Dub Douphrate of Douphrate & 152 
Associates, Inc. on behalf of D. R. Horton for the approval of an amending 153 
plat Lakeview Summit, Phase IV for the purpose of adding utility easements 154 
to the 93 residential lots proposed for the 38.056-acre subdivision situated 155 
within the J. H. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 124 and the Nathan Butler 156 
Survey, Abstract No. 21, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 157 
Planned Development District 29 (PD-29) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) 158 
District land uses, located north of the intersection of Petaluma Drive and N. 159 
Lakeshore Drive, and take any action necessary. 160 

Councilman Milder made a motion to approve the entire Consent Agenda (#s 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 161 
7, 8, 9, and 10).  Councilmember White seconded the motion.  The ordinance (for #4) was 162 
read as follows: 163 

  CITY OF ROCKWALL 164 
ORDINANCE NO. 16-46  165 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-155 166 
 167 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 168 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE 169 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO  GRANT A 170 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) ALLOWING FOR A STRUCTURE TO EXCEED THE 171 
MAXIMUM HEIGHT REQUIREMENT WITHIN A LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) DISTRICT, 172 
BEING A 10.1893-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 2, BLOCK A, SPR 173 
PACKAGING ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, 174 
ADDRESSED AS 1480 JUSTIN ROAD, AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN 175 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 176 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 177 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 178 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 179 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 180 

 181 
The motion passed unanimously of those present (1 (Lewis) absent). 182 
 183 
XI. APPOINTMENTS 184 
 185 

1. Appointment with the Planning and Zoning Chairman to discuss and answer 186 
any questions regarding cases on the agenda and related issues and take 187 
any action necessary. 188 

Craig Renfro, Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, came forth and briefed the 189 
city council members on recommendations of the Commission relative to planning-related 190 
items on tonight’s meeting agenda.  Brief dialogue ensued; however, the Council took no 191 
action as a result of this Appointment Item. 192 
 193 

2. Appointment with Jerry Welch, on behalf of Allegiance Title, to hear request 194 
concerning waiver of facility rental fees at The Center associated with a Chili 195 
Cook-off to be held on October 7th to benefit local Rockwall charities, and 196 
take any action necessary. 197 

Mr. Welch came forth and explained that this Chili Cook-off has been done for a couple of 198 
years in a row, and Allegiance Title heads it up.  They have averaged about $2,000 / year in 199 
fundraising, and they are looking at holding it at The Center this year.  The fees will likely 200 

16
16



run between $800-1,000, and they would like the Council to consider a waiver of sorts so 201 
that this money can be given to the charities instead of being spent on rental fees. 202 

Mayor Pro Tem Townsend asked if Mr. Welch has considered applying for Hotel/Motel Tax 203 
funding.  Mr. Welch indicated that he has not done so because he did not feel like this 204 
would be an event that would necessarily qualify for that type of funding.  Councilmember 205 
White suggested that Mr. Welch visit with Assistant City Manager Mary Smith to discuss 206 
how this may be able to be worked out. 207 
The Council took no formal action following its discussion. 208 

XII. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 209 
 210 

1. Hold a public hearing to receive comments regarding the proposed FY 2017 211 
City of Rockwall budget and tax rate, and take any action necessary. 212 

Mayor Pruitt opened the public hearing and called upon the city manager, Rick Crowley, to 213 
provide brief comments.  The Proposed budget includes, in part, the following items: 214 

• Six additional personnel including three Fire Drivers, a Police Captain, a Patrol 215 
Officer and a Streets Field Supervisor; 216 

• $1 million dollars in street repair materials; 217 
• Increase in Street Maintenance of $400,000; 218 
• Numerous repair projects in the Parks Department budget. 219 
 220 

He explained that the proposed tax rate is just slightly under the ‘effective rate,’ which is the 221 
rate that will result in collecting essentially the same amount of revenue (taxes) as was 222 
collected last year.  He explained that there was about $100 million in new, taxable value 223 
added within the city.  Also, sales tax revenue within the city has been healthy and very 224 
positive as well.  In addition, refinancing on some of the debt that had been previously 225 
issued has also freed up money that has allowed the tax rate to be kept down. 226 
Councilmember White also pointed out that appraisals, on average, recently went up about 227 
8%. 228 

There being no one wishing to come forth and speak during the Public Hearing, Mayor 229 
Pruitt then closed the public hearing. 230 

Mr. Crowley explained that since the city will not be exceeding the effective tax rate, 231 
tonight’s public hearing on the budget is the only one that is required to be held (by City 232 
Charter).  233 
No formal action was taken following discussion of this Public Hearing item. 234 

2. Z2016-026 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by 235 
Jason Lentz of Atticus Rockwall, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a 236 
PD Development Plan establishing 36 townhouses on a 3.462-acre portion 237 
of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land identified as Lots 3A, 4A & 5A, Isaac 238 
Brown Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned 239 
Development District 32 (PD-32), situated within the Residential Subdistrict 240 
and within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, located north of the 241 
intersection of Ridge Road [FM-740] and Glen Hill Way, and take any action 242 
necessary (1st Reading). 243 

Mayor Pruitt clarified that this development is located within PD-32, which is in The Harbor 244 
District.  Planning Director, Ryan Miller, then provided background information pertaining to 245 
this agenda item, indicating that this property is located in between Summer Lee Drive and 246 
Ridge Road, just south of Horizon.  It is a residential sub-district that allows for 49 single-247 

17
17



family zero lot line homes.  The applicant’s request is for a PD development plan to allow for 248 
36 townhomes.  According to our ordinance, the townhouse use requires an SUP in a 249 
residential sub-district; however, after reviewing the concept plan and the intent of the sub-250 
district, staff felt like a PD development plan was the best option.  The townhomes will have 251 
front entries and range from 1,600 to 2,100 square feet with one to three bedroom units.  Mr. 252 
Miller went on to explain several factors, including the alignment of roadways.  The 253 
development will be accessible from two (2) main points of entry, the first from a public 254 
roadway that will be constructed (if approved) with the Harbor Urban Center Condominiums 255 
[Case No. Z2016-026] and a future roadway that will connect the Harbor District to Ridge 256 
Road [FM-740]. 257 
 258 
On July 22, 2016, staff mailed 52 notices to property owners and residents within 500-feet of 259 
the subject property. Staff also emailed notices to the Lago Vista Homeowner’s 260 
Associations (HOA), which is the only HOA’s located within 1,500-feet of the subject 261 
property. Additionally, staff posted a sign on the subject property along Summer Lee Drive 262 
as required.  At the time, this case memo was drafted three (3) responses in favor of the 263 
request and one (1) response opposed to the request were received by staff.  In addition, 264 
the city’s Planning & Zoning Commission has reviewed this case and has recommended its 265 
approval by a vote of 4 to 2 (with Renfro and Lyons dissenting and Commissioner Fishman 266 
absent). 267 
 268 
Bruce Meyers 269 
Atticus Real Estate Development 270 
5339 Alpha Road (Ste. 300) 271 
Dallas, TX 272 
 273 
Mr. Meyers came forth and explained that his company purchased this piece of property (a 274 
two acre tract of land off of Summer Lee about nine years ago) because it is so beautiful 275 
(has views of the lake) and because it is in close proximity to nearby retail and restaurant 276 
opportunities.  However, this site poses some challenges from a development standpoint, 277 
specifically the creek or “dry gully” that runs straight through the property as a whole.  Mr. 278 
Meyers went on to share some information about his privately-held real estate company, 279 
including information about Atticus’ past projects, examples of project design styles, 280 
project benefits, etc.  He went on to speak about the various tracts of land that will be 281 
combined in order to create this new development as a whole.  He believes that zero-lot line 282 
homes are not very attractive, and they looked “stacked” from the street.  Also, the open 283 
areas get utilized in 10’ strips.  So, for these reasons, they have moved forward with asking 284 
for “townhomes” instead of “zero lot line” homes at this point.  He went on to explain the 285 
proposed layout on the tract(s) of land, including the open space and the goal of creating a 286 
sense of “community” within this development.  He shared that these townhomes will be a 287 
“for sale” product that will hopefully be occupied by families.  Therefore, eliminating the 288 
alleyways will allow for more green, open space for kids and pets to play in the rear of the 289 
homes. 290 
 291 
Following Mr. Meyers’ presentation, Mayor Pruitt opened the public hearing and asked if 292 
anyone in the audience would like to come forth and speak at this time. 293 
 294 
Russell Phillips 295 
Sterling One Properties 296 
 297 
Mr. Phillips came forth and explained that he owns the adjacent property to the west of this 298 
location.  He generally expressed concern related to the proposed roads that would run 299 

18
18



throughout the property.  He is not opposed to townhomes (instead of “zero lot line” 300 
homes).  He believes the proposed design looks great.  He has concerns about the 301 
proposed roadway not meeting the requirements of PD-32.  He wants to be sure that the 302 
road(s) will be properly planned, especially in light of the proposed 30+ houses and the 303 
condominiums that will be located in this general area.  He also wants to be sure that the 304 
traffic flow will be proper.  He expressed that he is willing to meet with Atticus to ensure the 305 
road is properly planned, and he is willing to pay for his portion of the roadway too. 306 
 307 
There being no one else wishing to come forth and speak, Mayor Pruitt then closed the 308 
public hearing. 309 
 310 
Councilmember White made a motion to approve Z2016-026.  Councilmember Milder 311 
seconded the motion. 312 
 313 
The ordinance was read as follows: 314 
 315 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 316 
ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX 317 

 318 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 319 
AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 32 (PD-32) [ORDINANCE NO. 10-21] 320 
AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF 321 
ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A DEVELOPMENT 322 
PLAN FOR A 3.462-ACRE PORTION OF A LARGER 6.915-ACRE TRACT OF LAND 323 
IDENTIFIED AS LOTS 3A, 4A & 5A, ISAAC BROWN ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 324 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT 325 
‘A’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE 326 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 327 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 328 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 329 

 330 
 331 
The motion passed unanimously of those present (6 ayes with 1 absent (Lewis)). 332 
 333 

3. Z2016-025 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by 334 
Jason Lentz of Atticus Rockwall, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a 335 
PD Development Plan establishing a 228 unit, condo development situated 336 
on a 3.453-acre portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land identified as Lots 337 
3A, 4A & 5A, Isaac Brown Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 338 
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-32), situated within the 339 
Interior Subdistrict, located adjacent to Summer Lee Drive southwest of the 340 
intersection of Horizon Road [FM-3097] and Summer Lee Drive, and take 341 
any action necessary (1st Reading). 342 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information concerning this agenda 343 
item.  Currently, the proposed land use (i.e. Condominiums) and the number of units being 344 
requested (i.e. 228) are considered to be allowed by-right for the subject property, which is 345 
located within the Interior Subdistrict of PD-32; however, he explained, the requested 346 
changes to the street cross section -- outlined in the proposed PD Development Plan -- is a 347 
discretionary decision for the City Council. In addition, the applicant is requesting a minor 348 
waiver to the building placement. Specifically, they will be encroaching into the required 349 
building setback in a few places along the modified roadway. Typically, this is handled at 350 
the time of site plan, however since staff is requiring general conformance to the PD 351 

19
19



Development Plan, this request has been included with the proposed, draft ordinance.  The 352 
approval of this minor waiver is also considered to be a discretionary decision for the City 353 
Council. Staff should note that the applicant has adjusted the concept plan to show the 354 
proposed roadway alignment extending south of the alignment.  The purpose of this 355 
adjustment is to prevent conflict with the adjacent property owner’s project (i.e. Summer 356 
Lee Condominiums) that is currently in the engineering phases of the development process.  357 
Mr. Miller explained that, when potentially granting a PD Development Plan within Planned 358 
Development District 32 (PD-32), the City Council needs to decide if the proposed 359 
development -- while not meeting the intent of the subdistrict -- meets the following criteria: 360 
 361 

a) Meets the general intent of the PD District; and, 362 
b) Will result in an improved project which will be an attractive contribution to the PD 363 

District; and, 364 
c) Will not prevent the implementation of the intent of this PD District. 365 

 366 
He explained that a PD Development Plan is a discretionary approval for the City Council, 367 
and, should the City Council choose to grant this request, the applicant will still need to 368 
submit a site plan that will be reviewed by the Architectural Review Board (ARB) and the 369 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 370 
 371 
Notices were sent to adjacent property owners located within 500’ of the subject property 372 
(84 total).  In addition, the Lakeside Village, Lago Vista and Signal Ridge HOA’s were also 373 
sent notifications.  Two notices in favor and four notices against were received back by 374 
staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended denial of this case.  As such, 375 
approval of this item tonight will require a ¾ majority vote of those present. 376 
 377 
Bruce Meyers 378 
Atticus Real Estate Development 379 
5339 Alpha Road (Ste. 300) 380 
Dallas, TX 381 
 382 
Mr. Meyers explained that they are trying to bring a very nice development into a market 383 
(Rockwall) that has shown a strong need for this type of housing product.  He then went on 384 
to explain in more detail the complications posed by the creek that runs, generally, on the 385 
east side of the proposed project and the terrain in general.  He went on to speak about how 386 
those complications influence the proposed position and alignment of the needed roadway.  387 
He explained that he absolutely wants to comply with the requirements within PD-32 as 388 
much as possible, so a lot of people on his team have been evaluating the roadway 389 
alignment in order to put forth what they believe is the best proposal in this regard (re:  how 390 
best to tie Summer Lee into Ridge Road).  He then went on to explain in greater detail the 391 
roadway alignment proposal that went before the city’s P&Z Commission versus what is 392 
being proposed now. 393 
 394 
Mayor Pruitt asked if anyone would like to come forth and speak during this time.  There 395 
being no one indicating a desire to do so, the mayor then closed the public hearing. 396 
 397 
Mayor Pro Tem Townsend sought clarification on the right-of-way as it is being proposed 398 
now.   It was clarified that an eight foot sidewalk on both sides is being proposed at this 399 
time (which is different than that which was recommended as “disapproved” by the P&Z 400 
Commission). 401 
 402 

20
20



After additional comments, Councilmember Hohenshelt made a motion to remand this case 403 
back to the Planning & Zoning Commission for further review / evaluation since some 404 
changes were made to the proposal after the time the P&Z initially heard and issued its 405 
recommendation on the case.  Councilmember White seconded the motion, which passed 406 
by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 absent (Lewis). 407 
 408 
XIII. ACTION ITEMS 409 
 410 

1. Z2016-027 - Discuss and consider a City initiated zoning request for the 411 
approval of an ordinance for a text amendment to Section 2.1, Agriculture 412 
(AG) District; Section 3.3, Single-Family Residential (SF-16) District; and 413 
Section 3.4, Single-Family Residential (SF-10) District, of Article V, District 414 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code for the purpose 415 
of increasing the minimum square footage per dwelling unit in these zoning 416 
districts, and take any action necessary. (2nd reading) 417 

Planning Director Ryan Miller explained that this item did not result in a unanimous vote at 418 
the last city council meeting.  Therefore, it has been placed under “Action Items” for 419 
consideration of second reading of the ordinance.  Mayor Pruitt made a motion to approve 420 
Z2016-027.  After brief clarification, Councilman Milder seconded the motion.   The 421 
ordinance was read as follows: 422 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 423 
ORDINANCE NO. 16-47 424 

 425 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 426 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 427 
04-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY 428 
AMENDING SECTION 2.1, AGRICULTURE (AG) DISTRICT; SECTION 3.3, 429 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SF-16) DISTRICT; AND SECTION 3.4, 430 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SF-10) DISTRICT, OF ARTICLE V, DISTRICT 431 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF INCREASING THE 432 
MINIMUM SQUARE FOOTAGE PER DWELLING UNIT IN THE SINGLE FAMILY 433 
10 (SF-10) & SINGLE FAMILY 16 (SF-16) DISTRICTS AND ESTABLISHING A 434 
MINIMUM SQUARE FOOTAGE PER DWELLING UNIT IN THE AGRICULTURE 435 
(AG) DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE 436 
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 437 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 438 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 439 

 440 
The motion passed by a vote of 5 ayes, 1 against (White), and 1 absent (Lewis). 441 

2. Discuss and consider an agreement between the City of Rockwall and STAR 442 
Transit for transportation services for fiscal year 2017 in the amount of 443 
$55,200 to be funded by the Administration operating budget, and take any 444 
action necessary. 445 

Mayor Pruitt clarified that the $55,200 is the amount that is being budgeted by the city for 446 
the upcoming fiscal year. 447 
 448 
Mike Simms, Executive Deputy Director, with STAR Transit came forth and addressed the 449 
Council. He introduced Omega Hawkins, Executive Director of the organization and Tommy 450 
Hendricks, Chief Financial Officer.  Mr. Simms generally indicated that his company has 451 
worked with Mayor Pro Tem Townsend and staff to evaluate the desired level of service as 452 
well as available federal funding.  He pointed out that the level of service (numbers of hours 453 

21
21



of service) will be changing compared to what is provided now.  Right now, about 40 hours 454 
of service is collectively provided each day; however, this will change to about 27 overall 455 
hours of service, collectively and on average, per day in the upcoming fiscal year.  He 456 
explained that his company will be evaluating some policy changes over the next three 457 
months or so, in order to make some policy and operational changes regarding service 458 
provision. 459 
 460 
Mayor Pruitt indicated that the city council and staff have had a lot of discussion over time 461 
about this funding decision.  He shared his understanding that the County has indicated it 462 
will match the dollar amount that the City of Rockwall is committing to pay in the upcoming 463 
fiscal year.  Joey Boyd, Internal Operations Director, clarified that in the upcoming fiscal 464 
year, there will be, on average, 27 hours of daily service, and the City will receive eleven (11) 465 
hours, per day, on average. 466 
 467 
Mayor Pruitt pointed out that, according to the contract provisions, by June 30th of next 468 
year, the City is committed to making its next commitment or else this contract will 469 
automatically renew.  He went on to express that he is not in favor of approving the 470 
provisions expressed in Section 3.8 pertaining to future funding of capital expenditure 471 
costs that will be incurred by the city in the 3rd year.  Mr. Simms generally expressed that 472 
STAR will consent to said language being struck from the contract. 473 
 474 
Mayor Pruitt made a motion to approve the contract with the understanding that, with the 475 
exception of the very first sentence in Section 3.8 (see below), the remaining language in 476 
Sec. 3.8 will be struck (eliminated) entirely as follows:. 477 
 478 

3.8 Capital  Cost  Charge  to CITY. The Parties concur that the CITY will not participate 479 
in capital expenditures. STAR Transit represents that local entities contracting with 480 
STAR Transit are expected to support all or part of the costs of vehicle acquisition not 481 
otherwise covered through grant funds as a primary capital cost of the service. Other 482 
shared capital costs include buildings, parking facilities, vehicle wash bays, refueling 483 
facilities and other capital improvements. Each entity served by STAR Transit is 484 
expected to make a contribution to defray a share of capital expenditures not 485 
otherwise covered through grant funds. STAR Transit represents that for the first two 486 
(2) Fiscal Years of operation, no vehicle acquisition or replacement cost or other capital 487 
expense item will be required from CITY. STAR Transit and CITY agree that if, after the 488 
two (2) year period, a capital cost share is required for local partners within the STAR 489 
Transit system, STAR  Transit  shall  not  request  capital  funding  from  the  CITY  490 
and  shall  instead  provide notification of termination to CITY under Section 5.1 of this 491 
Agreement. 492 

 493 
Mayor Pro Tem Townsend seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 5 in favor, 1 494 
against (White) and 1 absent (Lewis). 495 
 496 
Mayor Pruitt called for a brief break, recessing the meeting at 7:33 p.m. 497 
 498 

3. Discuss and consider a request by J.J. Smith and an associated 499 
recommendation from the Airport Advisory Board regarding holding a 500 
Balloon Festival at the Ralph M Hall / Rockwall Municipal Airport, and take 501 
any action necessary. 502 

 503 
Mr. Smith came forth and provided brief comments to the Council regarding this proposed 504 
event, generally indicating that he has met with Plano Balloon Festival event planners as 505 
well as event planners for a similar festival held annually in the City of Celina.  He believes 506 

22
22



the event may draw 10,000 - 20,000 people.  Councilmember White had several questions 507 
pertaining to expected numbers of attendees, vendors, space, and parking. 508 
 509 
Mr. Smith indicated that, at this point, only two non-profits (The Rockwall County 510 
Republican Party and CERT (Community Emergency Response Team)) have expressed 511 
interest in participating. 512 
 513 
Councilmember White asked several questions pertaining to the organization’s non-profit 514 
and/or “tax exempt” status (with the IRS).  Mr. Smith clarified that he has secured a non-515 
profit status through the Secretary of State’s office, and he has currently applied for and is 516 
awaiting the disposition of his application to become a “501 c3” with the IRS. 517 
 518 
Mr. Smith explained that he has over twenty vendors lined up, and he has several sponsors, 519 
although no major ones, at this point.  He expressed that he is essentially asking the city to 520 
consider sponsoring the event, and is, at this point, asking the city to consider doing so in 521 
the amount of $15,000.  He explained that this amount could be granted for the event in the 522 
form of “cash,” or it could be granted in a way that it would cover costs on other things 523 
such as a stage rental, police/traffic control costs, etc. 524 
 525 
Councilmember White expressed concern about Mr. Smith not submitting a more formal 526 
budget / cost breakdown and associated “event plan” proposals prior to coming before the 527 
Council to request approval for the use of city property (at the airport).  He generally has 528 
concerns about any costs (or no costs at all) being associated with loaning city land for the 529 
purpose of hosting this event. 530 
 531 
Mr. Smith expressed that the airport location is ideal because of several reasons, including 532 
that it is spacious, self-contained, easily accessible, and has plenty of concrete space and 533 
grassy space.  He believes the “self-contained” aspect will make it very successful 534 
because, he explained, it will be a money making event, and this will make that aspect 535 
easier. 536 
 537 
Councilmember White expressed that he is not in favor of this proposal.  He explained that 538 
past events that Mr. Smith has overseen have, in his opinion, not been run very well or very 539 
smoothly.  For example, a lot of people who donated to the Memorial Day Concert that Mr. 540 
Smith oversaw a couple/few years back felt that they were deceived because they thought 541 
the funds they donated would have gone to veterans.  Instead, however, (Mr. White 542 
explained) the money went to Mr. Smith as profit/revenue. 543 
 544 
Mayor Pro Tem Townsend expressed that he has some concerns with regards to sensitive 545 
equipment that may be housed at the airport or that is located on airport property.  Mr. Boyd 546 
explained that there are runway lights on both sides of the runway for 3,300 feet.  He shared 547 
that some pilots at the airport that attended a recent meeting at the airport did express 548 
concerns about security of their personal property located on airport property.  They also 549 
have concerns about personal security and security of spectators.  They also have 550 
concerns related to people who may fly without a flight plan and need to come in and land 551 
at the airport without prior notice.  In addition to these concerns, Mayor Pro Tem Townsend 552 
pointed out that a lot of hangars out there are privately owned.  So he would like Mr. Smith 553 
to be sure that he has spoken to each of the property and business owners at the airport in 554 
order to properly vet and adequately address any concerns they may have as well. 555 
 556 
Mayor Pruitt asked if Mr. Smith will have vendors selling alcohol at the event.  Mr. Smith 557 
indicated that he will not have those types of vendors present.  The mayor pointed out that 558 

23
23



several permits may need to be sought and granted from staff, regardless of the location 559 
that is ultimately chosen for this balloon festival, be it the airport or elsewhere.  He 560 
generally expressed that he does not feel comfortable moving forward with granting 561 
permission to use the airport property prior to Mr. Smith having his 501 c3 status fully 562 
approved and in place. 563 
 564 
Councilmember Milder expressed that he believes a balloon festival is a very good idea; 565 
however, he has some concerns that there may be a lot of pieces that Mr. Smith still does 566 
not have in place.  He generally suggested that Mr. Smith may want to consider taking a few 567 
steps back to take some additional time to get the event better planned and organized, and 568 
then consider doing the event, perhaps next year. 569 
 570 
Councilmember White made a motion to deny the request to hold the balloon festival at the 571 
airport.  Mayor Pro Tem Townsend seconded the motion, which failed by a vote of 3 in 572 
favor, 3 against (Pruitt, Milder and Townsend), and 1 absent (Lewis). 573 
 574 
Mayor Pruitt made a motion to approve the recommendation of the Airport Board to allow 575 
the balloon festival to take place with the stipulation that Mr. Smith first obtain his tax 576 
exempt status, that there be no alcohol served, and that all owners at the airport not be 577 
inconvenienced (that they will have access to their planes throughout the time of the event).  578 
Councilmember Hohenshelt seconded the motion; however, he would like to have a more 579 
comprehensive plan presented to the city council by the first city council meeting in 580 
October (an operational plan reflecting parking, number of people, pricing, budget, etc.).  581 
Mayor Pruitt amended his motion to reflect that the event is approved contingent upon a 582 
comprehensive event plan (as described by Hohenshelt) be presented at the Council’s first 583 
meeting in October and that the plan ensure it addresses any concerns of property owners 584 
at the airport as well as city staff (fire, police, etc.), and  insurance coverage. 585 
 586 
Councilman Milder explained that, although he just voted against denial of this request, he 587 
is also not in favor of it being approved at this point either.  He generally feels that there are 588 
currently way too many unanswered questions.  Also, he does not feel that there is enough 589 
time to get all concerns properly vetted and addressed before the event takes place in just 590 
over two months from now.  Therefore, he does not believe it would be very responsible of 591 
the city to support this proposal at this time. 592 
 593 
The motion failed by a vote of 3 in favor, 3 against (White, Townsend, and Milder) and 1 594 
absent (Lewis). 595 
 596 

4. Discuss and consider the proposed City of Rockwall budget for Fiscal Year 597 
2017, and take any action necessary. 598 

City Manager Rick Crowley provided various comments pertaining to the FY17 budget 599 
proposal. He briefed the council on the following budget-related items: 600 

1. At the close of the budget work session, management staff was directed to include 601 
funding for overtime to increase minimum staffing at Station 3 from one to two 602 
firefighters per shift so $57,000 has been added to the Fire Department OT line item; 603 

2. A transfer to the Airport Fund to allow assistance to the FBO in the amount of 604 
$25,000 has been added. There was a small reserve in the Airport fund so we are able 605 
to transfer only $15,000 to meet this obligation in the coming year. A contract 606 
amendment will be required and is being worked out now;  607 

24
24



3. The just announced grant award for boat ramp improvements has been worked into 608 
the Recreation Development fund as expenditure and associated grant proceeds. By 609 
discontinuing the annual transfer from this fund to cover baseball personnel costs 610 
the fund balance will be sufficient to cover the match. The project itself will be 611 
$524,325 and is 75% funded by the grant. 612 

4. The mid-block crosswalk at San Jacinto Plaza has been added to the Street 613 
Improvement Fund that has an adequate fund balance to cover the added expense of 614 
$16,000. 615 

5. The Police Department’s (partial) funding request to cover the cost of a Bear Cat (half 616 
of the cost, which is $170,000 (with the other half being paid for out of “seized 617 
funds”)) 618 

Councilmember Hohenshelt made a motion to approve 1, 2, 3 and 4 outlined above. 619 
Councilmember White seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 6 in favor with 1 620 
absent (Lewis). 621 

Police Chief Kirk Riggs clarified that he is asking for half of the vehicle (in the amount of 622 
$170,000) to be paid for out of city funds with the other half being funded out of seized 623 
funds.  Mayor Pruitt generally indicated that if the Police Department really needs a piece of 624 
equipment, he feels that seized funds should not have to be used, but, rather it should be 625 
funded out of the general fund.  Councilmember White indicated that since the time the 626 
budget work session was held, he has come to have far fewer concerns and objections; 627 
however, if the purchase of the Bear Cat does get approved, he is asking that the 628 
department not parade it around too much. 629 
Mayor Pro Tem Townsend made a motion to approve the city-funded portion of the vehicle 630 
(Bear Cat) being requested.  Councilmember Fowler seconded the motion.  Councilmember 631 
Fowler commented that the police chief has indicated that he truly feels this vehicle is 632 
needed.  So, he trusts the chief’s judgment when requesting the vehicle.  Additional, brief 633 
dialogue took place related to the funding source (“seized” (drug) funds versus the “general 634 
fund”), and the expected life span of the vehicle.  After additional, brief comments, the 635 
motion passed by a vote of 6 in favor with 1 absent (Lewis). 636 
Assistant City Manager Mary Smith and Mayor Pruitt explained that the tax rate and the 637 
budget will be formally adopted, by ordinance, at the next, regular council meeting. 638 

5. Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 18. Fire 639 
Prevention and Protection, Article II. Fire Code Standards, Section 18-34. 640 
Plan Review Fee, authorizing the Office of the Fire Marshal to assess fees 641 
for fire permits, construction and operational services, inspections, third party 642 
reviews, and miscellaneous fees, and take any action necessary.  (1st 643 
reading) 644 

Fire Marshal Ariana Hargrove came forth to answer any questions the Council may have 645 
related to this agenda item. She explained that the city has already had some provisions in 646 
place pertaining to charging fees; however, this ordinance adds some provisions and 647 
expands to reflect the city’s ability to utilize a third party to conduct fire-related plan reviews 648 
on behalf of the fire department/the city. 649 
 650 
Mayor Pruitt made a motion to approve the ordinance. Councilman Milder seconded the 651 
motion.  After brief comments, the ordinance was read as follows: 652 
 653 

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS  654 
ORDINANCE NO. __________ 655 

25
25



  656 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 657 
AMENDING CHAPTER 18 FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION, ARTICLE II, 658 
SECTION 18-34 AUTHORIZING THE OFFICE OF THE FIRE MARSHAL TO ASSESS 659 
FEES FOR FIRE PERMITS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATIONAL SERVICES, 660 
INSPECTIONS AND THIRD PARTY REVIEWS AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS FEES; 661 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 662 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 663 

 664 
The motion passed by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 absent (Lewis). 665 
  666 
XIV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT TO DISCUSS CURRENT CITY ACTIVITIES, UPCOMING MEETINGS, 667 

FUTURE LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 668 
 669 

1. Departmental Reports  670 
 Building Inspections Monthly Report - July 2016 671 
 Fire Dept. Monthly Reports - July 2016  672 
 Fire Marshal Division Monthly Report - July 2016 673 
 GIS Division Monthly Report - July 2016 674 
 Harbor PD Monthly Report - July 2016 675 
 Internal Operations Department Monthly Report - July 2016 676 
 Police Department Monthly Report - July 2016 677 
 Recreation Monthly Report - July 2016 678 
 Rockwall Animal Adoption Center Monthly Report - July 2016 679 

2. City Manager’s Report 680 
 681 
Mayor Pruitt shared brief comments pertaining to upcoming events being held throughout 682 
the city, specifically those pertaining to 9/11-related and other events that will focus on 683 
honoring our first responders. 684 
 685 
XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION  686 
 687 

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS 688 
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT 689 
CODE: 690 
 691 

1. Discussion regarding legal options available to the City pertaining to possible 692 
violations of drainage and detention development standards pursuant to 693 
Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) 694 

2. Discussion regarding proposed sale of city land for a possible private project 695 
pursuant to Sections 551.072 (Real Property) and Section 551.087 696 
(Economic Development Negotiations). 697 

3. Discussion regarding negotiations of an Access Agreement generally located 698 
along Ridge Road south of Summit Ridge, pursuant to Section 551.071 699 
(Consultation with Attorney). 700 

XVI. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 701 
 702 
The Council did not convene in Executive Session following the end of the public meeting 703 
agenda. 704 
 705 
XVII. ADJOURNMENT 706 

26
26



 707 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 708 
 709 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 710 

THIS 15th day of August, 2016.  711 

   712 
__________________________  713 

ATTEST:       Jim Pruitt, Mayor 714 
 715 
_______________________________ 716 
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 717 

27
27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

28
28



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager  
  
FROM: Timothy M. Tumulty, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
DATE: September 13, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: 16-Inch Water Line Relocation FM 3097 (Horizon Road) – CIP2009-015    
  
 

This project consists of relocation of approximately 250 linear feet of 16-inch PVC water 
line, in order to avoid TxDOT culvert and channel grading along FM 3097 (Horizon Road just 
south of Tubbs.     

The City hired C&PY, Inc. to provide the engineering design and specifications for this 
relocation project. Two (2) bids were received and opened on August 24, 2016.  The low bidder 
is Four Star Excavating, Inc. of Dallas, Texas with a Bid of $80,916.00.  The engineering 
consultant has verified the Four Star Excavating, Inc. references and provided a letter of 
recommendation.  Funding will be reimbursed by TxDOT up to 90% and the remainder funded 
through the 2016 Water & Sewer Bonds. 

Staff requests City Council consider approval of the 16-Inch Water Line Relocation FM 
3097 (Horizon Road) and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Four Star 
Excavating, Inc. in an amount of $80,916.00 and take any action necessary. 

 
TMT:jw 
 
Attachments 
 
Cc: Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 Amy Williams, P.E. Assistant City Engineer 
 Jeremy White, P.E., CFM, Civil Engineer 
 Rick Sherer, Manager Water/Wastewater 

File 
 

29
29



August 29, 2016

Mr. Jeremy White, P.E., CFM
City of Rockwall
385 South Goliad
Rockwall, Texas 75087

Re: 16-inch Waterline Relocation FM3097 (Horizon Road)
CP&Y Project No. CORK1600531.00

Dear Mr. White,

On Wednesday, the 24th of August, 2016 at 2:00 P.M., two responsive bids were received and publicly
opened at the City of Rockwall Council Conference Room for the 16-inch Waterline Relocation FM3097
(Horizon Road) Project. The enclosed bid tabulation summarizes the responsive bids received for this
project.

Four Star Excavating, Inc., of Dallas, Texas was the apparent responsive low bidder. We have reviewed
their bid proposal, with all items checked for correctness in their extensions and additions. Based on the
review we find Four Star Excavating, Inc.’s bid to be competent to complete the project according to the
construction documents.

Therefore, CP&Y, Inc. recommends the award of contract to Four Star Excavating, Inc. for their low bid
amount of $80,916.00.

Should you or your staff have any questions please call.

Respectfully submitted,
CP&Y, Inc.

Wade A. Brooks, P.E.
Project Manager

Encl.
Cc: Amy Williams, P.E., City of Rockwall

file

30
30



Item No. Description Unit Quantiy Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1 Mobilization (5% Max of Contract) LS 1 $4,045.00 $4,045.00 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 6,900.00$ 6,900.00$

2 Project Sign Complete in Place EA 1 $450.00 $450.00 700.00$ 700.00$ 2,500.00$ 2,500.00$

3 Erosion & Sedimentation Control Devices Complete in Place LS 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 800.00$ 800.00$ 7,500.00$ 7,500.00$

4 SWPPP Information Sign Complete in Place EA 1 $100.00 $100.00 600.00$ 600.00$ 500.00$ 500.00$

5 Development and Maintenance of SWPPP Complete in Place LS 1 $750.00 $750.00 900.00$ 900.00$ 5,000.00$ 5,000.00$

6 16" C905 PVC Water Pipe Complete in Place LF 188 $185.00 $34,780.00 130.00$ 24,440.00$ 167.50$ 31,490.00$

7 Trench Safety Complete in Place LF 188 $4.00 $752.00 10.00$ 1,880.00$ 1.00$ 188.00$

8 16" Tapping Sleeve, Gate Valve with Box Complete in Place EA 2 $10,275.00 $20,550.00 15,000.00$ 30,000.00$ 17,500.00$ 35,000.00$

9 Wrapped Iron Fittings Complete in Place LBS 1200 $2.50 $3,000.00 10.00$ 12,000.00$ 12.50$ 15,000.00$

10 Cut and Plug Existing 16" PVC Waterline Complete in Place EA 2 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 1,200.00$ 2,400.00$ 7,500.00$ 15,000.00$

11 Testing Including Discharge of Heavy Chlorine Water Main Flush Water Complete in Place LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 1,000.00$ 1,000.00$ 3,500.00$ 3,500.00$

12 Class "B" Concrete Encasement Complete in Place LF 188 $69.15 $13,000.20 17.00$ 3,196.00$ 90.00$ 16,920.00$

Total $84,927.20 80,916.00$ 139,498.00$

Reytech ServicesEngineer's Estimate Four Star Excavating

City of Rockwall
FM3097 (Horizon Road) 16" Waterline Relocation

Bid Tabulation
8/29/2016

31
31



32
32



33
33



34
34



35
35



36
36



37
37



38
38



39
39



40
40



41
41



42
42



43
43



44
44



45
45



46
46



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

47
47



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

 
AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2016 
 
APPLICANT: Billy and Autumn Quinton 
 
AGENDA ITEM: P2016-038; Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Autumn Addition 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Discuss and consider a request by Billy & Autumn Quinton for the approval of a final plat of Lots 
1 & 2, Block A, Autumn Addition being a replat of a 0.35-acre tract of land identified as Lot 120, 
Block F of the B. F. Boydstun Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single 
Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 601 E. Rusk Street, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION: 
 
 The objective of this request is to final plat one (1) parcel of land [Lot 120, Block F, B.F. 

Boydstun Addition] into two (2) parcels of land [Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Autumn Addition] for the 
purpose of establishing two (2) parcels. 

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and 

this plat, conforming to the requirements for final plats as stated in the Subdivision 
Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances, is recommended for conditional approval 
pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 

 
 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 

conditions stipulated in the Recommendation section below. 
 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Recommendation section of this case memo, 

this plat is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in 
the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the final plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Autumn Addition, 
staff would recommend the following conditions: 
 
1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be 

addressed prior to the filing of this plat; 
 

2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this final plat shall conform to the 
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code, the International Building Code, 
the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and 
with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
On September 13, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to 
recommend approval of the final plat per staff's recommendations by a vote of 6-0 with 
Commissioner Renfro absent.  

48
48



City of Rockwall
Project Plan Review History

8/25/2016

Project Number P2016-038
601 E Rusk Street

601 E RUSK

BURKS, PAULETTE &
Project Name

FINAL
Type
Subtype

Applied
Approved
Closed
Expired
Status 

8/12/2016

LM

LM
Owner
Applicant BILLY & AUTUMN QUINTON

Site Address City, State Zip

Parcel No
B F BOYDSTON NULL 120F NULL
Subdivision Tract Block Lot No

8/12/2016

3140-120F-0000-00-0R

Zoning

General Plan

STAFF REVIEWStatus

PLAT

ROCKWALL, TX 75087

Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

BUILDING John Shannon 8/12/2016 8/17/2016 58/19/2016 APPROVED

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 8/12/2016 8/19/2016 See Condition
(8/19/2016 1:37 PM AW)
Property owners will be extending public sewer and possibly adding fire hydrants at their cost when property develops.

78/19/2016 APPROVED W/ CONDITIONS

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 8/12/2016 8/17/2016 58/19/2016 APPROVED

GIS Lance Singleton 8/12/2016 8/23/2016 118/19/2016 APPROVED

PLANNING Korey Brooks 8/12/2016 8/24/2016 Comments
(8/24/2016 3:44 PM KB)
P2016-039 Autumn Addition Please address the following comments (M= Mandatory Comments; I = Informational Comments).

I.1  This a request by Billy & Autumn Quinton for the approval of a final plat of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Autumn Addition being a replat of a 0.35-acre tract of land 
identified as Lot 120, Block F of the B. F. Boydstun Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 601 E. Rusk 
Street.
I.2  For questions or comments concerning this case, please contact Korey Brooks in the Planning Department at (972) 772-6434 or email kbrooks@rockwall.com.
M.3  For reference, include the case number (P2016-038) in the lower right hand corner of all pages on future submittals.
M.4  Please add lot and block designation to title block. 
M.5  The rear setback is 10-feet.  Since the building on the northwest corner of Lot 1 is not 10 feet from the rear property line, it must be removed.     
M.6  Please provide the following comment in NOTES “It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits until all streets, water, sewer 
and storm drainage systems have been accepted by the City. The approval of a plat by the City does not constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee that 
any building within such plat shall be approved, authorized or permit therefore issued, nor shall such approval constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee 
by the City of the adequacy and availability for water for personal use and fire protection within such plat, as required under Ordinance 83-54.
I.7  Staff has identified the aforementioned items necessary to continue the submittal process.  Please make these revisions and corrections, and provide any 

128/19/2016 COMMENTS

Project Reviews.rpt Page 1 of 249
49



Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

additional information that is requested by September 7, 2016. The Park Board Meeting is September 7, 2016. The Planning & Zoning Worksession date for this case
will be August 30, 2016. The Planning and Zoning Meeting for this case is September 13, 2016.
I.8 The City Council meeting date and subsequent approval for this plat is September 19, 2016.

Project Reviews.rpt Page 2 of 250
50



RUSK

TYL
ER

KAUFMAN

SF-7

P2016-038 - AUTUMN ADDITION
FINAL PLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 25 50 75 10012.5
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I51

51



SITE
LOCATION

NOTES

SURVEY DATE

SCALE

CLIENT

FILE #H.D. Fetty Land Surveyor, LLC

1) According to F.E.M.A. Flood Insurance Rate Map. Community Panel No. 48397C0030L dated 
   SEPT 26, 2008, this property lies in Zone X. This property does not appear to lie within a 100-year 
   flood plain. 

2) BEARING SOURCE: CITY OF ROCKWALL CONTROL MONUMENT SYSTEM.

3) ALL 1/2" IRS ARE CAPPED WITH  YELLOW PLASTIC CAPS "RPLS 5034."

POINT OF
BEGINNING

Firm Registration no. 101509-00

S 88°54'27''E  75.31'

1
0

0
.1

2
'

1
0

0
.1

3
'

1
0

0
.0

0
'

1
0

0
.0

0
'

LOT 2

0.17 ACRES
7548 SF

LOT 1

0.17 ACRES
7517 SF

BLOCK A

B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 B
E

A
R

IN
G

S
N

 0
0

°4
2

'3
7

"W
  
2

0
0

.0
0

'

52
52



NOTE: It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits until
all streets, water, sewer and storm drainage systems have been accepted by the City. The
approval of a plat by the City does not constitute any representa tion, assurance or guarantee
that any building within such plat shall be approved, authorized or permit therefore issued,
as required under Ordinance 83-54.

                               SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

NOW, THEREFORE KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT I, Harold D. Fetty, III, R.P.L.S. No. 5034, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat
from an actual and accurate survey of the land, and that the corner monuments shown thereon
were properly placed under my personal supervision.

____________________________________________
Harold D. Fetty, III
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5034

RECOMMENDED FOR FINAL APPROVAL

________________________                _______________________
Planning and Zoning Commission          Date

O F

A

ED

X

R
N

A
L

EI S T

ISSE

R

O

ET

EG
A

R

O

P

R

S
T

L

ET

F

5034

VU R ED
S

OYN
A

HAROLD D. FETTY III

S

foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and

foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and

consideration therein stated.

consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this _______day of _____________________, ___________.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this _______day of _____________________, ___________.

__________________________________                              _____________________________

__________________________________                              _____________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas                     My Commission Expires:

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas                     My Commission Expires:

STATE OF TEXAS

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

SURVEY DATE

SCALE

CLIENT

FILE #H.D. Fetty Land Surveyor, LLC

known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

                                         APPROVED

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of AUTUMN ADDITION, an addition to the 
City of Rockwall, Texas,  an addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas, was approved by the 
City Council of the City of Rockwall on the ___ day of________ ,______.

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the
office of the County Clerk of Rockwall, County, Texas, within one hundred eighty (180) days
from said date of final approval.

Said addition shall be subject to all the requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the
City of Rockwall.

WITNESS OUR HANDS, this ______ day of _________________ ,______________.

__________________________________              ______________________________________
Mayor, City of Rockwall                                             City Secretary City of Rockwall

________________________________                       __________
City Engineer                                                                      Date

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared BILLY QUINTON

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared  AUTUMN QUINTON

Firm Registration no. 101509-00

                                      OWNER'S CERTIFICATE
                                      (Public Dedication)
STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

WHEREAS BILLY AND AUTUMN QUINTON, BEING THE OWNER OF A TRACT OF land in the
County of Rockwall, State of Texas, said tract being described as follows:

All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in the B.F. BOYDSTUN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 14,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas. and being a part of a tract of land as described in a Warranty
deed from Martha Bess Snow to Joe T. Lofland, dated March 18, 1946 and being recorded in Volume 41,
Page 93 of the Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod with yellow plastic cap stamped "RPLS 5034" set for corner at the intersection
of the east right-of-way line of N. Tyler Street, a 50 foot right-of-way, and the north right-of-way line of E. Rusk
Street, a 50 foot right-of-way, at the southwest corner of said Lofland tract of land;

THENCE N. 00 deg. 42 min. 37 sec. W. along the east right-of-way line of N. Tyler Street, a distance of
200.25 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with yellow plastic cap stamped "RPLS 5034" set in the south right-of-way of
E. KAUFMAN STREET, a 50 foot right-of-way, for corner;

THENCE S. 88 deg. 48 min. 52 sec. E. along the south right-of-way of E. KAUFMAN STREET a distance of 
75.63 feet to a  1/2" iron pipe found for corner at the northeast corner of said Lofland tract;

THENCE S. 00 deg. 31 min. 57 sec. E. along the east line of said Lofland tract, a distance of 200.00 feet
to a 1/2" iron rod with yellow plastic cap stamped "RPLS 5034" set for corner in the north right-of-way line
of E. Rusk Street;

THENCE S. 88 deg. 59 min. 31 sec. W. a distance of 75.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and
containing 15,065 square feet or 0.35 acres of land.

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

I the undersigned owner of the land shown on this plat, and designated herein as AUTUMN
ADDITION, an Addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, 
hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets, alleys, parks, water courses, drains,
easements and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration therein expressed. I
further certify that all other parties who have a mortgage or lien interest in the subdivision
have been notified and signed this plat.

I understand and do hereby reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the purposes
stated and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or using same.

I also understand the following;

1.       No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the utility
easements as described herein.

2.      Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any
buildings, fences, trees, shrubs, or other growths or improvements which in any way endanger or
interfere with construction, maintenance or efficiency of th eir respective system on any of
these easement strips; and any public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or
egress to, from and upon the said easement strips for purpose of construction, reconstruction,
inspecting, patrolling, maint aining, and either adding to or removing all or part of their
respective system without the necessity of, at any time, procuring the permission of anyone.

3.      The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting
from or occasioned by the establishment of grade of streets in the subdivision.

4.      The developer and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain
improvements.

5.      The developer shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage
patterns and drainage controls such that properties within the drainage area are not adversely
affected by storm drainage from the development.

6.      No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this
addition by the owner or any other person until the developer and/or owner has complied with
all requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Roc kwall regarding improvements
with respect to the entire block on the street or streets on which property abuts, including
the actual installation of streets with the required base and paving, curb and gutter, water
and sewer, drainage structures, sto rm structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to
the specifications of the City of Rockwall; or

Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by
the city's engineer and/or city administrator, computed on a private commercial rate basis, has
been made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement signed by the developer and/or
owner, authorizing the city to make such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates,
or have the same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the escrow deposit, should
the developer an d/or owner fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time
stated in such written agreement, but in no case shall the City be obligated to make such
improvements itself.  Such deposit may be used by the owner and/or developer as p rogress
payments as the work progresses in making such improvements by making certified requisitions to
the city secretary, supported by evidence of work done; or

Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond with the city secretary in a sum
equal to the cost of such improvements for the designated area, guaranteeing the installation
thereof within the time stated in the bond, which time shall be fixed by the city council of
the City of Rockwall.

I further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction's made herein are proportional
to the impact of the subdivision upon the public services required in order that the
development will comport with the present and future growth needs of the City; I , my 
successors and assigns hereby waive any claim, damage, or cause of action that I may have
as a result of the dedication of exaction's made herein.

_________________________________________________
BILLY QUINTON

_________________________________________________
AUTUMN QUINTON

53
53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

54
54



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

 
AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2016 
 
APPLICANT: Jay Maddox; Maddox Survey 
 
AGENDA ITEM: P2016-039; Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Burke Addition 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Discuss and consider a request by Jay Maddox of Maddox Survey on behalf of Casey & Andrea 
Burke for the approval of a final plat of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Burke Addition being a 2.970-acre 
tract of land identified as Tract 19 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the Scenic 
Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1406 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION: 
 
 The objective of this request is to final plat one (1) tract of land [Tract 19 of the D. Atkins 

Survey, Abstract No. 1] into two (2) parcels of land [Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Burke Addition] for 
the purpose of subdividing the tract of land into two (2) parcels. 

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and 

this plat, conforming to the requirements for final plats as stated in the Subdivision 
Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances, is recommended for conditional approval 
pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 

 
 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 

conditions stipulated in the Recommendation section below. 
 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Recommendation section of this case memo, 

this plat is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in 
the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the final plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Burke Addition, staff 
would recommend the following conditions: 
 
1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be 

addressed prior to the filing of this plat; 
 

2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this final plat shall conform to the 
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code, the International Building Code, 
the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and 
with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
On September 13, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to 
recommend approval of the final plat per staff's recommendations by a vote of 6-0 with 
Commissioner Renfro absent.  
 

55
55



City of Rockwall
Project Plan Review History

8/25/2016

Project Number P2016-039
1406 Ridge Road

1406 RIDGE RD

BURKE, CASEY JOE AND ANDREA GAYDEN
Project Name

FINAL
Type
Subtype

Applied
Approved
Closed
Expired
Status 

8/12/2016

LM

LM
Owner
Applicant MADDOX SURVEY

Site Address City, State Zip

Parcel No
CARROLL ESTATES SUBD 19 NULL 19
Subdivision Tract Block Lot No

8/12/2016

0001-0000-0019-00-0R

Zoning

General Plan

STAFF REVIEWStatus

PLAT

ROCKWALL, TX 75087

Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

BUILDING John Ankrum 8/12/2016 8/25/2016 138/19/2016 APPROVED

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 8/12/2016 8/19/2016 See Condition
(8/19/2016 1:34 PM AW)
Driveways to be approved by TXDOT and City. May need a variance

78/19/2016 APPROVED W/ CONDITIONS

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 8/12/2016 8/17/2016 58/19/2016 APPROVED

GIS Lance Singleton 8/12/2016 8/23/2016 118/19/2016 APPROVED

PLANNING Korey Brooks 8/12/2016 8/24/2016 Comments
(8/24/2016 2:55 PM KB)
P2016-039 Burkes Ridge Please address the following comments (M= Mandatory Comments; I = Informational Comments).

I.1  This a request by Jay Maddox of Maddox Survey on behalf of Casey & Andrea Burke for the approval of a final plat of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Burke Addition being a 
2.970-acre tract of land identified as Tract 19 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 10 (SF-10) District, 
situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1406 Ridge Road.
I.2  For questions or comments concerning this case, please contact Korey Brooks in the Planning Department at (972) 772-6434 or email kbrooks@rockwall.com.
M.3  For reference, include the case number (P2016-039) in the lower right hand corner of all pages on future submittals.
I.4  Staff has identified the aforementioned items necessary to continue the submittal process.  Please make these revisions and corrections, and provide any 
additional information that is requested by September 7, 2016.  The Park Board Meeting is September 7, 2016.  The Planning & Zoning Worksession date for this case 
will be August 30, 2016.  The Planning and Zoning Meeting for this case is September 13, 2016.  
I.5  The City Council meeting date and subsequent approval for this plat is September 19, 2016.

128/19/2016 APPROVED

Project Reviews.rpt Page 1 of 156
56



P2016-039 
Burke’s Ridge 
Final Plat 

P2016-039- LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK A, BURKE'S RIDGE
FINAL PLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I57

57



58
58



59
59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

60
60



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 32 (PD-32) [ORDINANCE NO. 10-21] AND THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A 4.034-ACRE PORTION OF A LARGER 
6.915-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOTS 3A, 4A & 5A, 
ISAAC BROWN ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY 
EXHIBIT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Jason Lentz of Atticus Real Estate on behalf of 
Atticus Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a PD Development Plan for 36 townhomes to be 
situated within the Residential Subdistrict of Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) on a 
4.034-acre portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land identified as Lots 3A, 4A & 5A, Isaac 
Brown Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and more fully described in Exhibit 
‘A’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and 
incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing 
body of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the 
ordinances of the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, 
and have held public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity 
thereof, and the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that 
Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 10-21] and the Unified Development 
Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  That Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 10-21] and the 
Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38], as heretofore amended, shall be further 
amended by amending the Concept Plan approved with Ordinance No. 10-21 and the official 
zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to approve a PD Development Plan for the Subject 
Property; and, 
 
Section 2. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the PD Development Plan, depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘B’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 
approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; and, 
 
Section 3. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Concept Building Elevations, depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 

61
61



approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; and, 
 
Section 4.  That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for in Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 10-21], the Unified 
Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38], and in compliance with the following conditions and 
requirements: 
 

1) Cross access (as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance) shall be provided to the 
property directly north of the subject property; 

 
2) Prior to the submittal of a final plat the applicant shall submit and seek approval of a 

detailed site plan that demonstrates compliance with all applicable standards of Planned 
Development District 32 (PD-32) [as amended] and this ordinance, and with the 
guidelines contained in Resolution No. 10-40; and, 
 

3) The building elevations submitted with the site plan will require a recommendation from 
the Architectural Review Board (ARB) prior to approval by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission (and City Council if necessary); and, 
 

4) An open space master plan will need to be submitted with the site plan.  The open space 
master plan will need to be reviewed by the Parks Board; and, 

 
5) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit and seek approval of 

a final plat. 
 
Section 5. The official zoning map of the City of Rockwall, Texas be corrected to reflect the 
changes in zoning described in this ordinance; 
 
Section 6.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate 
offense; 
 
Section 7.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any 
reason judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision 
of this ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other 
person, firm, corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, 
or provision of the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have 
adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this 
end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 
Section 8.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between 
this ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City 
Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that 
is different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or 
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified 
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits 
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City 
Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
Section 9.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 

62
62



the publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides; 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2016. 

 
      

 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  August 15, 2016 
 
2nd Reading: September 6, 2016 

63
63



BEING situated in the Edward Teal Survey, Abstract Number 207, Rockwall County, Texas and being a 
portion of Lots 3A, 4A and 5A of Isaac Brown's Land Partitioned to His Heirs, an addition to the City of 
Rockwall according to the plat thereof recorded in Cabinet A, Slide 57, Plat Records, Rockwall County, 
Texas and being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at 1/2 inch iron rod with cap found at the northerly corner of said Lot 3A, said iron rod also 
being in the southeast right-of-way line of Summer Lee Drive (Variable Width Right-of-Way); 
 
THENCE South 45 degrees 18 minutes 32 seconds East, 832.95 feet along the northeast line of said Lot 
3A and the southwest line of Lot 2A of said Land Partitioned to a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped 
“RSCI” found at the easterly corner of said Lot 3A, said iron rod also being the southerly corner of said 
Lot 2A and being in the northwest line of Lot 1, Block 1, Hammer Addition, an addition to the City of 
Rockwall according to the plat thereof recorded in Cabinet D, Slide 210, Plat Records, Rockwall County, 
Texas; 
 
THENCE South 43 degrees 52 minutes 08 seconds West, 359.62 feet along the southeast line of said 
Lots 3A, 4A and 5A and along said northwest line of Hammer Addition and along the northwest line of Lot 
1, Block A, Murphy Plaza, an addition to the City of Rockwall according to the plat thereof recorded in 
Cabinet C, Slide 79, Plat Records, Rockwall County, Texas and along the northwest line of Lot 1, Block 
A, Murphy Plaza No. 2, an addition to the City of Rockwall according to the plat thereof recorded in 
Cabinet G, Slide 255, Plat Records, Rockwall County, Texas to a 1/2 inch iron rod with cap stamped 
“RSCI” found at the southerly corner of said Lot 5A, said iron rod also being the easterly corner of Lot 6A 
of said Land Partitioned; 
 
THENCE North 45 degrees 23 minutes 09 seconds West, 302.11 feet along the southwest line of said Lot 
5A and the northeast line of said Lot 6A; 
 
THENCE North 37 degrees 38 minutes 28 seconds East, 1.94 feet, departing said southwest line of Lot 
5A and said northeast line of Lot 6A to the beginning of a curve to the left; 
 
THENCE 154.89 feet, with said curve to the left, having a radius of 136.00 feet, through a central angle of 
65 degrees 15 minutes 22 seconds, whose long chord bears North 05 degrees 00 minutes 47 seconds 
East, 146.66 feet to the beginning of a reverse curve to the right; 
 
THENCE 65.78 feet, with said reverse curve to the right, having a radius of 138.00 feet, through a central 
angle of 27 degrees 18 minutes 33 seconds, whose long chord bears North 13 degrees 57 minutes 37 
seconds West, 65.15 feet; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 18 minutes 21 seconds West, 137.25 feet to the beginning of a curve to the 
left; 
 
THENCE 255.82 feet, with said curve to the left, having a radius of 339.00 feet, through a central angle of 
43 degrees 14 minutes 11 seconds, whose long chord bears North 23 degrees 39 minutes 31 seconds 
West, 249.79 feet; 
 
THENCE North 45 degrees 16 minutes 37 seconds West, 56.95 feet to a point in said southeast right-of-
way line of Summer Lee Drive; 
 
THENCE North 43 degrees 50 minutes 20 seconds East, 22.06 feet along said southeast right-of-way line 
of Summer Lee Drive to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 175,714 square feet or 4.034 acres 
of land, more or less. 

64
64



65
65



 

66
66



 

67
67



 

68
68



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

69
69



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS  
  

ORDINANCE NO. 16-49 
  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 18 FIRE PREVENTION 
AND PROTECTION, ARTICLE II, SECTION 18-34 AUTHORIZING THE 
OFFICE OF THE FIRE MARSHAL TO ASSESS FEES FOR FIRE 
PERMITS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATIONAL SERVICES, 
INSPECTIONS AND THIRD PARTY REVIEWS AND OTHER 
MISCELLANEOUS FEES; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City currently has Section 18-34 of the Code of Ordinances assessing 

Plan Review Fees for the Office of the Fire Marshal; and  
 
WHEREAS, the staff has reviewed its current fee schedule and has determined a need 

to revise its fee schedule for fire permits, inspections and third party reviews and recommends 
the adoption of the revised fee schedule;  

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 

THAT: 
 

Section 1.   The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rockwall shall be amended in 
Chapter 18 Fire Prevention and Protection, in Article II, Fire Code Standards by repealing the 
current Section 18-34 and adopting the newly revised Section 18-34 which shall heretofore read 
as follows: 

 
Sec. 18-34. Schedule of Permit Fees and Misc. Fees 
 
City of Rockwall approves and adopts the following SCHEDULE 
OF PERMIT FEES AND MISC. FEES for the Office of the Fire 
Marshal, which are subject to future modification. 

 
Section 2. Said fees associated with the newly adopted Sec. 18-34 are reflected and 

attached hereto in “Exhibit A” of this ordinance and shall be incorporated and made a part 
hereof; and 

 
Section 3.    If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section 

or provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the 
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or 
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this 
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City and 

shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except in those instances where the 

70
70



provisions of those ordinances are specifically repealed or those in direct conflict with the 
provisions of this ordinance. 

 
Section 5. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 

and approval, and it is so ordained. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, this 19th day of September, 2016. 

   
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Frank Garza, City Attorney 
 
 
1st Reading:  09-06-2016 

2nd Reading:  09-19-2016 

71
71



Exhibit “A” 
 

Schedule of Permit Fees and Misc. Fees 
Permits 

 (Construction & Operational) 
Permit Description Fee 

Automatic Fire Extinguishing Systems 
1. New Install  Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
2. Modification to Existing System 

a. Less than 20 heads No permit needed 
b. 20 or more heads, modifications 

alterations/modifications to the system risers, 
and/or special applications (i.e. water 
curtains). 

Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 

3. Kitchen Hood & Duct 1st page: $150, each additional page $100 
4. Special Hazard (clean agent, dry chem, etc.) Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 

Battery System 
New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 

Burn 
1. Trench Burn No Fee 
2. Open Burn / Bonfire No Fee 
3. Residential Permit $25 review fee per year and $50 On-site inspection 

(normal hours) or $150 after hour inspection 
Carbon Dioxide Systems (beverage dispending) 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Compressed Gases 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Cryogenic Fluids 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review  
Electronic Access Control Systems 

New Install & modifications 1st page: $150, each additional page $100 
Emergency Responder Radio Coverage System 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Fire Alarm and Detection Systems and related equipment 

1. New Install Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
2. Modification to Existing System 

a. Less than 20 devices  1st page: $150, each additional page $100 
b. 20 or more devices Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
c. Panel Replacement 1st page: $150, each additional page $100 
d. Minor notification device modifications (such 

as adding horn/strobe for fire sprinkler 
monitoring or expanded notification coverage 
with less than 10 devices added) 

No permit needed 

Fire Pump and related equipment 
New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 

Fireworks 
1. Fireworks -Outdoor No Fee 
2. Fireworks/Pyro – Proximate Audience No Fee 

Flammable and Combustible Liquids 
New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 

Gates and Barricades (across fire apparatus access roads) 
New Install & modifications No Fee 

Hazardous Materials 

72
72



New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
High-Piled Storage 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Industrial Ovens 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
LP-gas 

New Install & modifications No Fee 
Model Rocketry 

Per Event No Fee 
Private Fire Hydrants 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Smoke Control or Smoke Exhaust Systems 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Solar Photovoltaic Power Systems 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Spraying and Dipping 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Standpipe Systems 

New Install & modifications Actual cost of 3rd party plan review 
Tanks 
Underground Tanks  

New Install & modifications 1st page: $150, each additional page $100 
Aboveground Tanks 

New Install & modifications 1st page: $150, each additional page $100 
Temporary (Construction Site) Tanks 

New Install & modifications No Fee 
Removal of Tank No Fee 
Temporary Membrane Structures and Tents 

New Install & modifications No Fee 
Traffic Calming Devices (Speed Humps) 

New Install & modifications No Fee 
Two-Way Communication System 

New Install & modifications 1st page: $150, each additional page $100 
Underground Fire Service Systems 

New Install & modifications 1st page: $150, each additional page $100 
Others 
All other Construction or Operational permits not specifically 
listed above (See IFC 105.6 and 105.7) 

No Fee, 1st page: $150, each additional page $100, or 
Actual cost of 3rd party plan review, as determination 
by Fire Code Official 

 
Miscellaneous Fees 

Fee Description Fee 
Inspections  
Outside of Normal Business Hours $50.00 per hour (min of 2 hrs.) 
Re-inspection fee 
The re-inspection fee would be assessed after 2 failed 
inspection to which a permit was issued.  

$50.00 

Fire Watch 
1. Per Fire Service Personnel  $50.00 per hour (min of 4 hrs.) 
2. Per Fire Apparatus  $400.00 per hour 

 
 
 

73
73



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

74
74



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager  
  
FROM: Timothy M. Tumulty, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
DATE: September 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Engineering Flood Study Review Contract Extension  
  
 

The City of Rockwall’s storm drainage system encompasses 14 separate watersheds 
(52 stream miles) located totally or partially within the corporate limits of the City. These 
watersheds have been analyzed for existing and fully developed conditions. Whenever a 
development occurs that potentially impacts any floodplain area, development standards 
requires a registered engineer to perform a flood study to determine the impacts to the 
floodplain and an engineering solution that minimizes the increase of water surface elevations 
and velocities. A flood study review fee was implemented in 2013 by the City for developments 
requiring a flood study to recoup our review cost. The City uses Hydrological Support 
Services, LLC. to perform reviews to verify City drainage requirement compliance. Their 
contract expires on September 30, 2016. Staff has been satisfied with their service and 
recommends extending the contract another year. 

Staff requests consideration of approval of the engineering services contract with 
Hydrological Support Services, LLC to perform flood study reviews for developments within 
the City in an amount not to exceed $40,000.00. Funding will be provided from the FY 2016-17 
Department Operations Budget and developer reimbursement. If you have any questions, 
please advise. 

 
      
 
 
 
 

 
TMT:em 
 
Attachment 
 
Cc: Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 Amy Williams, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
 Jeremy White, P.E., CFM, Civil Engineer 

File 
 
 

75
75



76
76



77
77



78
78



79
79



80
80



81
81



82
82



83
83



84
84



85
85



86
86



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

87
87



 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
MEMORANDUM  

  
 
TO:               Brad Griggs, Assistant City Manager 
 
FROM:        Andy Hesser, Parks and Recreation Manager  
 
DATE:          September 14, 2016   
       
SUBJECT:   FACILITY USE AGREEMENT RENEWAL FOR YELLOWJACKET PARK  
  
 
 
In 2004, Lake Pointe Church (LPC) approached the City about using the Yellowjacket Park ball 
fields to offer a youth sports program.  In exchange, LPC agreed to contribute money and 
resources to add park amenities such as new fences, backstops, dugouts, restroom and play 
area valued at nearly $100,000. 
 
At the passing of the original agreement, LPC entered into a new facility use agreement with the 
City to continue their youth baseball program in February of 2014.  The initial term of this 
agreement expired July 1, 2016, which required LPC to pay The City $10,000 in the first year, 
$11,000 the second year and $12,000 in years 2016 through 2018.  The fees cover all non-
resident fees and field use fees. The City maintains the park in a safe attractive condition and 
LPC prepares and stripes the fields for their games on weekends.  
 
Additionally, The City retains the right to schedule and use the fields to first meet the needs of 
the teams registered in the Rockwall Baseball Softball League (RBSL).  The remaining field 
space is made available to LPC with a prorated fee determined as a percentage of field space 
available versus total amount requested. 
 
LPC has requested to renew the contract for the term of one year.  Contingent on Council 
approval and final review by the City Attorney, the contract would be in effect immediately and 
expire July 1, 2017.  This would be the first of two allowable extensions, per the original contract 
language.  The initial contract period was for three years.   
 
As a matter of historical perspective, this has been and continues to be a mutually beneficial 
relationship.  At the September meeting, Park Board voted unanimously of members present to 
ask that Council consider renewing the Facility Use Agreement between the City and LPC. 
 
 

88
88



89
89



FACILITY USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AND THE LAKEPOINTE CHURCH

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL § 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockwall, Texas ( City) is a home rule city with all the rights, 

powers, and privileges set forth by the applicable statutes of the State of Texas and the City

Charter; and

WHEREAS, the City is empowered pursuant to those statutes and said City Charter to

provide for the regulation and improvement of all public grounds, including parks, located within

the City' s limits; and

WHEREAS, Lakepointe Church ( LPC) desires to operate a baseball program utilizing

City athletic fields; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to promote the health, welfare, and safety of its citizens: 

WITNESSETH

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein

and the mutual benefits flowing to both the City and LPC, and other good and valuable

considerations recited herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the

City and the Associations do CONTRACT, COVENANT, WARRANT, AND AGREE as

follows: 

I. 

INCORPORATION

All matters contained in the above and foregoing preamble are incorporated herein and

made part of this Facilities Use Agreement (Agreement) as if copied herein in its entirety. 

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church 1

90
90



II. 

DEFINITIONS

A. The terms " athletic facility," " athletic fields," or " fields" mean the eight fields at

Leon Tuttle Park, the two fields at Harry Myers Park and the three fields
Yellowjacket Park, and any other location made available by the City on which
athletic events are or can be held. 

B. " Director" means the Director of Parks and Recreation for the City of Rockwall, 
or his/her designee. 

C. " City Manager" means the City Manager for the City of Rockwall, or his/her
designee. 

III. 

FIELD USE

A. Both the City and LPC acknowledge that the fields are owned by the City and are
provided for the benefit of citizens of the City. At any time the fields are not
being used by LPC, the City may assign such fields to other associations or
parties. The City shall maintain approval over the use of the fields at all times. 
Under terms of this Agreement, the City permits LPC to use the fields to provide
youth baseball activities. 

B. LPC shall not assign this Agreement or rent out any part of the fields or
concession facilities without prior written consent of the City. Any request for
assignment or rental made by a third party shall be referred to the Director. All
parties understand that LPC' s use of the fields is nonexclusive. 

C. No use of the City' s fields is permitted outside the terms of this Agreement, as set
forth herein. 

D. The City of Rockwall will coordinate the Rockwall Baseball and Softball League
for children 5 -14 years old. It is the goal to provide two practice periods per week
to each team prior to the season and fields for one practice and two games per
week and once the season has commenced. This goal will be the basis for the

allocation of all City owned fields. Once this goal is met, additional fields may be
available to LPC. It shall be the goal of LPC to provide one practice time and one
game time per week during the season. Fields shall be allocated in a manner to
meet the goals of each party. 

E. At the beginning of each season, a representative from LPC will meet with the
Director to work through game and practice schedules. The Director will have
final approval over all game and practice schedules of LPC and any other league
or organization. 

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church 2

91
91



IV. 

OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY

The City shall: 

A. Maintain all fences and gates in a safe and secure condition; 

B. Maintain all turf areas on the fields to include mowing, weed control, fertilizing
and herbicide spraying; 

C. Perform all pre- season clay and turf maintenance to include adding clay, clay
renovation and cutting infield arcs; 

D. Provide sand, soil, etc. to be used in leveling or backfilling low areas when
deemed necessary, within normal yearly operating budget constraints; 

E. Drag infields daily, Monday through Friday, weather permitting during regularly
scheduled league games, and make -up games. The City will drag fields on
Saturdays and Sundays upon request subject to applicable fees ( see attached fee
schedule). Services do not include preparation for foul weather; 

F. Painting or chalking of outfield boundary lines on the playing surface of the park
areas; 

G. Haul off trash THAT HAS BEEN DEPOSITED in trash receptacles as

warranted. The City shall provide trash receptacles; 

H. Maintain structural integrity of concession stands, restrooms and storage
buildings, including repair or replacements of damaged roofs, doors, and
windows; 

I. Maintain all area and field lighting systems where applicable; 

J. Repair or replace lights, poles, wiring fuses, transformers and other equipment
related to the lighting of each field to be used by LPC where applicable and
within normal operating budget constraints; 

K. Pay all electric and water bills in connection with use of the fields; 

L. Maintain any field irrigation system and watering schedules of turf areas; 

M. Maintain any adjacent park irrigation systems and the scheduling of watering turf
areas; 

N. Maintain restroom facilities; 

O. Maintain and repair parking areas; and

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church 3

92
92



P. Provide Hollywood style bases, home plates, and pitching rubbers for use by
LPC. 

Q. Determine, in its sole discretion, field closures due to weather. Determinations

will be made by 3: 30 pm on weekdays. Weather will be monitored beyond the
determination times ifnecessary. 

R. Perform its duties only to the extent that budgeted funds and manpower are
available. If the City is unable to fulfill its obligation due to budget restraints, it
will not be obligated to LPC for any monetary damages. 

S. Provide pitching mounds and bases according to the rules and regulations of the
relevant age group of teams participating in practices and games. The initial field
and mound set -up shall be at no charge to LPC. The City shall charge a $ 50 fee
for each additional mound construction and/or demolition that is required for non- 

regular season games or additional tournaments (see attached fee schedule). 

T. To be eligible to be on the field or in the dugout during league games, coaches
must pass a criminal history check. The eligibility criteria for coach participation
shall be determined by the City of Rockwall Parks and Recreation Advisory
Board in accordance with the adopted coach' s eligibility policy. LPC coach' s
eligibility procedure will be accepted in lieu of City program. 

0

OBLIGATIONS OF LPC

LPC shall: 

A. Provide a field manager schedule no later than 7 days prior to the beginning of
each season. The field manager shall be responsible for unlocking and locking
the gates and shall be on site during every regular season game and tournament
game, and is responsible for game day policing of all litter on their field(s), to
include playing areas, dugouts, fences, backstops, bleachers, concession stands, 
and adjacent grounds; 

B. Monitor any restrooms at the fields and keep them stocked and assist with
cleaning when needed; 

C. Pay a key deposit prior to commencement of regularly scheduled practices and
league games, if applicable; 

D. LPC shall pay the City of Rockwall a fee for field use according to the following
schedule. The " field use" fee shall include all " non- resident" player fees as well

as fee for the field use and the preparation of the playing areas. 

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church

93
93



2014: Non - resident fees and field use shall be $ 10, 000

2015: Non - Resident fees and field use fees shall be $ 11, 000

2016 -2018: Non - Resident Fees and Field use fees shall be $ 12,000

If the CITY is unable to meet the field use needs of LPC as defined in Section III. 
D., LPC will pay the City the pro -rata share of the field usage charges ( i.e. if LPC
field use requests total 100 practice /game times to meet the goals of LPC as
described in Section III, D., and the City is only able to provide 93 game /practice
times, LPC will pay the CITY 93% of the difference between the total " non- 

resident" fees and the maximum amount to be paid by LPC). 

E. Pay all fees associated with additional services provided, such as pitching mound
construction and weekend field preparation, according to attached fee schedule; 

F. Obtain advanced written approval from the Director to charge admissions to any
field or park for LPC events; 

G. Use the fields within the policies, procedures, and rules established for park usage
by the Parks and Recreation Department. Policies, procedures, and rules are as
follows: 

a. No alcoholic beverages allowed in the park. Ordinance No. 
19.3f; 

b. No skates, skateboards, or bikes allowed in the park; 

C. Pets must be on leashes at all times. Ordinance No. 5. 18; 

d. No glass containers allowed around the athletic facilities; 

e. Users will not use the fields when there is inclement weather or
when the fields are unplayable; 

f. Users will park in designated parking areas. Ordinance No. 
19.3d; 

g. City field curfew is 11 p.m., Ordinance No. 19.3e. This can be
waived for tournaments with permission from the Director. ( No

league games may start after 8: 30 p.m.); 

h. Illegal entry by players or coaches may result in that team' s loss of
field use for practice privileges. 

H. Not discriminate against any person or persons because of race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, or national origin; 

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church

94
94



I. Provide sufficient notice of all scheduled make -up game times ( preferably a one- 
week notice). Notice shall be given to the Director; 

J. Not engage in any business on the premises or do anything in connection
therewith that shall violate any existing municipal, state, or federal law or
ordinance, or use the same in such manner as to constitute a nuisance. The City
reserves the right to exclude any individual or group from its facilities based on
conduct, which it determines in its sole discretion to be objectionable or contrary
to City interests. LPC hereby consents to the exercise of such authority by the
City over its members, officials, and agents; 

K. Submit all of the following to the Director: 

a. A list of current participants, including name and address, as well
as coaches, leadership staff, and officials, including the name, 
address, day and night time telephone numbers, and e-mail address
of all adults; 

b. A schedule of games with coaches and rosters to be played at the

City' s fields; 

C. A copy of a general liability insurance policy naming the City as
additional insured in the amount of at least $ 1, 000,000.00; 

d. A schedule with names and contact numbers of on site field

representatives during the spring and fall seasons; 

e. Policies and procedures for dealing with medical emergencies and
hazardous weather conditions; 

f. Any proposal to install, construct, alter, or modify any temporary
or permanent structures, signs, equipment, or other related items, 
before commencing any work. All such proposals must be

approved in writing by the Director in advance of construction. 
All applicable City codes must be followed. Approval of the
proposal shall rest solely with the Director. Permanent structures
shall become property of the City; 

L. Designate a point of contact that will be responsible for correspondence with the

City; 

M. Communicate all necessary repairs and/ or service requests to the Director; 

N. Account for non - resident use of City fields by requiring a $ 30.00 payment per
non - resident participant, and such amounts shall be remitted to the City by LPC
which is included in fee contained in Section V. D. 

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church 6

95
95



VI. 

CESSATION OF PLAY

A. LPC agrees and understands that the City, acting through an employee designated
by the City Manager, the Director, or any Rockwall Police Officer shall have the
authority to order cessation of any ball game, practice, or other activity of LPC on
City fields. Such a cessation order by any one of said representatives of the City
shall be the result of a determination by said representative that continuation of
play would be unsafe or not in the interest of the City or the players. Play or use
may resume when approved by the representative of the City who issued the
cessation order or the City Manager. 

VII. 

LIABILITY INSURANCE

A. The City, its employees, agents, and landlords shall not be liable to the LPC or to
any employee, member, customer, or agent of the LPC for any damage caused by
negligence of the LPC, its members, employees, customers, volunteers or agents. 

The LPC hereby releases, relieves, quit claim and holds harmless, fully
indemnifies and agrees to defend the City, its employees, agents, and landlords
from any and all claims, damages, injuries, law suits, judgments, or causes of
action of ay type ( including but not limited to any action taken as a result of the
sale of food and beverages at the concession facility) arising out of the Agreement
or any reasonable action taken pursuant thereto. 

B. LPC agrees to acquire and maintain an insurance policy or policies that will
provide liability coverage and medical coverage for medical expenses resulting
from injury of players while engaged in the Association' s activities. Said

coverage shall be with an insurance company and have such limits as shall be
acceptable to the City Manager. Evidence of such insurance policies shall be
provided to the City prior to use of fields by LPC and the City shall be listed as an
additional insured. 

VIII. 

RULE CHANGES

A. LPC shall submit a copy of all rule changes to the Parks and Recreation Director
for approval before the beginning of the season in which the rule changes will be
effective. 

Facility Use Agreement Between the City ofRockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church

96
96



WIfl

FINANCIAL RECORDS

A. The City shall have the right to examine LPC' s annual audit, upon request, by the
City Director of Parks and Recreation, Assistant City Manager, or City Manager. 
LPC shall be given reasonable notice and the City will schedule a time convenient
for LPC. 

X. 

DEFAULT BY LPC

A. This Agreement may be canceled in the event of default by LPC. The City may
by action of the City Council declare LPC in default of this Agreement and the
Agreement canceled if any of the following conditions are present: 

a. LPC ceases or is unable to provide or perform the functions listed
in this Agreement; 

b. LPC becomes inactive or fails to initiate advance planning for any
season during the term of this contract; 

G. LPC provides a program in any year that is not acceptable to the
City. 

XI. 

TERM OF AGREEMENT

A. This Agreement runs from February 15, 2014, to July 1, 2016 and shall be
renewable by consent of each party for a one year period a maximum of two
times. 

B. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving thirty days written notice to
the other party. 

XII. 

VENUE

A. Venue for any proceedings under this Agreement shall be in Rockwall County, 
Texas. 

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church

97
97



XIII. 

SEVERABILITY

A. If any clause, section, paragraph, or portion of this Agreement shall be found to
be illegal, unlawful, unconstitutional, or void for any reason, the balance of the
contract shall remain in full force and effect and the parties shall be deemed to

have contracted as if said clause, section, paragraph, or portion had not been in

the Agreement initially. 

XIV. 

SCHEDULE OF FEES

Key Deposit $ 300

Trash Hourly Rate $ 25/ hour per worker

Weekend Field Preparation $ 25/ hour

Non - resident Fee $ 30 per individual

Pitching Mound Construction/Demolition $ 50 per mound each time

LPC' S NON - COMPLIANCE WITH ANY OF THE ABOVE STATED POLICIES, 

PROCEDURES, OR RULES COULD RESULT IN IMMEDIATE TERMINATION OF

THIS AGREEMENT BY THE CITY. 

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church 9

98
98



and AGREED this 3rd day of February, 2014. 

RICK CROWLEY, CITY MANAGER

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS

CARTER SHOtWELL, EXECUTIVE PASTOR
LAKEPOINTE CHURCH

14- 05

Facility Use Agreement Between the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the Lakepointe Church 10

99
99



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

100
100



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2016 
 
APPLICANT: Kevin Dale Wommack & Pamela McCollum 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Z2016-023; 1970 Copper Ridge Circle (SUP) 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kevin Dale Wommack & Pamela 
McCollum for the approval of an amendment to Specific Use Permit (SUP) No. S-118 
[Ordinance No. 14-02] to allow for an accessory building that exceeds the maximum size 
requirements as stipulated by Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code for 
a 1.4952-acre tract of land identified as Lot 17, Block B, Sterling Farms Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District, 
addressed as 1970 Copper Ridge Circle, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The applicants Kevin Dale Wommack and Pamela McCollum are requesting the approval of an 
amendment to Specific Use Permit (SUP) No. S-118 to allow for an accessory building that 
exceeds the maximum size requirements stipulated Article VI, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  On December 16, 2013, the City Council approved an SUP allowing 
for an accessory building that does not meet the exterior material requirements for a Single 
Family Estate (SFE-1.5) District.  The current metal building is 22-feet by 31-feet or 
approximately or 682 sq. ft.  The applicants are proposing to expand their current metal building 
by approximately 30-feet for a building footprint that is 22-feet x 62-feet or 1,364 sq. ft.  With the 
expansion, the accessory building will be approximately 114 sq. ft. larger than the maximum 
size allowed in a SFE-1.5 District.  According to the UDC, the maximum square footage for an 
accessory building in an SFE-1.5 District is 1,250 sq. ft.   
 
NOTIFICATION: 
 
On August 19, 2016, Staff mailed 36 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet 
of the subject property.  Staff also notified the Lofland Farms and Timber Creek Estates HOAs, 
which are the only HOAs/Neighborhood Organizations that are within 1,500-feet of the subject 
property and participating in the notification program.  Additionally, staff posted a sign on the 
subject property as required by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report 
was drafted, staff had not received any notices returned.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Should the City Council choose to approve the SUP request, staff would offer the following 
conditions of approval: 
 

1)  The accessory building be subject to the operational conditions contained in the SUP 
ordinance, which are as follows: 

 
A. The accessory building shall generally conform to the approved site plan and 

building elevations depicted in Exhibits ‘A’ & ‘B’ of the attached ordinance. 

101
101



 
B. The accessory building shall not exceed a maximum size of 1,364 square feet.  

 
C. The accessory building is subject to administrative review in the event that the 

Subject Property is sold, conveyed or altered in any manner 
 

2) Any construction or building necessary to complete this request must conform to the 
requirements set forth by the UDC, the International Building Code, the Rockwall 
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other 
applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and 
federal government. 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
On September 13, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to 
recommend approval of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) with staff's recommendations by a vote 
of 6-0 with Commissioner Renfro absent. 
 
 
 

102
102



City of Rockwall
Project Plan Review History

8/26/2016

Project Number Z2016-023
SUP for 1970 Copper Ridge Circle

1970 COPPER RIDGE CIR

KEVIN DALE WOMMACK
Project Name

SUP
Type
Subtype

Applied
Approved
Closed
Expired
Status 

7/14/2016

LM

LM
Owner
Applicant KEVIN DALE WOMMACK

Site Address City, State Zip

Parcel No
STERLING FARMS ADDITION 17 B 17
Subdivision Tract Block Lot No

7/14/2016

5069-000B-0017-00-0R

Zoning

General Plan

STAFF REVIEWStatus

ZONING

ROCKWALL, TX 75032

Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

BUILDING John Shannon 7/14/2016 8/17/2016 347/21/2016 APPROVED

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 7/14/2016 8/19/2016 See Condition
(8/19/2016 1:32 PM AW)
Check location of septic system to make sure there aren't any conflicts

367/21/2016 APPROVED W/ CONDITIONS

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 7/14/2016 8/17/2016 347/21/2016 APPROVED

PLANNING Korey Brooks 7/14/2016 8/24/2016 Comments
(8/25/2016 10:24 AM KB)
Z2016-023 SUP for Accessory Building:
Please address the following comments (M= Mandatory Comments; I = Informational Comments)

I.1  This is a request by Kevin Dale Wommack & Pamela McCollum for the approval of an amendment to Specific Use Permit (SUP) No. S-118 [Ordinance No. 14-02] to 
allow for an accessory building that exceeds the maximum size requirements as stipulated by Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code for a 
1.4952-acre tract of land identified as Lot 17, Block B, Sterling Farms Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) 
District, addressed as 1970 Copper Ridge Circle.  
I.2  For questions or comments concerning this case please contact Korey Brooks in the Planning Department at (972) 772-6434 or email kbrooks@rockwall.com. 
M.3  For reference, include the case number (Z2016-023) in the lower right hand corner of all pages on future submittals.
I.4  Please review the attached draft ordinance prior to the September 13, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting.
I.5   The Planning and Zoning Worksession is August 30th.  The Planning and Zoning Meeting is September 13.   
I.6  The projected City Council meeting dates for this case will be September 19, 2016 [1st Reading] & October  3, 2016 [2nd Reading].

417/21/2016 APPROVED W/ CONDITIONS

Project Reviews.rpt Page 1 of 1103
103



DIAMOND WAY
CO

PP
ER

 RI
DG

E

SFE-1.5

AG

Z2016-023 - SUP FOR 1970 COPPER RIDGE CIRCLE
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 75 150 225 30037.5
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I104

104



Fontanna
Ranch

Timber
Creek

Estates
Lofland Farms

0 390 780 1,170 1,560195
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

DISCOVERY

JOH
N K

ING

SPRINGER

STATE HIGHWAY 276

FM
 54

9

DA
TA

TEAGLE

FIELDCREST AVERY

INNOVATION

MASSEY
DIAMOND WAY

TIMBER CREEK

DERBY

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2016-023

1970 Copper Ridge Circle
Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: SUP for 1970 Copper Ridge Circle
Zoning: SUP

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 08/15/2016

Legend
Subject Property

1500ft Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

105
105



1715

1791

2640
2578

3093

1858
1900

1905

1890

3125

3085

1918

1895

3109

19701975

1910

1950

1982

1935

1921

3253

1915

3205

1908

1950

1930

1970

3303

1955

3141 31733157 3221

3075

1930

3269

1935

1975

1913

3237

1910

1955

3055

1930

1993

1855

1915

2690

1935

1955

1975

2205 2301

1981

2205
257823152305

2000

2110

2070

2140

2871

2130

2030

2020

2040

2050

2060

2120

3275

FM
 54

9

STATE HIGHWAY 276

DIAMOND WAY

SIL
VE

R 
VIE

W

GOLDEN

ST
ER

LIN
G

CO
PP

ER
 R

ID
GE

0 210 420 630 840105
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

STATE HIGHWAY 276

SPRINGER RD

S F
M 

549

STA
BLE

GLE
N D

R

AVERY DR
DIAMOND WAY DR

TIMBER CREEK DR

MASSEY LN

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2016-023

1970 Copper Ridge Circle
Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: SUP for 1970 Copper Ridge Circle
Zoning: SUP

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 08/15/2015

Legend
Subject Property
500ft Buffer
Notified Properties

106
106



107
107



108
108



109
109



110
110

kbrooks
Callout
Proposed Expansion



111

111

jsanford
Text Box
Sheet Metal: 29 Gauge Galvanized polyester paintedframing: 14 Gauge GalvanizedConcrete: 4" thick with 3/8 rebar with moisture barrier     8 to 12" footer around perimeterSpray Foam: standard 2lb spray foam



  CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-118 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
[ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS 
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO AMEND SPECIFIC USE PERMIT 
NO. S-118 [ORDINANCE NO. 14-02] TO ALLOW FOR AN ACCESSORY 
BUILDING THAT EXCEEDS THE MAXIMUM SIZE REQUIREMENTS ON 
A 1.50-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND ZONED SINGLE FAMILY ESTATE 1.5 
(SFE-1.5) AND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 17, BLOCK B, STERLING FARMS 
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, a request has been made by Kevin Dale Wommack and Pamela McCollum to amend 
Specific Use Permit No. S-118 [Ordinance No. 14-02] for the purpose of increasing the size of an 
existing accessory building situated on a 1.50-acre parcel of land, zoned Single Family Estate 1.5 
(SFE-1.5) District, and being identified as Lot 17, Block B, Sterling Farms Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, addressed as 1970 Copper Ridge Circle, and being more specifically 
described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject 
Property and incorporated reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code [Ordinance 
No. 04-38] and Ordinance No. 14-02 of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.   That the enactment of this Specific Use Permit (SUP) Ordinance shall supersede all 
requirements stipulated in Ordinance No. 14-02; 
 
Section 2.    That the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall, as 
heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit 
allowing for the establishment of an accessory building that exceeds the maximum size 
requirements and that does not conform to the minimum masonry requirements for accessory 
buildings in a Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District as stipulated by Article IV, Permissible 
Uses, and Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance 
No. 04-38] on the Subject Property; and 
 
Section 3. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
described in this Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance and as specifically set forth in Section 3.2, 
Single-Family Estate (SF/E 1.5) District, of Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified 

D
R

A
FT

  
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
 

10
.0

3.
20

16

112
112



Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as 
amended herein by the granting of this zoning change, and as my be amended in the future, and 
shall be subject to the additional following conditions:    
 
1) The accessory building shall generally conform to the approved site plan and building elevations 

depicted in Exhibits ‘A’ & ‘B’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The accessory building shall not exceed a maximum size of 1,364 square feet.  
 

3) The accessory building is subject to administrative review in the event that the Subject Property 
is sold, conveyed or altered in any manner. 

 
Section 4. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

 
Section 5. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 
be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

 
Section 6. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not to 
exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and every 
day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 
Section 7. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or provision 
to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, the 
adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of any 
other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and the 
City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance 
without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
Section 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and the 
publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3RD DAY OF OCTOBER, 2016. 

 
      
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  September 19, 2016 
 
2nd Reading: October 3, 2016 
 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
 

10
.0

3.
20

16

113
113



 

D
R

A
FT

  
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
 

10
.0

3.
20

16

114
114



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
 

10
.0

3.
20

16

115
115



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

116
116



 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
MEMORANDUM   

 
   

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
  
CC: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 Brad Griggs, Assistant City Manager 
 
FROM:  Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
  
DATE: September 19, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Z2016-025; Harbor Urban Center Condominiums   
 

 
In response to the City Council’s direction at the September 6, 2016 City Council meeting staff 
has taken the 50-foot street cross section to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a 
recommendation, and at the September 13, 2016 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting the 
Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the applicants 
request by a vote of 6-0, with Chairman Renfro absent.  As was discussed at the meeting on 
September 6, 2016, the applicant is requesting a PD Development Plan to change the required 
Street Type ‘G’ cross section contained in Ordinance No. 10-21 (i.e. Planned Development 
District 32 [PD-32]).  This street cross section calls for eight (8) foot sidewalks and parkways, a 
24-foot travel lane and an eight (8) foot parallel parking lane in a 60-foot right-of-way.  The new 
cross section proposed by the applicant proposes eight (8) foot sidewalks, a two (2) foot 
parkway (on the northern/western side of the roadway), a 24-foot travel lane and an eight (8) 
foot parallel parking lane in a 50-foot right-of-way.  The applicant has stated that the adjacent 
creek inhibits the ability to provide the required street cross section; however, in the applicant’s 
opinion -- and as was stated at the September 6, 2016 City Council meeting -- the proposed 
road section meets the intent of the ordinance because the creek area will be preserved as 
open space, which mitigates his inability to provide a wider parkway.  A side-by-side comparison 
of the two (2) roadways is included in the attached packet. 
 
Based on questions by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the adjacent property owner 
at the August 30, 2016 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, staff has reviewed the 
proposed alignment of the roadway and determined that it does meet the alignment depicted on 
the Streetscape Plan contained in Ordinance No. 10-21.  It should also be pointed out that the 
proposed alignment does not increase/change the adjacent property owner’s responsibility for 
completing the roadway.  Considering this, it should be noted that the only issue being 
addressed with the proposed PD Development Plan is the amended cross section for Street 
Type ‘G’.  Staff has included a copy of the proposed concept plan for reference.  As was stated 
previously, since this request [i.e. a request to modify an established street cross section] does 
not fall under the waivers listed in Section 9.C, Waivers of Design Standards, of Ordinance No. 
10-21, the waiver is considered to be an amendment to Planned Development District 32 (PD-
32), and in accordance with the amendment process staff has prepared a draft ordinance for the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council’s review (see attached draft ordinance).  In 
addition, according to Ordinance No. 10-21, “(w)aivers may only be approved by the City 
Council following a recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission … (i)n order to 
approve a waiver the City Council must find that the waiver: 
 

(a) Meets the general intent of the PD District or Subdistrict in which the property is located; 
and,  

117
117



(b) Will result in an improved project which will be an attractive contribution to the PD 
District or Subdistrict; and, 

(c) Will not prevent the implementation of the intent of this PD District.” 
  
As was stated previously, this case is a discretionary decision for the City Council. 
 
 

118
118



24'  ROADWAY

6' LANDSCAPE AREA

PROP. BLDG

PROPERTY LINE

MINIMUM 2' BLDG SETBACK6' LANDSCAPE AREA

EXISTING CREEK

36'  R-O-W

MAX SLOES IN
LANDSCAPE AREAS 3:1

MAX ROADWAY
CROSS-SLOPE 4%

RETAINING WALL(S)
INSTALLED AS NEEDED

24'  ROADWAYPROP. BLDG

EXISTING CREEK

50'  R.O.W.

CROWNED STREET

2%2%

8' SIDEWALK
8' PARALLEL PARKING

10'  NATURAL PRESERVE
/LANDSCAPE BUFFER

8' SIDEWALK

2' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

24'  ROADWAYPROP. BLDG

60'  R.O.W.

CROWNED STREET

WATER
SANITARY

SEWER

STORM
SEWER

2%2%

3' LANDSCAPE BUFFER OUTSIDE R.O.W.

8' SIDEWALK
8' PARALLEL PARKING

8' SIDEWALK2' LANDSCAPE BUFFER IN R.O.W.
2' LANDSCAPE BUFFER IN R.O.W.

8' PARKWAY

3' LANDSCAPE BUFFER OUTSIDE R.O.W.

STREETLIGHT
CONDUIT
AND TREE

IRRIGATION

STREETLIGHT
CONDUIT
AND TREE

IRRIGATION

STORM
INLET

STORM
INLET

GAS

WATER
SANITARY

SEWER

STORM
SEWER

STREETLIGHT
CONDUIT
AND TREE

IRRIGATION

STREETLIGHT
CONDUIT
AND TREE

IRRIGATION

STORM
INLET

STORM
INLET

GAS

1' LANDSCAPE BUFFER OUTSIDE R.O.W.

SCALE:
SCHEMATIC STREET SECTION @ PUBLIC ROAD

1/4" = 1'-0"1

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, L.P.
5339 Alpha Rd., Suite 300, Dallas, TX 75240  |  972.701.9636  |  www.humphreys.com

 September 1, 2016

Z2016-025
A501

119
119



10 ft. setback

ENTRY/
EXIT

15 ft. setback

RIDGE R
OAD

HORIZON ROAD

SUMMER LE
E DRIVE

FU
TU

RE

PUBLIC ROAD

10 ft. setback

ACCESS EASEMENT

A2

A2

A2

A2

UPPER
GARAGE
ENTRY

LOWER
GARAGE

ENTRY/

CAVE AT
GROUND

FLOOR

ROOF
GARDEN

AT TOP
FLOOR

FIRE
TURN

CLUBHOUSE
@ 1ST FL
4,700 S.F.

PU
BL

IC
 R

OA
D

PUBLIC ROAD

PU
BL

IC
 R

OA
D

ACCESS EASEMENT

ACCESS EASEMENT

CONNEC
TIO

N

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, L.P.
5339 Alpha Rd., Suite 300, Dallas, TX 75240  |  972.701.9636  |  www.humphreys.com

 September 7, 2016

SCALE:  1" = 50'     (24"x36" SHEET)

100'50'0'

N

200' Z2016-025
A202

120
120



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 32 (PD-32) [ORDINANCE NO. 10-21] AND THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A 3.453-ACRE PORTION OF A LARGER 
6.915-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOTS 3A, 4A & 5A, 
ISAAC BROWN ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY 
EXHIBIT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Jason Lentz of Atticus Real Estate on behalf of 
Atticus Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a PD Development Plan for a 228 unit, condominium 
development to be situated within the Interior Subdistrict of Planned Development District 32 
(PD-32) on a 3.453-acre portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land identified as Lots 3A, 4A & 
5A, Isaac Brown Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and more fully described 
in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and 
incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing 
body of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the 
ordinances of the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, 
and have held public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity 
thereof, and the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that 
Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 10-21] and the Unified Development 
Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  That Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 10-21] and the 
Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38], as heretofore amended, shall be further 
amended by amending the Concept Plan approved with Ordinance No. 10-21 and the official 
zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to approve a PD Development Plan for the Subject 
Property; and, 
 
Section 2. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the PD Development Plan, depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘B’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 
approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; and, 
 
Section 3. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Concept Building Elevations, depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

3.
20

16
 

121
121



approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; and, 
 
Section 4.  That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for in Planned Development District 32 (PD-32) [Ordinance No. 10-21], the Unified 
Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38], and in compliance with the following conditions and 
requirements: 
 

1) The north/south public road connecting Summer Lee Drive to the southwest corner of 
the subject property shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the Street 
Type ‘G1’ standards stipulated in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance; and, 

 
2) The minimum building setback adjacent to Street Type ‘G1’ shall be one (1) foot; and, 

 
3) Prior to the submittal of a final plat the applicant shall submit and seek approval of a 

detailed site plan that demonstrates compliance with all applicable standards of Planned 
Development District 32 (PD-32) [as amended] and this ordinance, and with the 
guidelines contained in Resolution No. 10-40; and, 
 

4) The building elevations submitted with the site plan will require a recommendation from 
the Architectural Review Board (ARB) prior to approval by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission (and City Council if necessary); and, 
 

5) An open space master plan will need to be submitted with the site plan.  The open space 
master plan will need to be reviewed by the Parks Board; and, 

 
6) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit and seek approval of 

a final plat. 
 
Section 5. The official zoning map of the City of Rockwall, Texas be corrected to reflect the 
changes in zoning described in this ordinance; 
 
Section 6.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate 
offense; 
 
Section 7.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any 
reason judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision 
of this ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other 
person, firm, corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, 
or provision of the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have 
adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this 
end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 
Section 8.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between 
this ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City 
Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that 
is different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or 
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified 
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits 
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

3.
20

16
 

122
122



Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
Section 9.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
the publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides; 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 19TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2016. 

 
      

 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  September 6, 2016 
 
2nd Reading: September 19, 2016 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

3.
20

16
 

123
123



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
D

R
A

FT
  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

3.
20

16
 

124
124



D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

3.
20

16
 

125
125



 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

3.
20

16
 

126
126



D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

3.
20

16
 

127
127



 
D

R
A

FT
  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

3.
20

16
 

128
128



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

129
129



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

 
AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2016 
 
APPLICANT: Susan Gamez 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Z2016-028; 2001 Ridge Road (AG to RO) 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Susan Gamez for the approval of a 
zoning change from an Agricultural (AG) District to Residential Office (RO) District on a 0.478-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 7 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay 
(SOV) District, addressed as 2001 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND PURPOSE: 
 
The subject property is a 0.478-acre tract of land identified as 2001 Ridge Road, which is 
accessible off Ridge Road via Old County Road.  The subject property was annexed into the 
City on September 26, 1960 by Case No. A1960-004 (Ordinance No. 60-04), and was zoned 
Agricultural (AG) District.  Currently, an existing single family home is situated on the subject 
property.  The applicant is requesting to change the zoning of the subject property from an 
Agricultural (AG) District to a Residential Office (RO) District for the purpose of converting the 
existing single family home into a commercial business to accommodate a massage therapist 
office (i.e. EveryBody Massage).  
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS: 
 
The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 
 
North: Directly north of the subject property are two (2) tracts of land zoned Agricultural (AG) 

District.  The northern most parcel (i.e. 2005 Ridge Road) is currently occupied with a 
single family home.  Beyond these parcels is the Spring Sports Complex owned by the 
Rockwall Independent School District (RISD) and is zoned Single Family 7 (SF-7) 
District. 

 
South: Directly south of the subject property is a parcel of land (i.e. 2135 Ridge Road) zoned 

Commercial (C) District.  This property is occupied by a multi-tenant retail/office 
building identified as Yellow Jacket Plaza.  Beyond this property is the intersection of 
Ridge Road and W. Yellow Jacket Lane. 

 
East: Directly east of the subject property is the parking areas for the Spring Sports 

Complex, which are zoned Commercial (C) District.  Beyond this is W. Yellow Jacket 
Road, which is identified as a M4D (i.e. minor collector, four [4] lane, divided roadway) 
according to the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan.  West of this thoroughfare is the 
parking area for Rockwall High School. 

 
West:    Directly west of the subject property is Old County Road and additional parking areas 

for Yellow Jacket Plaza, which are situated on a vacant 9.24-acre tract of land.  The 
property is zoned Commercial (C) District. 

130
130



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: 
 
According to the purpose statements stipulated in Section 4.2, Residential Office (RO) District, 
of Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), the 
Residential Office (RO) District is for “…low intensity office development providing professional, 
medical and other office services…” and to allow existing residential houses to be “…converted 
from single-family and two-family residences to low-intensity office uses in order to extend the 
economic life of these structures…”.  The following is a summary of the minimum development 
standards for a property within a Residential Office (RO) District: 
 

Ordinance Provisions Zoning District Standards 
Minimum Lot Area 6,000 SF 
Minimum Lot Width  60-Feet 
Minimum Lot Depth 100-Feet 
Minimum Front Yard Setback 25-Feet 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback  30-Feet 
Minimum Side Yard Setback  10-Feet 
Minimum Side Yard Setback Adjacent to Residential 20-Feet 
Maximum Height 36-Feet 
Max Lot Coverage 40% 
Minimum Masonry Requirement 90% 
Floor Area Ratio 0.33 
Minimum Landscaping Percentage 20% 
Maximum Impervious Coverage 85-90% 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
 
The Future Land Use Map, adopted with the Comprehensive Plan, designates the subject 
property for Medium Density Residential land uses.  Should the City Council approve the 
applicant’s request, staff has included a condition of approval that would amend the Future Land 
Use Map to reflect the proposed change in land use from a Medium Density Residential 
designation to a Commercial designation. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
When looking at the applicant’s request (i.e. to convert an existing single family home to a 
commercial business), the Residential Office (RO) District has been successfully used in similar 
circumstances (e.g. Planned Development Districts 50, 53 & 69).  This may also be an 
appropriate transition of uses from the residential adjacency north of the subject property to the 
commercial adjacency south of the subject property.  For the City Council’s reference staff has 
included in the attached packet a list of uses permitted within the Residential-Office (RO) 
District, as well as the district’s purpose statements outlined in Section 4.2, Residential Office 
(RO) District, of Article V, District Development Standards, of the UDC.  With this being said, 
zoning changes are discretionary decisions for the City Council.   
 
NOTIFICATION: 
 
On August 19, 2016, staff mailed 13 notices to property owners and residents within 500-feet of 
the subject property.  Staff also sent a notice to the Turtle Cove and Waterstone Homeowner’s 
Associations (HOA), which are the only HOA’s located within 1,500 feet of the subject property.  
Additionally, staff posted a sign along Ridge Road, which is the closest major roadway adjacent 
to the subject property as required by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this 
case memo was drafted staff had not received any notices. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

131
131



If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request to change the zoning of the 
subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Residential Office (RO) District then staff 
would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
1) By approving this zoning change, the City Council will effectively be approving changes to 

the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map.  Specifically, this will change the 
designation of the subject property from a Medium Density Residential designation to a 
Commercial designation; and, 

 
2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning change shall conform to the 

requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building 
Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire 
codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
 
It should be noted that the original request considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
was to change the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Commercial (C) 
District; however, after holding the public hearing on September 13, 2016 and discussing the 
request with the applicant, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to 
recommend the Residential Office (RO) District to the City Council.  This motion passed by a 
vote of 6-0, with Chairman Renfro absent.  The applicant stated at the meeting and conveyed to 
staff after the meeting that she agrees with the Planning and Zoning Commission’s assessment 
of the case and would like to proceed with a request for a Residential Office (RO) District.  Since 
the Residential Office (RO) District designation is more restrictive than the Commercial (C) 
District designation, staff has amended the case memo and ordinance to reflect the request. 

132
132



City of Rockwall
Project Plan Review History

8/23/2016

Project Number Z2016-028
Zoning Change (AG to C)

2001 RIDGE RD

SUSAN GAMEZ
Project Name

REZONE
Type
Subtype

Applied
Approved
Closed
Expired
Status 

8/15/2016

LM

LM
Owner
Applicant SUSAN GAMEZ

Site Address City, State Zip

Parcel No
YELLOW JACKET ADDITION 7 NULL 7
Subdivision Tract Block Lot No

8/16/2016

0001-0000-0007-00-0R

Zoning

General Plan

STAFF REVIEWStatus

ZONING

ROCKWALL, TX 75087

Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

BUILDING John Shannon 8/17/2016 8/17/20168/24/2016 APPROVED

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 8/15/2016 8/23/2016 See Conditions
(8/19/2016 1:15 PM AW)
Must meet all engineering requirements

88/22/2016 APPROVED

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 8/15/2016 8/17/2016 28/22/2016 APPROVED

PLANNING Ryan Miller 8/15/2016 8/23/2016 See Conditions
Z2016-028 2001 Ridge Road (AG to C):
Please address the following comments (M= Mandatory Comments; I = Informational Comments)

I.1 This is a request for the approval of a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) District to Commercial (C) District on a 0.478-acre tract of land identified as Tract 7 of 
the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, and 
addressed as 2001 Ridge Road.
I.2 For questions or comments concerning this case, please contact Ryan Miller in the Planning Department at (972) 772-6441 or email rcmiller@rockwall.com. 
M.3 For reference, include the case number (Z2016-028) in the lower right hand corner of all pages on future submittals.
I.4 The Future Land Use Map contained within the City’s Comprehensive Plan indicates that the subject property is designated as Medium Density Residential.  The 
proposed zoning does not conform to this designation and will require the City Council to amend the Future Land Use Map to reflect a Commercial designation.
I.5 Based on the submission City Staff would recommend that a less intense zoning (e.g. Residential Office [RO] District) be permitted on the subject property should 
the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council choose to approve the request.
I.6 Please review the attached Draft Ordinance prior to the Planning & Zoning Meeting on September 13, 2016.
I.7 Staff has identified the aforementioned items necessary to continue the submittal process.  Please make these revisions and corrections, and provide any 
additional information that is requested.  Revisions for this case will be due on September 7, 2016; however, it is encouraged for applicants to submit revisions as 
soon as possible to give staff ample time to review the case prior to the September 13, 2016 Planning & Zoning Meeting.
I.8 The projected City Council Meeting dates for this case are as follows: 1) First Reading, September 19, 2016 and 2) Second Reading, October 3, 2016.

88/22/2016 APPROVED

Project Reviews.rpt Page 1 of 1133
133



YELLOW JACKET

RIDGE

OLD COUNTY

GREENCREST

YELLOW JACKET

C

AG

SF-7
Z2016-028- 2001 RIDGE ROAD (AG TO C)
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 60 120 180 24030
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I134

134



901

782

825

2135

2005

2003

2001

2304

2002

102
104

2014

1901

106

2013

2225

2004

2011

2008

2006

2010

20122007

2009

108

1903

2005

2306

1728

1905

2245

2003

1944

203

2231
22312231

2235

205

1907

RIDGE

YELLO
W JA

CKET

GREENCREST

LAKEDALE

LA
KESHORE

OLD COUNTY

RIDGE

YELLOW JA
CKET

0 160 320 480 64080
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RIDGE RD

KYLE DR

W YEL
LOW JACKE

T LN

E IN
TER

STA
TE 3

0

S LAKESHORE DR

GREENCREST BLVD

GULLWING DR

WOODLAND WAY

LAKEDALE DR

RID
GE

 RD

E IN
TER

STA
TE 3

0

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2016-028

2001 Ridge Road
Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Zoning Change (AG to C)
Zoning: Agriculture (AG) District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 08/16/2016

Legend
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

135
135



UNRUH CECIL J ESTATE 
TAMARA SUE HARRIS INDEPENDENT EXECUTRIX 

17627 CEDAR CREEK CANYON  
DALLAS, TX 75252 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
2001  RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PROCK CHARLES 
2003 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

FAHERTY FRANK 
2005 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
2135  RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL,  75087 
 

 

MOUNTAINPRIZE INC 
3225 CUMBERLAND BLVD SUITE 100  

ATLANTA, GA 30339 
 

IN KYUNG HWAN 
512 SUNSTONE DR  
IRVING, TX 75060 

 

 

SYVRUD JAMES P & MARY JEAN 
519 E INTERSTATE 30  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
782  I30  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

ROCKWALL I S D 
801 E WASHINGTON ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
901  YELLOWJACKET RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

ROCKWALL ASC REAL ESTATE LLC 
PO BOX 1208  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

WAL-MART REAL ESTATE 
BUSINESS TRUST 

PO BOX 8050  
BENTONVILLE, AR 72712 

 

    

     

     

     

     

     

136
136



Turtle Cove

Waterstone
Homeowners
Association

0 310 620 930 1,240155
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RIDGE

INTERSTATE 30

KYLE

MIMSRALPH HALL

YEL
LOW JACKE

T

JULIAN

VIGOR

GREENCREST

LAKESHORE

LEXINGTON

PRESTON

STAFFORD

LAKEDALE

BLUFFVIEW

ROCHELL

INTER
STA

TE 3
0

RIDGE

RALPH HALL

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2016-028

2001 Ridge Rd
Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Zoning Change (AG to C)
Zoning: Agriculture (AG) District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 08/16/2016

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

137
137



From: Morales, Laura
To:
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Brooks, Korey
Subject: Neighborhood Noification Program: Notice of zoning request
Date: Thursday, August 18, 2016 1:25:13 PM

To whom it may concern:
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notification
to inform your organization and residents of a request for a zoning change that lies within 1,500
feet of the boundaries of your neighborhood or subdivision.  As the primary contact for the
organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the residents of your subdivision. 
Please find attached a map detailing the location of the subject property requesting the zoning
change in relation to your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is a summary of the zoning
request that will also be published in the Rockwall Herald Banner on June 3, 2016.  If you have any
questions or comments regarding this request, the contact information for the Planning
Department is listed below.  Additional information can also be found at
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development-cases
 
 

Z2016-028-Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Susan Gamez for the
approval of a zoning change from an Agricultural (AG) District to Commercial (C) District on a
0.478-acre tract of land identified as Tract 7 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the Scenic
Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 2001 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary.

 
If this email is reaching you in error, please forward it to your HOA or neighborhood group
representative and update the contact information at http://www.rockwall.com/planning/hoa.asp.
 
Sincerely,
 
 

Laura Morales
Planning & Zoning Coordinator
City of Rockwall Planning & Zoning Department
972-771-7745 | 972-772-6438
Lmorales@rockwall.com | http://www.rockwall.com
 

138
138

mailto:/O=CITY OF ROCKWALL/OU=RCK/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=LVALLEJO
mailto:RMiller@rockwall.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:kbrooks@rockwall.com
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development-cases
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/hoa.asp
mailto:Lmorales@rockwall.com
http://www.rockwall.com/gis


139
139



140
140



9/8/2016 Rockwall, TX Code cf Ordinances 

Sec. 4.2. - Residential Office (RO) District. 

A. Purpose. The R-0 District recognizes the existence of older residential areas of the city where larger 

houses have been or can be converted from single-family and two-family residences to low-intensity 

office uses in order to extend the economic life of these structures and allow the owners to justify the 

expenditures for repairs and modernization. The intent of this district is to allow for low intensity office 

development providing professional, medical and other office services to residents in adjacent 

neighborhoods. R-0 districts shall have principle access to major or secondary thoroughfares and may 

serve as an area of transition between residential and high-intensity nonresidential uses or busy 

arterial thoroughfares 

B. Permitted uses. In general, low intensity office development providing professional, medical and other 

office services to residents in adjacent neighborhoods, may be allowed. However, no building or land 

may be used, unless in accordance with the use tables and requirements in article IV, Permissible Uses. 

C. Development standards. 

1. Minimum lot area: 6,000 square feet. 

2. Maximum lot area: 43,560 square feet. 

3. Minimum lot frontage on a public street: 60 feet. 

4. Minimum lot depth: 100 feet. 

5. Minimum depth of front yard setback: 25 feet (from future right-of-way as shown on the adopted 

thoroughfare plan or as actually exists, whichever is greater) in those instances where an existing 

structure is converted into an office use. 

6. Minimum width of side yard setback: ten feet, except ifthe adjacent property is predominantly 

residentially zoned or residentially used, in which case the setback shall be 20 feet. 

(Ord. No. 06-14, 4-17-2006) 

7. Minimum depth of rear yard setback: 30 feet. 

8. Minimum distance between detached buildings on the same lot or parcel of land: 

a. Without fire retardant wall: 15 feet. 

b. With fire retardant wall: zero feet. 

9. Minimum requirement for construction materials. For existing structures, no change to exterior 

walls shall be required. For new structures, each exterior wall shall consist of 90 percent masonry 

material excluding doors and windows. 

10. Maximum building coverage as a percentage of lot area: 40 percent. 

11. Maximum floor-area ratio (FAR): 0.33 FAR. 

12. Maximum amount of impervious coverage as a percentage of lot area: 75 to 80 percent. 

13. Minimum amount of landscaped areas: all development shall comply with article VIII, section 5.12, 

Required Landscaping. 

htlpsJ/www.municode.comnibriryltx/rockwall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeld=PTlllUNDECO_ARTVDIDEST_S4CODl_S4.2REOFRODI 112 141
141

rmiller
Highlight

rmiller
Highlight



9/8/2016 Rockwall, TX Code cf Ordinances 

Amenity open space: seven percent of the interior of the parking lot, not including the setback and 

buffer development standards, shall be previous land area in association with plantings. 

14. Maximum building height: 36 feet. 

15. Minimum number of paved off-street parking spaces required: see article VI, Parking and Loading. 

Off-street parking shall not be permitted in the required setback in this district. 

16. Maximum number of entrances and/or exits: 

a. Arterial streets: one per each 200 feet of street frontage per site, or as approved by the city 

council. 

b. Collector streets: one per each 100 feet of street frontage per site, or as approved by the city 

council. 

c. Local streets: one per each 50 feet of street frontage per site, or as approved by the city 

council. 

17. Residential adjacency. Lots with nonresidential uses that have a side or rear contiguous or 

separated only by an alley, or easement or street, from any residential district must be separated 

from such residential district by a buffer as defined in article VIII, Landscape Standards, or as 

approved by the planning and zoning commission. 

18. Building code. The building code may impose more restrictive development standards depending 

on the size, use and construction of the structures. 

htlpsJ/www.municode.comnibriryltx/rockwall/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeld=PTlllUNDECO_ARTVDIDEST_S4CODl_S4.2REOFRODI 212 142
142



Permitted Land Uses in a Residential‐Office (RO) District 
Date: March 17, 2014 
P: Permitted by Right; S: Permitted by Specific Use Permit; A: Permitted Accessory to the Primary Use; Blank: Not Permitted; 1: Additional Requirements 
 

City of Rockwall 
Permitted Uses: Residential‐Office (RO) District 

Rural & Animal‐Related 
Agricultural Uses on Un‐Platted Land  P
 

Residential & Lodging 
Accessory Building 1   P
Bed & Breakfast Operation 1  P
Convent or Monastery  P
Garage  A
Home Occupation 1  P
Residential Care Facility  S
Single Family, Detached 1  P
Single Family, Zero Lot Line 1  P
Swimming Pool, Private  A
Tennis Court Private  S
Townhouse  P
 

Institutional & Community Service 
Assisted Living Facility 1  P
Convalescent Care Facility/Nursing Home 1  P
Day Care (7 or More Children) 1  S
Group or Community Home 1  P
Halfway House 1  S
Library, Art Gallery or Museum (Public)  P
 

Office & Professional 
Office, General  P
Office Building, less than 5,000 Sq. Ft.   P
Office Building, 5,000 Sq. Ft. or more  S
 

Recreation, Entertainment & Amusement 
Fund Raising Events by Non‐Profit, Indoor or Outdoor, Temporary 1 P
 

Retail & Personal Services 
Astrologer, Hypnotist, or Psychic Art and Science  P
General Retail Store  S
Hair Salon, Manicurist  S
Massage Therapist  P
Museum or Art Gallery (Private)  P
Restaurant, Less than 2000 Sq. Ft., w/o Drive‐Thru or Drive‐in S
Studio ‐ Art, Photography or Music  P
 

Commercial & Business Services 
Shoe and Boot Repair and Sales  S
 

Utilities, Communications & Transportation 
Antenna, Accessory 1  P
Antenna, Dish 1  A
Railroad Yard or Shop  S

 

143
143



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
[ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS 
HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A CHANGE IN 
ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO A 
RESIDENTIAL OFFICE (RO) DISTRICT ON A 0.478-ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 7 OF THE D. ATKINS SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 1, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBITS 
‘A’, ‘B’, & ‘C’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Susan Gamez for a change in zoning from an 
Agricultural (AG) District to a Residential Office (RO) District on a 0.478-acre tract of land identified 
as Tract 7 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and 
more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’, ‘B’, & ‘C’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to 
as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the City 
of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the governing body in 
the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 04-38] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  That the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall, 
Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended by amending the zoning map 
of the City of Rockwall so as to change the zoning of the Subject Property from an Agriculture (AG) 
District to a Residential Office (RO) District; and 

 
Section 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for a Residential Office (RO) District in Section 1.1, “Use of Land and Buildings,” of Article 
IV, “Permissible Uses” and Section 4.2, “Residential Office (RO) District”, of Article V, “District 
Development Standards”, of the Unified Development Code of the City of Rockwall as heretofore 
amended, as amended herein by granting of this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the 
future; 
 
Section 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein. 
 
Section 4.   Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and every day 
such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

9.
20

16
 

144
144



 
Section 5.   If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance 
or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, corporation 
or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of the Unified 
Development Code of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council declares that it would have 
adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end 
the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall not 
in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 7.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and the 
publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3RD DAY OF OCTOBER, 2016. 

 
      

 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  September 19, 2016 
 

2nd Reading: October 3, 2016 D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

9.
20

16
 

145
145



 
BEING situated in the Daniel Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, Rockwall County, Texas, and being a 
part or that certain 2.1-acre tract as described in a deed to Charles Parton and wife, as recorded in 
Volume 51, Page 504, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 5/8 inch iron rod found in an existing gravel road at the most southern corner of a 
tract described in a deed to Charles Prock and wife, recorded in Volume 125, Page 18, Deed 
Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE South 37 Degrees 47 Minutes 20 Seconds West along and near the centerline of an 
existing gravel road, a distance of 151.57-feet to a ½-inch iron rod found for corner; 
 
THENCE North 48 Degrees 25 Minutes 58 Seconds West along and near the northeast line of an 
existing gravel road, a distance of 137.23-feet to a ½-Inch iron rod found for corner in the northwest 
line of said 2.1-acre tract; 
 
THENCE North 35 Degrees 52 Minutes 20 Seconds East along said northwest line, a distance of 
146.12-feet to a ½-inch iron rod found for corner at the most western corner of said Prock tract; 
 
THENCE South 50 Degrees 57 Min 33 Seconds East along the southwest line of said Prock tract, a 
distance of 141.86-feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 0.4758-acres of land, and 
being the same tract as conveyed to Johnnie Moore as recorded in Volume 623, Page 113, Real 
Estate Records, Rockwall County, Texas. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

9.
20

16
 

146
146



 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

9.
20

16
 

147
147



 
 

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.1

9.
20

16
 

148
148



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

149
149



 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

 
AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2016 
 
APPLICANT: Jimmy Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer Architects Inc. 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Z2016-029; Retail Store with Gasoline Dispensers – SUP 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jimmy Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer 
Architects on behalf of D. W. Bobst of J-BR2, LLC for the approval of a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) to allow a retail store with more than 2 gasoline dispensers on a 2.59-acre tract of land 
being a portion of a larger 7.32-acre tract of land identified as Tract 17-12 of the W. W. Ford 
Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail (GR) 
District, situated at the southwest corner of the intersection of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] and 
FM-549, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a retail store 
with more than two (2) gasoline dispensers on a 2.59-acre tract of land being a portion of a 
larger 7.32-acre tract of land located at the southwest corner of the intersection of SH-205 and 
FM-549.  The property is currently zoned as General Retail (GR) District.  According to the 
Section 1.1, Use of Land and Buildings, of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), a retail store with more than two (2) gasoline dispensers requires a 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) in a General Retail (GR) District.   
 
As part of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) submittal, the applicant has submitted a conceptual 
site plan indicating a 5,600 sq. ft. retail store with eight (8) fuel dispensers.  The number of fuel 
dispensers requested would allow for a maximum of 16 vehicles being serviced at any one time.  
The site will be accessed from SH-205 and FM-549, providing two (2) points of ingress/egress.  
If approved, the applicant will be required to submit a site plan and replat the property. 
 
Included in your packet is the applicant’s concept plan indicating the location of the proposed 
site in relation to the overall boundary of the property and a more detailed concept plan 
indicating the proposed gas station layout.  As a note, a request for an SUP is a discretionary 
decision for the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council.    
 
NOTIFICATION: 
 
Staff mailed eleven (11) notices to property owners and residents within 500 feet of the subject 
property.  Staff also notified one (1) HOA/Neighborhood Organization (Oaks of Buffalo Way) 
that is within 1,500 feet participating in the notification program.  Additionally, staff posted a sign 
on the property as required by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report 
was drafted, staff has received four (4) notices “opposed to” the zoning change request.   
 
 
 
 
 

150
150



 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Should the Specific Use Permit be approved, staff would offer the following conditions: 
 
1. The development must meet all Fire Department, Building Inspections, and Engineering 
standards. 
 
2. Submittal and approval of a site plan and final plat (mylars in house for filing purposes) are 
required prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 
3. The development shall be limited to a maximum of eight (8) gasoline dispensers as depicted 
on the Concept Site Plan. 
 
4.  No outside display of merchandise or outside storage shall be permitted on the Subject 
Property with the exception of the following items: ice machine, propane cage, and/or DVD 
rental kiosk.  Outside storage or display must be approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at the time of the site plan.   
   
5. The City Council reserves the right to review the Specific Use Permit granted herein upon the 
expiration of one (1) year from the date hereof. 
 
6. Any construction or building allowed by this request must conform to the requirements set 
forth by the Unified Development Code, the International Building Code, the Rockwall Municipal 
Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable 
regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING RECOMMENDATION: 
 
On September 13, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to approve the SUP 
request passed by a vote of 6 to 0 with Commissioner Renfro absent. 

151
151



City of Rockwall
Project Plan Review History

8/23/2016

Project Number Z2016-029
SW Corner of SH-205 & FM-549

5133 S FM549

J, BR2 LLC
Project Name

SUP
Type
Subtype

Applied
Approved
Closed
Expired
Status 

8/15/2016

LM

LM
Owner
Applicant STROHMEYER ARCHITECTS

Site Address City, State Zip

Parcel No
17-12 NULL 17-12

Subdivision Tract Block Lot No

8/15/2016

0080-0000-0017-12-0R

Zoning

General Plan

STAFF REVIEWStatus

ZONING

ROCKWALL, TX 75032

Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

BUILDING John Shannon 8/15/2016 8/17/2016 28/22/2016 APPROVED

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 8/15/2016 8/23/2016 See Conditions and attachment
(8/19/2016 2:32 PM AW)
All items must be addressed in site planning, engineering, and platting.
Both FM 549 and SH 205 is to have a total of 120' of right-of-way so dedication may be necessary
Need to show a 20' utility easement along FM 549 
Need to show a 15' water line easement along H 205
Driveway onto SH 205 doesn't meet City or TXDOT spacing requirements
Driveway onto FM 549 doesn't meet City or TXDOT spacing requirements (unless it is exisiting)
Water not supplied by City of Rockwall
Sanitary sewer is required which may have a pro-rata due
Adhere to all fire department requirements
The drainage under the canopy and from the dumpster area is required to drain to a grease trap if the building is required to have one, and if the building doesn't 
require one, these areas must drain to an oil/water separator prior to storm system.
Traffic impact analysis is required
Detention is required
No deadend parking
Parking to be 20'x9'

88/22/2016 APPROVED

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 8/15/2016 8/17/2016 see comment
(8/17/2016 2:29 PM AA)
Shall comply with all fire code requirements, including fire sprinkler protection if over 5,000 sq. ft.

28/22/2016 APPROVED

PLANNING David Gonzales 8/15/2016 8/18/2016 See comments
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jimmy Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer Architects on behalf of D. W. Bobst of J-BR2, LLC for the approval of a 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a retail store with more than 2 gasoline dispensers on a 2.59-acre tract of land being a portion of a larger 7.32-acre tract of land 
identified as Tract 17-12 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail (GR) District, situated at the 

38/22/2016 COMMENTS

Project Reviews.rpt Page 1 of 2152
152



Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

southwest corner of the intersection of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] and FM-549, and take any action necessary.

The following staff comments are to be addressed and resubmitted no later than Tuesday, September 6, 2016. Please provide two large copies [24" X 36" FOLDED] of
the Concept Plan and one PDF version for a subsequent review by staff:

• On all future plan submittals please include the Case Number (Z2016-029) in the lower right hand corner.

Planning Staff General Comments/Conditions of SUP:

1. The structure must meet all Fire Department, Building Inspections, and Engineering standards.
2. Submittal and approval of a site plan and final plat (mylars in house for filing purposes) are required prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO).
3. The development shall be limited to a maximum of eight (8) gasoline dispensers as depicted on the Concept Site Plan.
4. No outside display of merchandise or outside storage shall be permitted on the subject property, with the exception of the following items (which will require
approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission during the site plan phase): ice machine, propane cage, and/or DVD rental kiosk.
5. The City Council reserves the right to review the Specific Use Permit granted herein upon the expiration of one (1) year from the date hereof.
6. Any construction or building allowed by this request must conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code, the International Building
Code, the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or
enforced by the state and federal government.

You and/or your representative(s) are required to be in attendance for the following scheduled meetings. All meetings will begin at 6:00 p.m. in the City's Council
Chambers.

• Please mark your calendar for the scheduled meeting dates as follows:

Planning - Work Session: August 30, 2016 (Presentation/discussion by applicant)

Planning - Public Hearing: September 13, 2016

City Council - Public Hearing: September 19, 2016 [First Reading of Ordinance]
City Council -2nd Reading (if approved): October 3, 2016 (Tuesday)

Project Reviews.rpt Page 2 of 2153
153



GOLIAD

FM 549

AG

C

GR

SFE-1.5

Z2016-029 - SWC OF SH-205 & FM-549
SUP - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I154

154



Oaks of
Buffalo Way

0 330 660 990 1,320165
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

GOLIAD

FM 549 FM 1139LOFLAND

CH
IS

HO
LM

BEAR CLAW M
CL

EN
DO

N

STANDING OAK

HEBRONFM
 549

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2016-029

SW Corner of SH-205 & FM-549

Case Type: Specific Use Permit
Case Name: SW Corner of SH-205 & FM-549

Zoning: General Retail (GR) District 

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 08/16/2016

Legend
Subject Property

1500ft Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

155
155



1

Gonzales, David

From: Morales, Laura
Sent: Thursday, August 18, 2016 1:25 PM
To: 'oaksofbwpres@gmail.com'
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Brooks, Korey
Subject: Neighborhood Noification Program: Notice of zoning request

To whom it may concern: 
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notification to inform your 
organization and residents of a request for a zoning change that lies within 1,500 feet of the boundaries of your 
neighborhood or subdivision.  As the primary contact for the organization, you are encouraged to share this information 
with the residents of your subdivision.  Please find attached a map detailing the location of the subject property 
requesting the zoning change in relation to your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is a summary of the zoning 
request that will also be published in the Rockwall Herald Banner on June 3, 2016.  If you have any questions or 
comments regarding this request, the contact information for the Planning Department is listed below.  Additional 
information can also be found at https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development-cases 
 
 

Z2016-029-Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jimmy Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer
Architects on behalf of D. W. Bobst of J-BR2, LLC for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a
retail store with more than 2 gasoline dispensers on a 2.59-acre tract of land being a portion of a larger 7.32-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 17-12 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail (GR) District, situated at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] and FM-549, and take any action necessary. 

 
If this email is reaching you in error, please forward it to your HOA or neighborhood group representative and update 
the contact information at http://www.rockwall.com/planning/hoa.asp.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Laura Morales 
Planning & Zoning Coordinator  
City of Rockwall Planning & Zoning Department 
972-771-7745 | 972-772-6438 
Lmorales@rockwall.com | http://www.rockwall.com 
 

156
156



5205

5297

2994

5459

5133

211

5128

4768

3401 2994

5170

5135

5155

5165

5090

5140

5075

5070
5120

5160

5045

5315

4965

5050

5565

5295

2235

4945

2914

5265

5140

2175

GOLIAD

FM 549
FM 1139

CHISHOLM

LOFLAND

BEAR C
LAW

EL
VI

S 
PR

ES
LE

Y

STANDING OAK

MCLENDON

CHISHOLM

FM 54
9

0 280 560 840 1,120140
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

S GOLIAD ST

S FM 549 FM 1139LOFLAND CIR

BEAR CLAW
 LN

CH
IS

HO
LM

 T
RL

W
ILLOW

CREST

M
CL

EN
DO

N
 D

R

S F
M 549

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2016-029

SW Corner of SH-205 & FM-549

Case Type: Specific Use Permit
Case Name: SW Corner of SH-205 & FM-549

Zoning: General Retail (GR) District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 08/16/2016

Legend

Subject Property
500ft Buffer
Notified Properties

157
157



J BR2 LLC 
2701 SUNSET RIDGE DR SUITE 610 

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ROCKWALL RETAIL INVESTORS LLC 
2701 SUNSET RIDGE DR #607  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HOME BOY ENTERPRISES INC 
460 LAWRENCE DR  
HEATH, TX 75032 

 

ZEB MOHIUDIN DR & 
NASREEN ZEB 

5128 S STATE HIGHWAY 205  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
5133 S FM549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

PHILIP LIVING TRUST 
5160 BEAR CLAW LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

YOUNG BRIAN E & PATTI D 
5165 BEAR CLAW LANE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
5170  BEAR CLAW LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

BLACKWOOD SCOTT W & GLENITA G 
5205 S FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

THURMOND KATHRYN ESTATE 
KENN KAPP INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR 

5606 POLO RD  
COLLEGE STATION, TX 77845 

 

 

ROCKWALL HIGHGATE LTD 
C/O SCOTT ASBURY 

6210 PRESTON CREEK DR  
DALLAS, TX 75240 

 

  

     

     

     

     

     

     

158
158



159

159



160
160



161
161



1

Gonzales, David

From: Planning
Sent: Tuesday, September 13, 2016 2:33 PM
To: Gonzales, David
Subject: FW: Z2016-029

 
 
From: Sumbela Zeb [mailto:sumbel.a.zeb@gmail.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, September 13, 2016 1:56 PM 
To: Planning 
Subject: re: Z2016-029 
 
8. Z2016-029 (David) Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jimmy 
Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer Architects on behalf of D. W. Bobst of J-BR2, LLC for the 
approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a retail store with more than 2 gasoline 
dispensers on a 2.59-acre tract of land being a portion of a larger 7.32-acre tract of land 
identified as Tract 17-12 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall P&Z Agenda: 09.13.2016 County, Texas, zoned General Retail (GR) District, 
situated at the southwest corner of the intersection of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] and 
FM-549, and take any action necessary 
 
 
To The Planning and Zoning Commission, 
 
It has been brought to my attention that the Planning and Zoning Commission is 
considering a proposal which would allow the building of a Gasoline Station and 
Convenience Store next to our residence on 5128 S. S HWY 205. This is not the first 
time I am having to write to the Commission in order to object to a proposal for 
rezoning property which was meant for agricultural and residence purposes. We objected
to the adjacent property on 549 being rezoned to allow a home to be turned into a 
business, and the Commission dismissed our and our neighbors concerns. While it was 
unfortunate enough having a business instead of a family next door, we are now 
supposed to accept a gas station next to our residence? Owners of the property within 
our immediate area will do well to refer back to their Property Deeds to see what they 
agreed to when they purchase the property, and it wasn't to build gas stations.  
 
 
 
--  
Sumbel A. Zeb 
(214)-551-5771 cell 
sumbel.a.zeb@gmail.com 
Skype: Sumbel.Zeb 

162
162



163
163



1

Gonzales, David

From: Planning
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2016 9:08 AM
To: Gonzales, David
Subject: FW: Case No. Z2016-029: 205 & 549

 
 

From: Scott Asbury [mailto:sasbury@3lrealtygroup.com]
Sent: Friday, September 02, 2016 10:51 AM 
To: Planning; Miller, Ryan 
Subject: Case No. Z2016-029: 205 & 549 
 
David, 
 
I am writing regarding the SW corner of 205 & 549. We own the 264 acres SW of and adjacent to the subject property. I 
am both in favor and opposed to the proposal. I am in favor of commercial development at this site. I believe that one 
day soon this will be a major commercial intersection, and in turn help support major residential development south of 
Interstate 30. That said, I do not believe that a freestanding gas station is the highest and best use of this property, nor 
would it encourage larger, more significant commercial projects in this area.   
 
I believe that it is NOT the city councils responsibility to limit market growth, but it IS their responsibility to insure that 
the growth that is occurring happens in a high quality manner that allows the best benefits the entire Rockwall 
community and tax base.  
 
Please provide these comments to the City Council as part of the public hear process.  
 
Thanks you.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Scott Asbury  
214-566-8699 
 

164
164



1

Gonzales, David

From: Morales, Laura
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2016 8:19 AM
To: Gonzales, David
Subject: FW: Zoning

 
 

From: Ward Fam [mailto:jprrj@charter.net]
Sent: Saturday, September 03, 2016 12:21 PM 
To: Morales, Laura 
Subject: Zoning 

Mrs. Morales, 
I live in the Oak’s of Buffalo Way subdivision. I was just informed that there is a meeting to discuss putting a 
gas station on the corner of 549 and 250. I am against this, because there is so much traffic on these two roads 
already. We can hardly get in and out of our subdivision now. I don’t know if you have been on 205 in the 
mornings or after 5 in the evenings but cars are lined up for a mile or more. Sometimes in the middle of the 
day we have to sit at three lights before we can turn down 549 to get into our neighborhood. The traffic down 
these two roads are backed up due to not enough lanes to flow. A gas station here would cause accidents 
because we don’t even have turning lanes. The lanes down at this end of 205 only have one lane on each side. 
When I sit at 205 coming from Lakeshore church to my neighborhood I have to turn left and there is no turning
lane so the people that are behind me pass me on the shoulder doing at least 50 or 60 miles an hour and this 
is dangerous. The eighteen wheelers pass me doing this speed too. We have had several wrecks at this 
intersection. Putting a gas station here would cause more congestion and wrecks. The roads are not spread 
out enough for growth on this end right now. I ask that you please vote against this gas station being put on 
the corner. I would like to have more upscale things down 205 rather then car washes, gas stations, nail 
salons, and donut shops. It would be great to make 205 like a Legacy Drive with nice restaurants when the 
roads are widened. Maybe an upscale grocery store like Central Market again when all the roads are widened. 
We need upscale things here so that we as taxpayers will not have to pay the high taxes that were dumped on 
us this year. I wanted to retire here, but I may have to move because of the tax increases. 
Thank you for all your time in this matter and I appreciate you taking the time to read my email.  
  
  
Pam Ward   
4920 Bear Claw Lane 
Rockwall, TX75032 

165
165



 

 

  CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX   
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-1XX        
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, 
SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR A 
RETAIL STORE WITH MORE THAN TWO (2) GASOLINE DISPENSERS 
AS SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE IV, PERMISSIBLE USES, OF THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE, FOR A 2.59-ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING A 
PORTION OF A LARGER 7.32-ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED 
GENERAL RETAIL (GR) DISTRICT, AND IDENTIFIED  AS TRACT 17-12 
OF THE W. W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MORE 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT 
TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, a request has been made by Jimmy Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer Architects, Inc. on 
behalf of D. W. Bobst of J-BR2, LLC for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a retail 
store with more than two (2) gasoline dispensers on a 2.59-acre tract land being a portion of a 
larger 7.32-acre tract of land, zoned General Retail (GR) District, and identified as Tract 17-12 of 
the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and more 
specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the 
Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing 
body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the Unified Development Code [Ord. No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall, as 
heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) allowing for a retail store with more than two (2) gasoline dispensers within a General Retail 
(GR) District as stipulated by Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code [Ord. 
No. 04-38] for the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Subject Property shall be developed and used only in the manner and for the 
purposes described in this Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance granted herein and shall be subject 
to the conditions set forth in Article V, Section 4.4, General Retail (GR) District Standards of the 

166
166



 

 
Z2016-029: SUP for 5133 FM 549 (2.59-Acre Tract). Page 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. XX; SUP No. S-1XX 

Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] as heretofore amended, as amended herein 
by granting of this Specific Use Permit (SUP), and as may be amended in the future, and shall be 
subject to the additional following conditions. 
 
2.1 Conditions for a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) 
 

The following conditions pertain to the development of a retail store with more than two (2) 
gasoline dispensers on the Subject Property, and conformance to these development conditions 
are required for the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO): 

 
1) Prior to the approval of a Building Permit, submittal of a Site Plan generally conforming to 

the Concept Plan in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance must be approved by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission; and the City Council if necessary. 
 

2) The development on the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan as 
depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.   

 
2.2 Operational Conditions 
 

The following conditions pertain to the operation of a retail store with more than two (2) gasoline 
dispensers on the subject property, and conformance to these operational conditions are 
required for continued operations: 

 
1) All operations on the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan as 

depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.   
 

2) The development shall be limited to a maximum of eight (8) gasoline dispensers on the 
Subject Property; and, 
 

3) No outside display of merchandise or outside storage shall be permitted on the Subject 
Property with the exception of the following items: ice machine, propane cage, and/or 
DVD rental kiosk.  Outside storage or display must be approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission at the time of the site plan.     

 
4) The City Council reserves the right to review the Specific Use Permit granted herein upon 

the expiration of one (1) year from the date hereof. 
 
Section 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

 
Section 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

 
Section 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not to 
exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and every 
day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 
Section 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or provision 
to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, the 
adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of any 

167
167



 

 
Z2016-029: SUP for 5133 FM 549 (2.59-Acre Tract). Page 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. XX; SUP No. S-1XX 

other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and the 
City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance 
without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
Section 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and the 
publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3rd DAY OF OCTOBER, 2016. 
 
 
  __________________________ 
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
  
 
  
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
   
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 
1st Reading:  September 19, 2016 
 
2nd Reading: October 3, 2016 

168
168



Exhibit ‘A’: Legal Description (Boundary) 

 
 

169
169



Exhibit ‘B’: Conceptual Site Plan 

 
Z2016-029: SUP for 5133 FM 549 (2.59-Acre Tract). Page 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. XX; SUP No. S-1XX 

 

170
170



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

171
171



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley – City Manager 
 
FROM: Brad Griggs – Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE: September 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Back the Blue Fundraiser Event  
  
 
We have received a request for the use of the City mobile restroom trailer to be used 
during a Back the Blue fundraising event to be held on Thursday, October 27.  The 
event will be held at Wilkerson-Sanderson Stadium.  The funds raised from the event 
will be used to support the families of first responders that are killed or severely injured 
in the line of duty and provide a variety of financial support to the Rockwall County first 
responders.   
 
The trailer would be used for approximately a six hour period which constitutes a half 
day rental which is $1200.  Contingent on Council approval, the rental fee would be a 
unbudgeted item but it would be the City of Rockwall’s contribution to the event.       

172
172



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

173
173



 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

 
AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2016 
 
APPLICANT:   Tim Seymore of Seymore Custom Homes, LLC 
 
AGENDA ITEM: SP2016-016; Commercial/Industrial Facility – 496 National Drive 

 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Discuss and consider a request by Tim Seymore of Seymore Custom Homes, LLC on behalf of 
James & Robin Meade for the approval of an exception to the masonry requirements and a 
variance to the parking standards as stipulated by the Unified Development Code in conjunction 
with an approved site plan for a commercial/industrial building on an existing 2.02-acre 
commercial/industrial facility identified as Tract 2-22 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 
128, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) District, 
addressed as 496 National Drive, and take any action necessary.   
 
PURPOSE: 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of an exception to the exterior material requirements and a 
variance to the parking standards in conjunction with an approved site plan for the purpose of 
constructing a 3,600 sq. ft. building that will serve as an additional facility (for storage purposes) 
to an existing ~6,000 sq. ft. building.  An amendment to the site plan is required due to the 
proposed building exceeding 50% of the size of the existing building.  The applicant is proposing 
the new facility to be constructed with 100% metal panels on the exterior.  This will require 
approval of an exception to the exterior material requirements and has been added as a 
condition of approval.  The property is a 2.02-acre parcel of land that is zoned Heavy 
Commercial (HC) District and is addressed as 496 National Drive.    
 
DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
The proposed storage facility is permitted by right on the subject property.  The existing site has 
a total of 12 parking spaces and requires one (1) additional space.  The applicant is requesting 
a variance to allow for the 12 existing spaces rather than provide an additional space due to the 
buildings’ use as a storage facility.  The applicant has stated that the owner is not expanding 
their existing work force, which eliminates the need for the additional parking space.  This 
variance has also been included as a condition of approval.   
 
Aside from the exterior material exceptions, the variance to the parking standards, and the 
conditions listed in the Recommendations section of this report, the submitted site plan and 
building elevations are in substantial compliance with the technical requirements contained 
within the Unified Development Code (UDC).  
 

Ordinance Provisions Zoning District Standards Conformance to the Standards 
Minimum Lot Area 12,500 sq. ft. 2.02-Acres; In Conformance 
Minimum Lot Frontage  100-Feet x=350-Feet; In Conformance 
Minimum Lot Depth 125-Feet x=250-Feet; In Conformance 
Minimum Front Yard Setback 25-Feet x>25-Feet; In Conformance 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback  0-Feet x=10-Feet; In Conformance 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 0-Feet1 x=25-Feet; In Conformance 
Maximum Building Height 60-Ft w/o SUP2 16-Feet; In Conformance 

174
174



 

Ordinance Provisions Zoning District Standards Conformance to the Standards 
Max Building/Lot Coverage 60% X<60%; In Conformance 

Minimum Masonry Requirement 90% 
100% Metal Wall Panels; 

Exception Request  
Floor Area Ratio 4:1 x<4:1; In Conformance 

Minimum Number of Parking Spaces 13 
12 Provided;  

Variance Requested 

Minimum Stone Requirement (SH205 OV) 20% ea facade 
100% Metal Wall Panels; 

Exception Request 
Minimum Landscaping Percentage 15% x>15%; In Conformance 
Maximum Impervious Coverage 85 to 90% <85%; In Conformance 

 
NOTES: 1. With fire retardant wall: zero feet plus one-half of the building height over 36 feet. 
              2. Maximum building height: 240 feet. Any structure over 60 feet shall require a specific use permit. 
 

EXCEPTION AND VARIANCE REQUESTS: 
 
The applicant is requesting exceptions and a variance to the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
for the sections outlined below.  As a note, an exception request to the UDC requires passage 
of a simple majority vote of those City Council members present.  The code reads as follows: 
 

Exterior walls. Each exterior wall shall consist of 90 percent masonry materials as defined 
in article XIII…on walls which are visible from a public street or open space, including a 
minimum of 20 percent stone.  
 
All buildings shall have exterior walls constructed of stone, brick, glass block, tile, cast metal, 
cast or cultured stone, or a combination of those materials. The use of other cementaceous 
products (e.g., stucco, Hardy Plank, or other similar materials) shall be limited to 50 percent 
of the building’s exterior finishes…  
 
Exceptions to this requirement may be permitted on a case by case basis by the council 
upon submission and approval of elevation drawings of the subject structure, and material 
samples.  
 
The applicant is requesting the following exceptions to the exterior materials: 

 
a. Article V, Section 4.1.A.1 General Commercial District Standards – An exception to 

allow for not meeting the 90% (exterior) masonry material requirements by allowing 
100% metal wall panels for all elevations as submitted. 

 
b. Article V, Section 4.1.A.1 General Commercial District Standards – An exception to 

allow for not meeting the 20% stone requirements by allowing 100% metal wall 
panels for all elevations as submitted.  

 
      Sec. 2.3. - Expansion of an existing use.  If any building, improvement, or use of land is 

expanded, the provisions for parking and loading shall be provided for the portion of land 
use and/or building that has been added.  The required parking for is calculated as: 
  

Existing Nonconforming Building: 
 
 1 space per 300 sq. ft. of existing office space = 1,800 sq. ft./300 = 6 spaces 
 1 space per 1000 sq. ft. of warehouse/storage – 4,200 sq.ft./1,000 = 4 spaces 
  ** Existing parking spaces = 12 ** 
 
 New Facility: 
 
 1 space per 1000 sq. ft. of warehouse/storage – 3,600 sq. ft./1000 = 3 spaces 
  

175
175



 

Total Spaces Required = 13 Spaces 
 
The applicant is requesting the following exception to the Off Street Parking Standards. 

 
c. Article VI, Section 5.1 Off Street Parking Requirements – A variance to allow for not 

meeting the minimum off street parking requirement by continuing the use of the 12 
existing spaces rather than providing for the additional space.   

 
A request for an exception to the exterior material requirements and variance to the parking 
requirements are discretionary decisions for the City Council. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Should the City Council choose to approve the applicant’s request, then the following conditions 
of approval should be adopted with this case:  
 
1) All staff comments provided by the Planning, Engineering and Fire Department must be 

addressed prior to the submittal of a building permit.  
 

2) Approval of an exception to the exterior material requirements by the City Council to allow 
for a 100% metal structure as outlined in this report. 
 

3) Approval of a variance to the off street parking requirements by the City Council to allow for 
not meeting the off street parking requirements and to continue the use of the 12 existing 
parking spaces as outlined in this report. 
 

4) Any construction or building necessary to complete this Site Plan request must conform to 
the requirements set forth by the UDC, the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall 
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other 
applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal 
government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
 
On September 13, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to approve the site plan 
with staff conditions passed by a vote of 6 to 0 with Commissioner Renfro absent.  The motion 
also included a recommendation of approval for the exception to the exterior material 
requirements by allowing for the use of 100% metal panel for the exterior of the building and a 
variance to the parking standards to allow for not meeting the requirements and to continue the 
use of the existing 12 parking spaces. 

176
176



City of Rockwall
Project Plan Review History

8/24/2016

Project Number SP2016-016
496 National Drive

496 NATIONAL DR

MEADE, JAMES W & ROBIN N
Project Name

AMENDING
Type
Subtype

Applied
Approved
Closed
Expired
Status 

8/12/2016

LM

LM
Owner
Applicant SEYMORE CUSOM HOMES LLC

Site Address City, State Zip

Parcel No
2-22 NULL 2-22

Subdivision Tract Block Lot No

8/12/2016

0128-0000-0002-22-0R

Zoning

General Plan

STAFF REVIEWStatus

SITE PLAN

ROCKWALL, TX 75032

Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

BUILDING John Shannon 8/12/2016 8/17/2016 58/19/2016 APPROVED

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 8/12/2016 8/24/2016 See Condition
(8/19/2016 1:42 PM AW)
If any paving is installed it must adhere to all engineering standards including detention. No new rock/gravel will be allowed to be installed.

128/19/2016 APPROVED W/ CONDITIONS

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 8/12/2016 8/17/2016 58/19/2016 APPROVED

GIS Lance Singleton 8/12/2016 8/23/2016 118/19/2016 APPROVED

PLANNING David Gonzales 8/12/2016 8/17/2016 See comments
Discuss and consider a request by Tim Seymore of Seymore Custom Homes, LLC on behalf of James & Robin Meade for the approval of a site plan for the construction
of a commercial/industrial building on an existing 2.02-acre commercial/industrial facility identified as Tract 2-22 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) District, addressed as 496 National Drive, and take any action necessary.  

The following staff comments are to be addressed and resubmitted no later than Tuesday, September 7, 2016.  Please provide three large copies [24" X 36" FOLDED] 
and one PDF version for a subsequent review by staff:

Planning Department General Comments to be addressed:

1. Adherence to Engineering and Fire Department standards shall be required.
2. Submittal and approval of a Civil Engineering Plans (if required) and a Final Plat (plat must be filed) prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO).
3. Label site plan documents with "Case No. SP2016-016" at the lower right corner of each plan.
4. All exterior signage requries submittal and approval of a separate building permit through the Building Inspections Department.  

EXCEPTIONS FOR CITY COUNCIL TO CONSIDER:

58/19/2016 COMMENTS

Project Reviews.rpt Page 1 of 2177
177



Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

1. Art V, Sec. 4.1.A.1 requires each exterior wall to consist of 90% masonry materials,..., including 20% stone on walls which are visible from a public street or open
space. North, South, East & West elevations require a minimum 20% stone and do not meet this standard.
2. Art V, Sec. 4.1.A.1 requires each exterior wall to consist of 90% masonry materials,..., on walls which are visible from a public street or open space. North, South,
East & West elevations do not provide a minimum 90% masonry material and exceed 10% secondary materials with the use of metal wall panels.

** Approval of exceptions to the exterior materials requested requires passage by a simple majority vote of City Council. **

Please addressthe following Planning Comments for each plan submitted:

Site Plan:
1. UDC, Article VI Parking and Loading, Sec. 2.3. - Expansion of an existing use - If any building, improvement, or use of land is expanded, the provisions for parking
and loading shall be provided for the portion of land use and/or building that has been added. Provide floor plan of the existing building for determination of
additional parking spaces required. The proposed (storage) structure requries a minimum of 3 spaces (1:1000).
2. Remove semi-circles from site plan.

Landscape Plan:
1. Are you providing any (additional) landscapeing?

Photometric Plan:
1. Will there be any additional exterior lighting (wall packs, poles, etc.) for the proposed building/site? If so, please provide a photometric plan for the new lighting
fixtures meeting city standards.
2. Additional lighting pole standards are not to exceed a maximum overall heightof 30-ft (includes pole, base, fixtures, etc.) per the UDC standards. Provide detail.
3. Provide cut sheets for all exterior lighting fixtures (e.g. pole lights, wall packs, etc.)
4. Any additional lighting sources are to be directed down and sheilded with a full cut-off or partial cut-off source and a maximum 1 inch reveal in order to control
glare.
5. Maximum lighting intensity at the property line is not to exceed 0.2-FC. Resubmit photometric plan and indicate readings to all property lines and in compliance
with UDC (i.e. 0.2-FC)

Building Elevations:
1. What type of metal wall paneling is being used for the exterior of the proposed structure?
2. Approval of the exceptions to the exterior material standards is required by the City Council as indicated above.

The following are scheduled meeting dates that you and/or your representative(s) should attend regarding the Site Plan. If you have any quesitons regarding this
case, please feel free to contact David Gonzales, AICP with the Planning Department at 972-771-7745.

Meeting Dates to Attend:Planning - Work Session: August 30, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [Applicant to provide presenation and discuss project]
Planning - Action: September 13, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [P&Z to take action (i.e. approve, approve with conditions, or deny)

City Council - Action: September 19, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [FOR EXCEPTION REQUESTS ONLY]

Project Reviews.rpt Page 2 of 2178
178



NA
TI
O
N
AL

HC

AG

SP2016-016- 496 NATIONAL DRIVE
SITE PLAN - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 60 120 180 24030
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I179

179



1

Gonzales, David

From: Tim Seymore <tim.tsch@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Thursday, September 08, 2016 12:38 PM
To: Gonzales, David; Jimmy Meade
Subject: Re: P&Z Meeting Tonight - National Drive

As per our conversation yesterday you told me that we need one more parking spot to make the 
building work.  My property owner wants to ask for a variance on the extra parking space.  He has 
adequate parking for office personnel and the additional building is not for added employees, it is for 
equipment storage only. 
Thanks, Tim 

Right-click here to download 
pictures.  To help protect your  
privacy, Outlook prevented 
auto matic downlo ad o f this  
picture from the Internet.

www.timseymore.com

On Friday, September 2, 2016 6:45 AM, "Gonzales, David" <DGonzales@rockwall.com> wrote:

Thank you, Tim.  I will look this over and let you know if there is anything else I need.

Enjoy your holiday weekend,

DAVID GONZALES, AICP
SENIOR PLANNER • Planning & Zoning Division • City of Rockwall 
972.772.6488 OFFICE 
DGONZALES@ROCKWALL.COM
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087
helpful links | City of Rockwall Website | Planning & Zoning Division Website | Municipal Code Website

City of Rockwall Interactive Maps

From: Tim Seymore [mailto:tim.tsch@sbcglobal.net]
Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2016 9:02 PM 
To: Gonzales, David 
Cc: 'meadegroup@juno.com' 
Subject: Re: P&Z Meeting Tonight - National Drive

David,
Will this work for the floor plan of the existing building at 496 National Dr.  You said you needed this 
to calculate parking spaces.  There are 12 spaces in front of the building and 6 spaces over to the 
side front.  There is a lot of parking around the building behind the fence.  Let me know if you need 
something other than this.
Tim  214-803-2763 

www.timseymore.com

180
180



2

On Tuesday, August 30, 2016 7:26 AM, "Gonzales, David" <DGonzales@rockwall.com> wrote:

Mr. Seymore, 

Please find attached staff comments for your project in Rockwall.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission will conduct a work session tonight, Tuesday, August 30th.  The meeting will begin at 
6:00 p.m. in the City’s Council Chambers.  You and/or your representative will present your project to 
the Commission and answer questions they may have regarding the project.  If you have any 
questions prior to the meeting, please let me know. 

Thank you,

DAVID GONZALES, AICP
SENIOR PLANNER • Planning & Zoning Division • City of Rockwall 
972.772.6488 OFFICE 
DGONZALES@ROCKWALL.COM
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087
helpful links | City of Rockwall Website | Planning & Zoning Division Website | Municipal Code Website

City of Rockwall Interactive Maps

181
181



182
182



183
183



184
184



185
185



186
186



187
187



188
188



189
189



190
190



191
191



192
192



193
193



194
194



195
195



196
196



197
197



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

198
198



 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

 
AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2016 
 
APPLICANT:  Rex Walker of Life Springs Church 
 
AGENDA ITEM: SP2016-017; Life Spring Church – Amended Site Plan 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Discuss and consider a request by Rex Walker of Life Springs Church for the approval of a 
variance to the horizontal articulation requirements in conjunction with an amended site plan for 
a church facility on a seven (7) acre portion of a larger 28.881-acre tract of land identified as 
Tract 15-01 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Corridor Overlay 
(SH 205 BY-OV) District, located on the north side of John King Boulevard east of the 
intersection of John King Boulevard and SH-205, and take any action necessary. 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
The property is zoned Agricultural (AG) District and was granted a Specific Use Permit [SUP 
Ord. No. 15-21] on August 3, 2015 to allow for a Church development on the seven (7) acre 
portion of the larger 28.811-acre tract of land.  The property is also within the SH-205 By-Pass 
Corridor Overlay (SH205 BY-OV) District and is generally located on the north side of John King 
Boulevard, east of the intersection of John King Boulevard and SH-205. 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a variance to the horizontal articulation standards in 
conjunction with an amended site plan for the purpose of revising the approved elevations by 
reducing the 25,433 sq. ft. building to a 16,839 sq. ft. building.  The applicant will be modifying 
the exterior appearance of the rear (east) elevation by reducing the massing of the tower 
elements and by changing the roof to slope towards the rear of the property for drainage 
purposes.  Also, the applicant is proposing to change the front (west) elevation by replacing the 
standing seam metal roof element (atop the facility) with a stucco parapet wall.  If approved, the 
site plan will indicate the ~6,000 sq. ft. vacated area as ‘future expansion’ of the Church facility. 
 
VARIANCE REQUESTS: 
 

1. The applicant is requesting a variance to the Unified Development Code, Article V, 
Section 4.1 General Commercial District Standards, to allow for not meeting the 
Horizontal Articulation requirements as established in Art. V, Sec. 4.1, C.1.a. and as 
depicted in the Building Elevations as submitted. The code reads as follows: 

 
C. Building articulation.  

1. Requirements. Facades shall meet the following minimum standards for 
articulation:  

 
a) Horizontal articulation. No building wall shall extend for a distance equal to three 

times the wall's height without having an offset of 25 percent of the wall's height, 
and that new plane shall extend for a distance equal to at least 25 percent of the 
maximum length of the first plane.  

 

199
199



 

Although the applicant has provided contrasting elements depicting offsets for the north, south 
and east elevations, the offsets do not meet the technical definition for horizontal articulation.  It 
should be noted that the applicant received approval of the same variance on August 17, 2015 
[Case No. SP2015-016]; however, due the substantial change of the elevations, the applicant is 
required to make the request for not meeting the technical standards for horizontal articulation 
once again.  The variance requires an approval by a simple majority vote of all council members 
present.      
 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
On August 30, 2016, the Architectural Review Board (ARB) reviewed the proposed amended 
building elevations for the site.  General discussion concerning the agenda item took place 
between the Board Members and city staff.  The board expressed concern with the metal panels 
being used for the rear elevation.  They also expressed concern for the lack of horizontal and 
vertical articulation based on the changes presented.     
 
To address these concerns the board recommended that the applicant not use the metal panel 
located at the rear, rather use the original building materials that were approved, including the 
pilasters to give the appearance of horizontal articulation.  The board also recommended the 
applicant add the tower elements back to the rear elevation to provide vertical articulation.  
 
Based on the revised elevations re-submitted, the applicant appears to have met the ARB’s 
recommendations; however, the ARB has requested to review the elevations at the September 
13, 2016 meeting in order to provide a recommendation to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.   
 
On September 13, 2016, after review and discussion of the proposed change to the rear 
elevation, the ARB recommended to the applicant that the stone elements on the rear (east) 
elevation be wrapped around onto the north and south elevations, and to create a more 
symmetrical appearance with the pilasters of the north and south elevation to create balance.  
The ARB also requested the applicant provide a parapet wall (with scuppers for drainage) with 
varying heights to provide vertical articulation.  The applicant agreed with the recommendations.  
The ARB made a motion to recommend approval of the changes which passed by a vote of 6 to 
0 with Board Member Strohmeyer absent.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Should the City Council choose to approve the applicant’s request, then the following conditions 
of approval should be adopted with this case:  
 
1) All comments provided by the Planning, Engineering and Fire Department must be 

addressed prior to the submittal of a building permit and to include the following Planning 
comments; 
 
a. Approval of the variances requested from the City Council for not meeting the horizontal 

articulation standards of the Unified Development Code as noted in this report.   
 

2) Any construction or building necessary to complete this Site Plan request must conform to 
the requirements set forth by the UDC, the 2009 International Building Code, the Rockwall 
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other 
applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal 
government. 

 
 
 

200
200



 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
 
On September 13, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to approve the 
amended site plan with staff conditions and the ARB’s recommendation passed by a vote of 6 to 
0 with Commissioner Renfro absent.  The motion also included a recommendation of approval 
to the amended building elevations by allowing for the variance to the horizontal articulation as 
depicted on the buildings’ elevations. 
 

201
201



City of Rockwall
Project Plan Review History

9/9/2016

Project Number SP2016-017
Life Spring Church

JOHN KING BLVD

LIFE SPRING CHURCH
Project Name

AMENDING
Type
Subtype

Applied
Approved
Closed
Expired
Status 

8/12/2016

LM

LM
Owner
Applicant LIFE SPRING CHURCH

Site Address City, State Zip

Parcel No
LIFE SPRING DR (ROW) 15-02 NULL 15-02
Subdivision Tract Block Lot No

8/15/2016

0187-0000-0015-02-0R

Zoning

General Plan

STAFF REVIEWStatus

SITE PLAN

ROCKWALL, TX 75087

Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

BUILDING John Shannon 8/12/2016 8/17/2016 58/19/2016 APPROVED

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 8/12/2016 8/19/2016 See Comment
(8/19/2016 2:00 PM AW)
The fire hydrant by the future building needs to be a minimum of 5' from the building. No structure is allowed in an easement.
The engineering plans will need to be revised to reflect any changes including the relocation of meters and fire service.

78/19/2016 COMMENTS

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 8/12/2016 see comments
(8/17/2016 2:32 PM AA)
Fire Department Connection (FDC) shall be located within 100-ft. of a fire hydrant, facing fire lane, and provided with an unobstructed 5-ft. wide pathway from the 
fire lane to the connection.  (no parking allowed in the 5-ft. pathway, show pathway on plan)

8/19/2016

GIS Lance Singleton 8/12/2016 8/23/2016 118/19/2016 APPROVED

PLANNING David Gonzales 8/12/2016 8/17/2016 See comments
Discuss and consider a request by Rex Walker of Life Springs Church for the approval of an amended site plan for a church on a seven (7) acre portion of a larger 
28.881-acre tract of land identified as Tract 15-01 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) 
District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Corridor Overlay (SH 205 BY-OV) District, located on the north side of John King Boulevard east of the intersection of John 
King Boulevard and SH-205, and take any action necessary.

The following staff comments are to be addressed and resubmitted no later than Tuesday, September 7, 2016.  Please provide three large copies [24" X 36" FOLDED] 
and one PDF version for a subsequent review by staff:

Planning Department General Comments to be addressed:

1. Adherence to Engineering and Fire Department standards shall be required.
2. Label revised site plan documents with "Case No. SP2016-017" at the lower right corner of each plan.

58/19/2016 COMMENTS

Project Reviews.rpt Page 1 of 3

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 8/12/2016 8/19/2016 See Comment
(8/19/2016 2:00 PM AW)
The fire hydrant by the future building needs to be a minimum of 5' from the building. No structure is allowed in an easement.
The engineering plans will need to be revised to reflect any changes including the relocation of meters and fire service.

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 8/12/2016 see comments
(8/17/2016 2:32 PM AA)
Fire Department Connection (FDC) shall be located within 100-ft. of a fire hydrant, facing fire lane, and provided with an unobf structed 5-ft. wide pathway from the 
fire lane to the connection.  (no parking allowed in the 5-ft. pathway, show pathway on plan)

202
202



Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

VARIANCES AND EXCEPTIONS FOR CITY COUNCIL TO CONSIDER:

* 1. Art V, Sec. 6.10.C.1 of the SH 205 BY OV (and the UDC) requires each exterior wall to consist of 90% masonry materials,..., including 20% stone on walls which are
visible from a public street or open space. The East elevation requires a minimum 20% stone and does not meet this standard.
* 2. Art V, Sec. 6.10.C.1.a of the SH 205 BY OV (and the UDC) requires each exterior wall to consist of 90% masonry materials,..., on walls which are visible from a
public street or open space. The East  elevation does not provide a minimum 90% masonry material and exceeds the 10% secondary materials with the use of metal
wall panels.
* 3. Art V, Sec. 6.10.C.5 of the SH 205 BY OV (and the UDC) requires that all commercial buildings be architecturally finished on all four sides with the same materials,
detailing, and features...the buildings east elevation as submitted is not meeting the minimum requirements.

**4. ArtV, Sec. 4.1. of the UDC - Exception to the Horizontal & Vertical Articulation Standards - the buildings north elevation as submitted is not meeting the minimum
requirements establish for the General Commercial District Standards. Requires a simple majority vote of council for approval.

* Approval of the variances to the SH 205 By-Pass OV requires passage by a 3/4 majority vote of City Council.

** Approval of the exceptions to the horizontal and vertical articulation standards requires passage by a simple majority vote of City Council.

Please addressthe following Planning Comments for each plan submitted:

Site Plan:
Hatch the area reduced to reflect the future expansion to be considered and label as such for both the building and parking area's (use light gray lines).

Building Elevations:
1. What type of metal paneling is being used for the exterior of the proposed structure?
2. Provide calculation for all exterior materials.
3. Approval of the variances & exceptions as submitted is required by the City Council as indicated above.

The following are scheduled meeting dates that you and/or your representative(s) should attend regarding the Site Plan. If you have any quesitons regarding this
case, please feel free to contact David Gonzales, AICP with the Planning Department at 972-771-7745.

Meeting Dates to Attend:

Planning - Work Session: August 30, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [Applicant to provide presenation and discuss project]
Planning - Action: September 13, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [P&Z to take action (i.e. approve, approve with conditions, or deny)

City Council - Action: September 19, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [FOR VARIANCE & EXCEPTION REQUESTS ONLY]
PLANNING David Gonzales 9/9/2016 9/9/2016 See comments

Planning Department General Comments to be addressed:

1. Adherence to Engineering and Fire Department standards shall be required.
2. Label revised site plan documents with "Case No. SP2016-017" at the lower right corner of each plan.
3. Approval of the variance requested for not meeting the horizontal articulation standards.

9/16/2016 COMMENTS

Project Reviews.rpt Page 2 of 3

PLANNING David Gonzales 9/9/2016 9/9/2016 See comments
Planning Department General Comments to be addressed:

1. Adherence to Engineering and Fire Department standards shall be required.
2. Label revised site plan documents with "Case No. SP2016-017" at the lower right corner of each plan.
3. Approval of the variance requested for not meeting the horizontal articulation standards.

203
203



Type of Review / Notes Contact Sent Received StatusElapsedDue Remarks

VARIANCES AND EXCEPTIONS FOR CITY COUNCIL TO CONSIDER:

**1. ArtV, Sec. 4.1. of the UDC - Exception to the Horizontal & Vertical Articulation Standards - the buildings north elevation as submitted is not meeting the minimum
requirements establish for the General Commercial District Standards. Requires a simple majority vote of council for approval.

** Approval of the exceptions to the horizontal and vertical articulation standards requires passage by a simple majority vote of City Council.

Please addressthe following Planning Comments for each plan submitted:

Site Plan:
1. Hatch the area reduced to reflect the future expansion to be considered and label as such for both the building and parking area's (use light gray lines).

Building Elevations:
1. Approval of the variances & exceptions as submitted is required by the City Council as indicated above.

The following are scheduled meeting dates that you and/or your representative(s) should attend regarding the Site Plan. If you have any quesitons regarding this
case, please feel free to contact David Gonzales, AICP with the Planning Department at 972-771-7745.

Meeting Dates to Attend:

Planning - Action: September 13, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [P&Z to take action (i.e. approve, approve with conditions, or deny)

City Council - Action: September 19, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [FOR VARIANCE REQUEST]

Project Reviews.rpt Page 3 of 3

VARIANCES AND EXCEPTIONS FOR CITY COUNCIL TO CONSIDER:

**1. ArtV, Sec. 4.1. of the UDC - Exception to the Horizontal & Vertical Articulation Standards - the buildings north elevation as submitted is not meeting the minimum
requirements establish for the General Commercial District Standards. Requires a simple majority vote of council for approval.

** Approval of the exceptions to the horizontal and vertical articulation standards requires passage by a simple majority vote of City Council.

Please addressthe following Planning Comments for each plan submitted:

Site Plan:
1. Hatch the area reduced to reflect the future expansion to be considered and label as such for both the building and parking area's (use light gray lines).

Building Elevations:
1. Approval of the variances & exceptions as submitted is required by the City Council as indicated above.

The following are scheduled meeting dates that you and/or your representative(s) should attend regarding the Site Plan. If you have any quesitons regarding this
case, please feel free to contact David Gonzales, AICP with the Planning Department at 972-771-7745.

Meeting Dates to Attend:

Planning - Action: September 13, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [P&Z to take action (i.e. approve, approve with conditions, or deny)

City Council - Action: September 19, 2016 (6:00 p.m.) [FOR VARIANCE REQUEST]

204
204



205
205



206
206



207
207

dgonzales
Line

dgonzales
Line

dgonzales
Text Box
Revised 



208
208



209
209



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

210
210



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley – City Manager 
 
FROM: Brad Griggs – Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Consent to Assign Concession Agreement  
  
 
Suntex RHCL Marina, LLC is the operator of the marina at Chandlers Landing.  Their 
concession agreement has recently been extended to January of 2041 and in return for 
the contract extension, they have agreed to complete several capital improvement 
projects.  The amendment to the concession agreement was approved at the June 16, 
2016 meeting of the City Council.   
 
At this time, they are requesting the approval to assign the concession agreement to 
Ray Hubbard SMI, LLC.  This new corporation has the same Board of Directors and will 
be operated in the same manner as Suntex RHCL Marina.  All terms of the concession 
agreement including the capital projects will be the responsibility of Ray Hubbard SMI. 
 
The “Consent to Assign Concession Agreement” was prepared by Suntex and reviewed 
and amended by the City Attorney. A copy of the agreement is attached for your review.  
Council approval would authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement as 
prepared.         

211
211



CONSENT TO ASSIGN 
CONCESSION AGREEMENT 

 
 
 SUNTEX RHCL MARINA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Assignor”) 
hereby notifies the City of Rockwall, Texas, (the “City”) that to maintain operations of the public 
marina complex for the purpose of benefitting the public pursuant to its Concession Agreement, 
dated August 14, 1972 (which after certain assignments was assigned to Assignor in September of 
2011 with the consent of the City), Assignor seeks the City’s consent to assign the Concession 
Agreement to Ray Hubbard SMI, LLC (“Assignee”), a Delaware limited liability company, 
pursuant to the foregoing conditions and requirements: 
 
 The City hereby consents to the assignment of the Concession Agreement, provided 
however, that such consent shall not be deemed to release Assignor from any obligation under the 
Concession Agreement in the event of a default by Assignee. 
 

The Assignee has received a copy of the Concession Agreement and Assignor has required 
in the Assignment Agreement that Assignee consents to comply with all terms and conditions the 
assignment of the Concession Agreement, dated August 14, 1972. 
 
 The City’s consent is not to be interpreted or construed as consent to any future assignment 
of the Concession Agreement from Assignee to any other person or entity. 
 
 The City’s consent is not to be interpreted or construed as release of Assignor of any of the 
obligations of Assignor under the Concession Agreement which arose before the effective date of 
the assignment, including those obligations which arose before the date of the assignment and are 
meant to survive the term of the Concession Agreement. 
 
 The City’s consent is not to be interpreted or construed as an amendment or diminution in 
any manner of the City’s rights and privileges pursuant to the Concession Agreement. 
 
 In Witness whereof, the City and Assignor have caused the Agreement to be executed 
pursuant to authorization this ______ day of August, 2016. 
 
 
  

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Rick Crowley, City Manager 
         

 
 
 
 

212
212



 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 
STATE OF TEXAS                )  
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL (  
CITY OF ROCK WALL      ) 

 
BEFORE ME, a notary public in and for said county and state, personally appeared 

Richard R. Crowley, City Manager of the City of Rockwall, and acknowledged to me that he 
executed the within and foregoing document as his free and voluntary act and for the uses and 
purposes set forth therein. 

 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS ______ day of 

September, 2016. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Notary Public, in and for the  
       State of Texas 
 

Suntex RHCL Marina, LLC 
 

 
________________________ 
By: Bryan C. Redmond, Vice President 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS                )  
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL (  
CITY OF ROCK WALL      ) 

 
BEFORE ME, a notary public in and for said county and state, personally appeared 

Bryan C. Redmond, Vice President of Suntex RHCL Marina, LLC, and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the within and foregoing document as his free and voluntary act and for the 
uses and purposes set forth therein. 

 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS ______ day of 

September, 2016. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Notary Public, in and for the  
       State of Texas 

213
213



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

214
214



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: REDC Budget  
  
 
The Rockwall Economic Development Corporation Board approved the attached budget at their 
Board meeting on September 8, 2016. 
 
The budget is largely unchanged from this fiscal year’s base budget.  The EDC is completing a 
detention pond project which is funded from the remaining bond proceeds on hand and 
available cash.  A number of previously contracted incentives are due to be paid in fiscal year 
2017.  The EDC’s unallocated operating reserves will remain $2.7 million dollars after those 
payments and operating expenses. 
 
 
REDC President, Sheri Franza, will be available at the Council meeting to present aspects of 
the budget and answer any questions. 
 

215
215



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
21   Economic Development

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

Total Revenues 4,864,705         5,151,400         5,535,100         7,898,700         

Total Expenditures 10,168,076       6,203,250         6,157,350         8,727,500         

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (5,303,371)       (1,051,850)       (622,250)          (828,800)          

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) -                   -                   -                   -                   

Net Gain (Loss) (5,303,371)       (1,051,850)       (622,250)          (828,800)          

Fund Balance - Beginning 9,500,621         4,306,698         4,198,315         3,576,065         

Fund Balance - Ending 4,198,315         3,254,848         3,576,065         2,747,265         

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Page 1

9/13/2016

216
216



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
21   Economic Development 71   EDC Administration

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account Description 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

4150 Sales Tax 4,858,633         4,980,350         5,174,050         5,263,750        
4001 Interest Earnings 3,273                2,500               7,000                7,000               
4019 Misc. Revenue -                   -                  -                   -                  
4020 Interest/Reserve Fund 2,799                1,000               3,500                500                 
4160 Harbor Tax Rebates -                   167,550           167,550            -                  
4450 Technology Park Sales -                   -                  183,000            2,627,450        

Total Revenues 4,864,705         5,151,400         5,535,100         7,898,700        

-                  

-                  

Page 2

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

9/13/2016

217
217



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
21   Economic Development

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

REDC Administration 921,939           898,100           880,200           941,200           
Promotions & Marketing 231,482           252,500           252,500           255,000           
Incentives 2,196,305        2,065,400        2,008,500        3,612,150        
Capital Projects 3,418,611        -                  382,350           1,349,750        
Debt Service 3,399,739        2,987,250        2,633,800        2,569,400        

Total Expenditures 10,168,076      6,203,250        6,157,350        8,727,500        

1,977,384$      

Page 3

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES

Marketing Cap Allowable Carryover per 
Statute

9/13/2016

218
218



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund Division
21   Economic Development 71   Economic Develop.

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

Personnel 619,452         544,300               544,300          572,050           
Contractual 371,425         390,400               390,400          390,400           
Supplies 8,919             13,800                 13,800            12,300             
Operational 143,879         191,600               173,700          213,450           
Utilities 9,168             8,500                   8,500              6,000               
Capital 3,418,611      -                      382,350          1,349,750        
Incentive Grants 2,196,883      2,067,400            2,010,500      3,614,150        

-                  
Total 6,768,337      3,216,000            3,523,550      6,158,100        

Position
FY 16 

Approved
FY 17 

Proposed

Economic Development Corporation President 1 1
Director of Business & Project Development 1 1
Director of Marketing 1 1
Executive Assistant 1 1

DIVISION SUMMARY

                          Department
                70   Economic Development          

Expenditure Summary

Page 4

Personnel Schedule

Activity Trends

 1,000,000

 3,000,000

 5,000,000

 7,000,000

 9,000,000

Expended  FY
15

 Budgeted FY
16

 Amended FY
16

 Proposed FY
17

Financial History

Personnel
23%

Contractual
13%

Supplies
1%

Operational
9%

Utilities
1%

Capital
9%

Incentive 
Grants
59%

FY 2017 Expenditures by Category

9/13/2016

219
219



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund Division
21   Economic Development 71   Economic Develop.

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17
Personnel

Salaries - Wages & Incentives 478,855        414,150         414,150         436,700              

Total Salaries - Wages Incentives 478,855        414,150         414,150         436,700              

120 FICA & Medicare 33,056          31,700           31,700           33,400                
122 Retirement 77,882          67,950           67,950           71,450                
128 Ins. Unemployment 3,159            2,000             2,000             2,000                  
224 Workers Comp. 500               500                500                500                     
230 Health Insurance 26,000          28,000           28,000           28,000                

-                   
Total Benefits 140,597        130,150         130,150         135,350              

-                   
Total Personnel Costs 619,452        544,300         544,300         572,050              

Contractual

210 Auditing 1,500            1,500             1,500             1,500                  
211 Legal 52,059          60,000           60,000           60,000                
213 Consulting Fees 54,265          60,000           60,000           60,000                
217 IT Services 15,522          13,000           13,000           13,000                
223 Insurance - Blanket Surety Bond 100               100                100                100                     
227 Insurance - Property 1,800            1,800             1,800             1,800                  
229 Insurance - Liability 500               500                500                500                     
232 Temporary Labor -                5,200             5,200             5,200                  
234 Marketing Expenses 183,955        180,000         180,000         180,000              
242 Equipment Rental & Lease 6,781            8,500             8,500             8,500                  
243 Building Lease 42,943          44,800           44,800           44,800                
244 Building Repairs -                3,000             3,000             3,000                  
299 Administrative Services 12,000          12,000           12,000           12,000                

Total Contractual 371,425        390,400         390,400         390,400              

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Description

Department
 70   Economic Develop.        

Page 5

9/13/2016

220
220



Annual Budget, Economic Development Cont'd
Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed

Account 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17
Supplies

301 Office Supplies 7,228            6,500             6,500             6,500                  
307 Postage 903               3,000             3,000             1,500                  
310 Printing & Binding 771               4,000             4,000             4,000                  
347 Gen. Maint. Supplies 17                 300                300                300                     

Total Supplies 8,919            13,800           13,800           12,300                

Operational

410 Dues & Subscriptions 284               2,000             2,000             2,000                  
428 Meeting Expenses - Other 9,165            7,000             7,000             7,000                  
430 Tuition & Training 1,903            2,500             2,500             4,000                  
436 Travel 7,309            30,000           30,000           30,000                
437 Marketing Conferences 12,803          12,500           12,500           15,000                
438 Prospect Visits 27,415          30,000           30,000           30,000                
439 Common Area Maintenance-Park 85,000          107,600         89,700           125,450              

Total Operational 143,879        191,600         173,700         213,450              

Utilities

507 Telephone 9,168            8,500             8,500             6,000                  

Total Utilities 9,168            8,500             8,500             6,000                  

Capital

612 Computer Equipment 5,403            -                 -                 -                     
678 Phase IV Eng/Construction 1,007,050     -                 100,000         1,349,750           
698 Justin Rd. Extension 2,406,158     -                 282,350         -                     

Total Capital 3,418,611     -                 382,350         1,349,750           

Incentives

660 Due Diligence 578               2,000             2,000             2,000                  
661 Contracted Incentives 2,196,305     2,065,400      2,008,500      3,612,150           

Total Incentives 2,196,883     2,067,400      2,010,500      3,614,150           

Division Total 6,768,337     3,216,000      3,523,550      6,158,100           

Description

Page 6

9/13/2016

221
221



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund Division
21   Economic Development 71   Economic Develop.

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17
Debt Service

750 Administration Fees 11,523            4,500              4,500              4,500              
752 Principal - Bonds 2,020,000       1,685,000       1,625,000       1,590,000       
754 Interest - Bonds 1,368,216       1,297,750       1,004,300       974,900          

Total Debt Service 3,399,739       2,987,250       2,633,800       2,569,400       

Detail Principal Interest
2008-Land Purchase 190,000          235,900          
2008-Infrastructure 275,000          22,400            
2012-Ref. Bonds (1999) 350,000          21,400            
2013- Infrastructure 290,000          269,438          
2013 Land Purchase 170,000          205,990          
2015 Ref Bonds (2006) 315,000          61,936            
2016 Ref Bonds (2008) -                 157,825          

1,590,000       974,889          

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Page 7

Description

Department
 70   Economic Develop.    

9/13/2016

222
222



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

223
223



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE: September 18, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: RTPA Budget  
  
 
The Rockwall Technology Park Association Board met Thursday September 18, 2015 to 
approve the budget for maintenance of the Tech Park.  The budget includes a slight increase in 
the park maintenance budget to reflect more frequent mowing intervals on the former Hitt 
property and a reserve for irrigation system repairs.   
 
REDC President, Sheri Franza, will be available at the Council meeting to answer any questions 
about the proposed budget. 
 

224
224



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
22   Tech Park Association

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

Total Revenues 149,584         185,100         187,100          198,100          

Total Expenditures 148,056         185,100         187,100          198,100          

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 1,528            -                -                 -                 

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) -                -                -                 -                 

Net Gain (Loss) 1,528            -                -                 -                 

Fund Balance - Beginning 44,248           37,415           45,776            45,776            

Fund Balance - Ending 45,776           37,415           45,776            45,776            

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Page 1

225
225



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
22   Tech Park Association

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account Description 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

4470 RTP Dues - Tenants 64,574           77,500           77,500            72,650            
REDC Cam Dues 85,000           107,600         109,600          125,450          

Total Revenues 149,584         185,100         187,100          198,100          

Page 2

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

RTPA

226
226



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund Division
22   Tech Park Association RTPA

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

121,329       141,300       141,300         154,300         
8,328           10,300         10,300           10,300           

18,399         33,500         35,500           33,500           

148,056       185,100       187,100         198,100         

DIVISION SUMMARY

                          Department
                70   Economic Development          

Expenditure Summary

Contractual
Supplies
Utilities

Total

Page 3

227
227



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund Division 75
22   Tech Park Association

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

Contractual

210 Auditing 500             500             500                500                
227 Insurance - Property 900             900             900                900                
247 Landscape/Irrig Maint 106,126      110,000      110,000         120,000         
299 Administrative Svcs 2,000          2,000          2,000             2,000             

Total Contractual 109,526      113,400      113,400         123,400         

Supplies

329 Flag Replacements 8,328          6,000        6,000            9,000           
347 Gen. Maint. Supplies -             1,000          1,000             1,000             

Total Supplies 8,328          7,000          7,000             10,000           

Utilities

501 Electric 239             2,000          2,000             3,500             
513 Water 13,552        20,000        20,000           30,000           

Total Utilities 13,791        22,000        22,000           33,500           

Division Total 131,645      142,400      142,400         166,900         

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Department
 70   Economic Develop.        

Description

Page 4

 RTPA Developed Phases

228
228



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund Division 77
22   Tech Park Association RTPA Undeveloped Phases

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

Contractual

227 Insurance - Property 900            900            900                900                
247 Landscape/Irrig Maint 10,903       27,000       27,000           30,000           

Total Contractual 11,803       27,900       27,900           30,900           

Supplies

329 Flag Replacements -            3,000         3,000             -                
347 Gen. Maint. Supplies -            300            300                300                

Total Supplies -            3,300         3,300             300                

Utilities

501 Electric 1,699         1,500         1,500             -                
513 Water 2,909         10,000       12,000           -                

Total Utilities 4,608         11,500       13,500           -                

Division Total 16,411       42,700       44,700           31,200           

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Department
 70   Economic Develop.        

Description

incl. mowing EDC owned lots

Page 5

229
229



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

230
230



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Hotel/Motel Funding Recommendation 
  
The Hotel / Motel subcommittee comprised of Council members White, Lewis and Milder met to 
discuss funding requests for budget year 2016-2017.  The Council received a notebook 
including the organization’s requests along with their required reporting for this year’s funded 
events.  Attached is a summary of the requests with the previous year’s allocations to the 
organizations.  This summary also includes the subcommittee recommendations for funding. 
 
Revenues and Fund Balance 
 
Staff continues to be conservative in the projection of revenues.  With that said, revenues 
increased by 16.6% during the current year and are expected to maintain that level for fiscal 
year 2017.  We expect to receive $400,000 in hotel tax revenues and to finish fiscal year 2016 
with a fund balance of $175,000.  The committee chose to maintain a healthy fund balance in 
order to allow flexibility in meeting supplemental requests during the year.   
 
Funding Levels 
 
Funding requests for fiscal year 2016 totaled $657,789 which is a 47% increase from the current 
year’s requests.  Each specific application was discussed and whether they met our stated 
purposes and the state statute’s requirement for “heads in beds”.  The subcommittee’s 
recommendations for funding are attached.  The subcommittee chose funding levels as 
revenues allowed with most organizations receiving less than they requested due to a lack of 
sufficient revenues.  Specific items which were not funded are noted on the attached 
spreadsheet as well. An additional funding request is forthcoming from the Texas Crime 
Prevention Association which is working out details to hold their 2017 conference in Rockwall.  
Chief Poindexter is an association member and was able to provide preliminary figures on the 
conference in advance of the application which was sent to Council by email this week.  The 
subcommittee also increased the recommended funding for Founders Day to a greater amount. 
 
Contract Language/Documentation 
 
Each organization will continue to be required to provide documentation such as a log, 
guestbook, registration list or other documentation that specifically notes if each person is 
spending the night in a hotel establishment.  The City provides a link which must be included in 
each printed ad or event website with contact information for the hotels.  
 
Staff will be available at the Council meeting to answer any questions. 

231
231



2015 2016 2017 2017
Council    

Subcommittee
Actual Budget Request Event Recommendation

Tourism
  Artist's League 3,500       6,100       9,800         Fine Art Show 3,500                     
  Aspasians 2,000       2,500       -                 -                             
  Balloon Festival -               -               7,750          -                              

  Chamber of Commerce 114,865   94,000     189,358     CVB support & sign 88,665                    

funding for: staffing, Visitors 
brochure and 

1/2 Tourism video

  Chili Cookoff -               -               comp space comp space
  Colbert Project 6,700       12,500     55,647       Firefighters Ball 15,000                   
  Disc Golf 2,500       5,000         Disc Golf Tournament 5,000                     
  Duck Regatta 20,000     25,000     30,000       Rubber Duck Race 25,000                   
  Friends of the Library comp space comp space 1,000         Christmas Luncheon comp space
  Helping Hands -               -               20,000       Festival of Trees 5,000                      
  Hilton -               -               27,484       Various Conventions 27,484                    
  Kiwanis 9,500       9,500       9,500         Tri-Rock Triathlon 9,500                      
  Lone Star CASA 5,000       6,500       15,000       Car Show 6,500                      
  Old Town Shoppes -               25,000     -                -                              
  Rotary Noon 9,500       10,000     -                -                              
  Sail with Scott -               16,000     -                 -                              
  Soroptimist 2,500       3,000       20,000       Country Fair 3,000                      
  TrendHR -               5,000       5,000         Human Res Conference 5,000                      
  Pacific Sports 3,000       18,500     18,500       Triathlon 18,500                    
      SubTotals 176,565   236,100   414,039     212,149                 
Cultural    
  Community Playhouse 4,000       5,000       10,350       Various Productions 5,000                     
  Music Fest 12,860     13,000     24,000       Concerts 13,000                   
  Summer Musicals 3,500       4,000       10,000       Various Productions 4,000                     
      SubTotals 20,360     22,000     44,350       22,000                   
Historical   
  Historical Foundation 4,000       4,000       12,500       Rock Wall preservation 12,500                   
City  

  Concert by the Lake 26,773     32,000     38,000       38,000                    
  Downtown Music Series 11,097     12,000     23,000       adding Thurs. night 23,000                   

  Founders Day 62,952     79,500     79,500       100,000                  
Increased amount for 

Headliner band 

  Crime Prevention Conference -               -               25,000       2017 Annual Conference 25,000                   
  Mainstreet (Old Town Shoppes) 8,725       17,170     31,400        31,400                   
  Mainstreet Conference -               15,500     -                -                             
  TAAF Conference 6,917       -               -                -                             
  Memorial Day Concert 4,098       5,000       5,000         5,000                     
  Rib Rub 9,634       10,000     10,000       10,000                   
  Harbor 10th Anniversary -               15,000     -                -                             
      SubTotals 130,196   186,170   211,900     232,400                 

Totals 331,121   448,270   682,789     479,049                  
 

Fund Summary
Projected Fund Balance 10-01-16 175,000   
     Projected Revenue FY17 400,000   
       Less Cultural 22,000     
       Less City Events 232,400   
       Less Tourism/Historical 224,649   

  Sub Total 479,049     

Projected Fund Balance 09-30-17 95,951       

Hotel Occupancy Tax Funding Requests for FY 2017

232
232



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

233
233



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Amending the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget 
  
 
The final General fund budget summary sheets for the fiscal year 2016 amended and fiscal year 
2017 proposed budget are included in the Council packet with the budget adoption agenda item.  
The amended budget was not changed during budget discussions. 
 
 
 

234
234



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR OCTOBER 1, 2015 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 
2016; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That the budget of the City Council of the City of Rockwall for the 

fiscal year October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016, be and the same is hereby 
amended and such amendments are indicated and shown on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, this 19th day of September, 2016. 

 
 

    
ATTEST:  Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
 
 
  
Kristy Ashberry, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Frank Garza, City Attorney 
 

235
235



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

236
236



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Adopting the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget 
  
Notebook.  It is included by reference only, rather than presented again in its entirety.   
 
General Fund  
 
The General Fund as adopted will anticipate tax collections based on a 45.43 cent tax rate with 
expenditures adjusted as discussed at the previous Council meetings. 
 
The budget as included in the Council packet includes funding for Meals on Wheels Senior 
Services in the amount of $30,000.  Council members White and Lewis have requested a 
separate vote on this funding from which they will recuse themselves.   
 
If further discussion of any specific appropriation is needed it should take place prior to the vote 
on the budget ordinance. 
  
Water – Sewer Fund 
 
The budget as proposed reflected increased sales revenue from a rate increase.  The 
associated rate resolution will be presented to Council shortly with the new rates to be effective 
on January 1st.   
 
Budget Cover Wording 
 
Senate Bill 656 effective for budgets adopted after September 1, 2013 requires specific wording 
is included in the adopted budget document.  The following statement will appear on the cover 
of the document and be published on the City’s website for one year: 
 
"This budget will raise the same amount of revenue from property taxes as last year's budget.  
The property tax revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax roll this year is 
$504,907.” 
 
Staff proposes Council have the statement read into the record prior to the Council’s vote on the 
ordinance adopting the budget. 

237
237



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, APPROVING AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR 
THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR OCTOBER 1, 2016, THROUGH 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017; PROVIDING THAT EXPENDITURES FOR SAID 
FISCAL YEAR SHALL BE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SAID 
BUDGET; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Rockwall, Texas has heretofore filed 

with the City Secretary a proposed General Budget for the City covering the fiscal year 
aforesaid, and 

 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the City has concluded its public hearing on 

said budget, 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 7.06 of the City Charter, the budget for 

fiscal year 2016-17 is being adopted in a timely manner, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That said budget for the fiscal year October 1, 2016, through 

September 30, 2017, be and the same is hereby attached to this ordinance and made a 
part hereof for all purposes and marked “Exhibit A”. 

 
Section 2. That said budget attached hereto and marked “Exhibit A” be, 

and the same hereby is, approved and adopted by the City Council as the official budget 
for the City for the fiscal year aforesaid. 

 
Section 3. That expenditures during the fiscal year shall be made in 

accordance with the budget approved by this ordinance unless otherwise amended by a 
duly enacted ordinance of the city. 

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, this 19th day of September, 2016. 

 
   
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
  
Kristy Ashberry, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Frank Garza, City Attorney 

238
238



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

Total Revenues 31,022,838    31,589,800    32,628,200    34,044,150   
-               

Total Operating Expenditures 26,358,333    28,810,600    28,346,200    31,283,550   

Capital Reserve Expenditures 900,921        1,203,000      2,029,750      2,091,150     

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 3,763,584      1,576,200      2,252,250      669,450        

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (2,591,500)     (2,816,500)     (3,080,100)     (2,833,500)    

Net Gain (Loss) 1,172,084      (1,240,300)     (827,850)        (2,164,050)    
-               

Fund Balance - Beginning 10,305,644    10,033,294    11,477,728    10,649,878   

Fund Balance - Ending 11,477,728    8,792,994      10,649,878    8,485,828     

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

 01-1239
239



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account Description 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

4100 Current Taxes 8,692,937           9,588,000     9,710,000     10,689,500   
4105 Delinquent Taxes 90,779                60,000          60,000          60,000          
4110 Penalty & Interest 39,378                60,000          60,000          60,000          

Total Property Taxes 8,823,094           9,708,000     9,830,000     10,809,500   

4150 Sales Taxes 14,302,831         14,941,000    15,481,000    15,791,200   
4155 Beverage Taxes 242,541              210,000        234,000        245,000        

Total Sales Taxes 14,545,372         15,151,000    15,715,000    16,036,200   

4201 Electrical Franchise 2,191,743           1,725,000     1,775,000     1,795,000     
4203 Telephone Franchise 174,095              150,000        150,000        150,000        
4205 Gas Franchise 538,099              440,000        437,000        450,000        
4207 Cable TV Franchise 805,110              600,000        675,000        775,000        
4209 Garbage Franchise 218,454              218,000        225,000        235,000        

Total Franchise 3,927,501           3,133,000     3,262,000     3,405,000     

4250 Park & Recreation Fees 29,558                35,000          35,000          35,000          
4251 Municipal Pool Fees 16,060                17,000          28,000          22,000          
4253 Center Rentals 47,499                38,000          39,500          39,500          
4255 Harbor Rentals 1,760                  10,000          10,000          10,000          
4260 Tax Certificate Fees 1,232                  250               250               250              
4270 Code Enforcement Fees 20,220                5,000            45,000          5,000           
4280 Zoning Request Fees 49,106                35,000          40,000          35,000          
4283 Construction Inspection 264,468              280,000        400,000        300,000        
4295 Fire - Plans 15,115                20,000          13,000          15,000          

Total Fees 445,017              440,250        610,750        461,750        

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

 01-2240
240



Summary of Revenues, Cont'd.
Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed

Account Description 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

4300 Building Permits 984,598              775,000        815,000        800,000        
4302 Fence Permits 19,230                20,000          24,000          20,000          
4304 Electrical Permits 25,500                30,000          26,000          30,000          
4306 Plumbing Permits 42,732                38,000          43,000          40,000          
4308 Mechanical Permits 43,207                39,000          45,000          39,000          
4310 Daycare Center Permits 2,515                  2,000            3,000            3,000           
4312 Health Permits 83,645                88,000          88,000          89,550          
4314 Sign Permits 20,550                26,000          17,000          26,000          
4288 Beverage Permits 6,480                  10,000          10,000          10,000          
4320 Miscellaneous Permits 47,543                41,000          51,000          45,000          

Total Permits 1,276,000           1,069,000     1,122,000     1,102,550     

4400 Court Fines 514,590              500,000        500,000        500,000        
4402 Court Fees 147,408              165,000        165,000        165,000        
4404 Warrant Fees 88,164                90,000          90,000          90,000          
4406 Court Deferral Fees 308,552              285,000        285,000        285,000        
4408 Animal Registration Fees 6,116                  7,000            7,000            7,000           
4414 Alarm Fees and Fines 53,601                45,000          45,000          45,000          

Total Municipal Court 1,118,431           1,092,000     1,092,000     1,092,000     

4001 Interest Earnings 44,697                25,000          35,500          35,500          
4007 Sale of Supplies 888                    500               900               500              
4010 Auction/Scrap Proceeds 42,508                40,000          40,000          40,000          
4019 Miscellaneous 26,623                20,000          28,000          20,000          
4480 Tower Leases 45,760                70,000          51,000          51,000          
4680 Developer Contributions -                     77,000          77,000          104,000        

Total Miscellaneous 160,476              232,500        232,400        251,000        

4500 Grant Proceeds 76,841                66,000          66,000          86,000          
4510 School Patrol 328,436              346,850        346,850        405,000        
4520 County Contracts 1,680                  1,000            1,000            1,000           
4530 City Contracts 319,990              350,200        350,200        394,150        

Total Intergovernmental 726,947              764,050        764,050        886,150        

Total Revenues 31,022,838         31,589,800    32,628,200    34,044,150   

 01-3241
241



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

Other Financing Sources

          Operating Transfers In:
From Water & Sewer -               -               -               -               
From Recreational Development 60,000          60,000          -               -               
From Court Security/Tech Fees 30,500          30,500          30,500         25,000          
From Recycling Fund -               -               -               33,000          
From Seized Funds -               -               -               208,500        
From Siren Fund -               -               -               25,000          

Total Other Financing Sources 90,500          90,500          30,500         291,500        

Other Financing Uses

          Operating Transfers Out:
To Rec. Dev. Fund -               -               168,600       -               
To Radio Fund 160,000        160,000        160,000       640,000        
To Airport Fund 15,000          15,000          15,000         30,000          
To Employee Benefit Fund (Ins.) 2,300,000     2,500,000     2,500,000     2,500,000     
To Workers Compensation Fund 50,000          75,000          110,000       150,000        
To Vehicle Replacement Fund -               -               -               100,000        
To Tech. Replacement Fund 157,000        157,000        157,000       175,000        

Total Other Financing Uses 2,682,000     2,907,000     3,110,600     3,595,000     

Less Capital Reserve -               -               -               470,000        

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (2,591,500)    (2,816,500)    (3,080,100)    (2,833,500)    

SUMMARY OF OPERATING TRANSFERS

 01-4242
242



City of Rockwall 2016 - 2017 Proposed Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Dept. Div. 14-15 15-16 15-16 16-17

10 01 Mayor/Council 116,569         117,450         118,950           124,450        
10 05 Administration 1,729,290      1,811,150       1,811,150        1,883,350     
10 06 Administrative Services 546,866         555,100         480,100           563,150        
10 09 Internal Operations 1,726,056      1,829,650       1,814,650        2,103,000     
15 11 Finance 623,300         734,700         655,700           745,100        
15 15 Municipal Court 396,406         437,600         418,600           468,400        
20 25 Fire Operations 2,738,689      3,355,300       3,322,300        3,371,800     
20 29 Fire Marshal 506,482         443,750         442,650           519,200        
30 31 Police Administration 1,143,087      996,700         995,700           1,440,650     
30 32 Communications 1,079,794      1,196,150       1,151,150        1,215,550     
30 33 Patrol 5,119,082      5,598,750       5,597,900        6,138,700     
30 34 CID 1,152,703      1,167,450       1,278,450        1,281,450     
30 35 Community Services 781,682         950,600         970,600           940,900        
30 36 Warrants 189,636         231,250         233,500           237,050        
30 37 Records 305,097         426,550         444,550           455,150        
40 41 Planning 636,101         606,750         584,850           733,150        
40 42 Neighborhood Improv. 410,194         517,850         518,050           532,950        
40 43 Building Inspections 678,365         727,650         735,650           749,600        
45 45 Parks 2,059,737      2,000,050       2,036,900        2,540,800     
45 46 Harbor O&M 398,557         395,650         434,150           499,900        
45 47 Recreation 785,010         831,850         859,850           914,200        
45 48 Animal Services 610,914         632,650         633,900           712,550        
50 53 Engineering 1,067,620      1,122,350       1,130,350        1,138,450     
50 59 Streets 2,458,017      3,326,650       3,706,300        3,595,200     

27,259,254     30,013,600     30,375,950      32,904,700   

Less Capital Reserve 900,921         1,203,000       2,029,750        1,621,150     

Total Operating Expenditures 26,358,333     28,810,600     28,346,200      31,283,550   

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES

 01-5243
243



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

244
244



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Tax Rate Adoption 
  

 
The Council agenda for Monday September 19, 2016 includes the ordinance to adopt 

the Ad Valorem tax rate of 45.43 cents per one hundred dollars of assessed value.  Specific 
language in the motion is not required this year since we are adopting the Effective tax rate.  

 

245
245



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, LEVYING THE AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE YEAR 2016 AT A 
RATE OF $.4543 PER ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) ASSESSED 
VALUATION ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY AS OF JANUARY 1, 2016 TO PROVIDE REVENUES 
FOR THE PAYMENT OF CURRENT EXPENSES AND TO PROVIDE AN 
INTEREST AND SINKING FUND ON ALL OUTSTANDING DEBTS OF THE 
CITY; PROVIDING FOR DUE AND DELINQUENT DATES, TOGETHER WITH 
PENALTIES AND INTEREST; APPROVING THE 2016 TAX ROLL; 
PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS OF PERSONS OVER SIXTY-FIVE (65) 
YEARS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That there be and is hereby levied for the year 2016 on all taxable 

property, real, personal and mixed, situated within the limits of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and 
not exempt by the Constitution of the state and valid State Laws, a tax of $.4543 on each ONE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) assessed value of taxable property and shall be apportioned 
and distributed as follows: 
 

a. For the purpose of defraying the current expenses of municipal 
government of the City, a tax of $.2386 each ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($100.00) assessed value of all taxable property. 

 
b. For the purpose of creating a sinking fund to pay the interest and principal 

on all outstanding bonds of the City not otherwise provided for, a tax of 
$.2157 each ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) assessed value of all 
taxable property, within the city which shall be applied to the payment of 
such interest and maturities of all outstanding bonds. 

 
Section 2. That all ad valorem taxes shall become due and payable on October 1, 

2016, and all ad valorem taxes for the year shall become delinquent after January 31, 2017.  If 
any person fails to pay the ad valorem taxes on or before the 31st of January, 2017, the 
following penalties shall be payable thereon, to wit: 

 
During the month of February, six percent (6%); during the month of March, 
seven percent (7%); during the month of April, eight percent (8%); during the 
month of May, nine percent (9%); during the month of June, ten percent (10%); 
and on or after the first day of July, twelve percent (12%). 
 
Section 3. Taxes are payable in Rockwall, Texas, at the office of the designated Tax 

Collector.  The City shall have available all rights and remedies provided by law for the 
enforcement of the collection of taxes levied under this ordinance. 

 
Section 4. All delinquent taxes shall bear the maximum rate of interest per annum as 

provided by law, in addition to the penalties provided herein. 

246
246



 
Section 5. All taxes for the year 2016 which remain delinquent on July 1, 2017 shall 

incur an additional penalty of twenty percent (20%) of the amount of taxes, penalty and interest 
due to defray cost of collection. 
 

Section 6. That pursuant to Article VIII-1b of the Constitution of Texas, $60,000 of 
the appraised value of residence homesteads of any married or unmarried persons, including 
those living alone, who were sixty-five (65) years of age or older on January 1, 2005, shall be 
exempt from ad valorem taxes. 
 

Section 7. This ordinance is enacted in order to authorize the collection of ad 
valorem taxes for the year 2016 and shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 

TEXAS, this 19th day of September, 2016. 
 
 
 
   
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
  
Kristy Ashberry, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Frank Garza, City Attorney 
 
 

247
247



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

248
248



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
DATE: September 9, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendations re: appointments to the Youth Advisory Council (YAC) 
  
 
This year, applications for YAC were solicited via our website and social media pages, word-of-
mouth, and by reaching out to a few teachers.  An interview panel consisting of myself, 
Councilmembers White and Fowler (YAC liaisons), and two existing YAC students (Caleb Davis 
and Bethany Villalobos) conducted interviews with the fifteen (15) applicants on Thursday, 
September. 8. The panel is recommending that the following students be considered by the City 
Council for appointment to the 2016-17 Youth Advisory Council: 
 

1 Re-appointment Sophomore (HmSch) Caleb Davis 
2 Re-appointment Junior (RHS) Bethany Villalobos 

3 Re-appointment Senior (RHS) Reid Rakow 

4 NEW appointment Freshman (HmSch) Mary Claire Weible 
5 NEW appointment Senior (HmSch) Kelsey Franks 

6 NEW appointment Junior (HCA) Jonathan Naylor 

7 NEW appointment  Junior (RHS) Thomas Milder 
8 NEW appointment  Sophomore (RHS) Emily Williams 

9 NEW appointment Junior (RHS) Molly Kate Evans 

10 NEW appointment Junior (RHS) Aidan Culp 
11 NEW appointment Sophomore (RHS) Emily Henry 

12 NEW appointment Senior (RHHS) Christian Giadolor 

13 NEW appointment Sophomore (RHS) Natalie Newhouse 
 
Please know that Caleb Davis is a Fate resident, and the City of Fate has agreed to financially 
sponsor Caleb’s participation for the 2016-17 school year (at $250.00).  Also, Christian Giadolor 
is a McLendon Chisholm resident, and his city manager has also given indication that 
McLendon Chisholm is willing to sponsor Christian to participate (also at $250.00).  I am happy 
to answer any questions the council may have and provide additional information on any of the 
applicants if the Council so desires. 

249
249



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

250
250



251
251



252
252



253
253



254
254



255
255



256
256



257
257



258
258



259
259



260
260



261
261



262
262



263
263



264
264



265
265



266
266



267
267



268
268



269
269



270
270



271
271



272
272



273
273



274
274



275
275



276
276



277
277



278
278



279
279



280
280



281
281



282
282



283
283



284
284



285
285



286
286



287
287



288
288



289
289



290
290



291
291



292
292



293
293



294
294



295
295



296
296



297
297



298
298



299
299



300
300



301
301



302
302



303
303



304
304



305
305



306
306



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

307
307


	Agenda
	Presentation of the Building Officials Association of Texas Award for Excellence in Code Enforcement
	Staff memo
	Blank page

	Consider approval of the minutes from the Tuesday, September 6, 2016 regular city council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	Minutes 9-6-16
	Blank Page

	Consider approval of the 16-inch Water line Relocation FM 3097 (Horizon Road) and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with  Four Star Excavating, Inc. of Dallas, Texas in the amount of $80,916 to be reimbursed by TxDOT up to 90% and the remainder to be funded by the 2016 Water & Sewer Bonds, and take any action necessary.
	Memo
	Recommendation Letter
	Bid Tabulation
	Qualifications
	Form 1295
	blank page

	P2016-038 - Consider a request by Billy & Autumn Quinton for the approval of a final plat of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Autumn Addition being a replat of a 0.35-acre tract of land identified as Lot 120, Block F of the B. F. Boydstun Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 601 E. Rusk Street, and take any action necessary.

	P2016-038
	blank page

	P2016-039 - Consider a request by Jay Maddox of Maddox Survey on behalf of Casey & Andrea Burke for the approval of a final plat of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Burke Addition being a 2.970-acre tract of land identified as Tract 19 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1406 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary.

	P2016-039
	blank page

	Z2016-026 - Consider a request by Jason Lentz of Atticus Rockwall, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a PD Development Plan establishing 36 townhouses on a 3.462-acre portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land identified as Lots 3A, 4A & 5A, Isaac Brown Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-32), situated within the Residential Subdistrict and within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, located north of the intersection of Ridge Road [FM-740] and Glen Hill Way, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	Ord_2nd reading
	Blank Page

	Consider approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 18. Fire Prevention and Protection, Article II. Fire Code Standards, Section 18-34. Plan Review Fee, authorizing the Office of the Fire Marshal to assess fees for fire permits, construction and operational services, inspections, third party reviews, and miscellaneous fees, and take any action necessary.  (2nd reading)
	Ord 2nd reading (fire plan fees)
	Blank Page

	Consider approval of the engineering services contract with Hydrological Support Services, LLC to perform flood study reviews for developments within the City in an amount not to exceed $40,000. Funding provided from the FY 2016-17 Engineering Department Operations Budget and developer reimbursement and take any action necessary
	City Manager Memo
	Professional Services Contract
	blank page

	Consider approval of one year renewal of Yellowjacket Ball fields Facility Use Agreement between Lake Pointe Church and The City and take any necessary.
	Memo
	Lake Pointe Request Letter
	Lake Pointe Agreement
	blank page

	Z2016-023 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kevin Dale Wommack & Pamela McCollum for the approval of an ordinance amending Specific Use Permit (SUP) No. S-118 [Ordinance No. 14-02] to allow for an accessory building that exceeds the maximum size requirements as stipulated by Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code for a 1.4952-acre tract of land identified as Lot 17, Block B, Sterling Farms Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District, addressed as 1970 Copper Ridge Circle, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	Z2016-023
	blank page

	Z2016-025 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jason Lentz of Atticus Rockwall, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a PD Development Plan establishing a 228 unit, condo development situated on a 3.453-acre portion of a larger 6.915-acre tract of land identified as Lots 3A, 4A & 5A, Isaac Brown Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-32), situated within the Interior Subdistrict, located adjacent to Summer Lee Drive southwest of the intersection of Horizon Road [FM-3097] and Summer Lee Drive, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	Z2016-025
	blank page

	Z2016-028 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Susan Gamez for the approval of an ordinance for a zoning change from an Agricultural (AG) District to Residential Office (RO) District on a 0.478-acre tract of land identified as Tract 7 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 2001 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

	Z2016-028
	blank page

	Z2016-029 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jimmy Strohmeyer of Strohmeyer Architects on behalf of D. W. Bobst of J-BR2, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a retail store with more than 2 gasoline dispensers on a 2.59-acre tract of land being a portion of a larger 7.32-acre tract of land identified as Tract 17-12 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail (GR) District, situated at the southwest corner of the intersection of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] and FM-549, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

	Z2016-029
	blank page

	Discuss and consider the City of Rockwall's participation in a Back the Blue event to be held on October 27, 2016 and take any action necessary. 

	Memo re Mobile Restroom Trailer for Back the Blue Event
	blank page

	SP2016-016 - Discuss and consider a request by Tim Seymore of Seymore Custom Homes, LLC on behalf of James & Robin Meade for the approval of an exception to the masonry requirements and a variance to the parking standards as stipulated by the Unified Development Code in conjunction with an approved site plan for a commercial/industrial building on an existing 2.02-acre commercial/industrial facility identified as Tract 2-22 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) District, addressed as 496 National Drive, and take any action necessary.  

	SP2016-016
	blank page

	SP2016-017 - Discuss and consider a request by Rex Walker of Life Springs Church for the approval of a variance to the horizontal articulation requirements in conjunction with an amended site plan for a church facility on a seven (7) acre portion of a larger 28.881-acre tract of land identified as Tract 15-01 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Corridor Overlay (SH 205 BY-OV) District, located on the north side of John King Boulevard east of the intersection of John King Boulevard and SH-205, and take any action necessary.

	SP2016-017
	blank page

	Discuss and consider a request from Suntex RHCL Marina to Assign the Concession Agreement for the marina at Chandlers Landing to Ray Hubbard SMI, LLC and take any action necessary
	Memo re Consent to Assign Suntex RHCL Marina to Ray Hubbard SMI
	DOCS1-#245089-v1-Suntex_Rockwall_(Consent_to_Assignment)
	blank page

	Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) budget for fiscal year 2017 and amended budget for fiscal year 2016, and take any action necessary.
	REDC staff memo
	REDC budget worksheets
	blank page

	Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Technology Park Association budget for fiscal year 2017 and amended budget for fiscal year 2016, and take any action necessary.
	RTPA staff memo
	RTPA budget worksheets
	blank page

	Discuss and consider the Hotel Tax Subcommittee recommendations for  funding allocations in fiscal year 2017, including authorizing the City Manager to execute associated funding agreements, and take any action necessary.
	Subcommittee Memo
	Subcommittee recommendations spreadsheet
	blank page

	Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance amending the budget for fiscal year 2016, and take any action necessary.
	Staff memo
	Amending Ordinance
	blank page

	Discuss and consider the proposed budget for fiscal year 2017 and approval of an ordinance adopting the proposed budget, and take any action necessary.
	Staff memo
	Adopting Ordinance
	General Fund worksheets
	blank page

	Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance levying ad valorem taxes for the tax year 2016, and take any action necessary.
	Staff memo
	Tax rate ordinance
	blank page

	Discuss and consider appointments to the city's Youth Advisory Council (YAC) for the 2016-17 school year, and take any action necessary.
	Memo_YAC appt. recommendations
	Blank Page

	Discuss and consider an amendment to the Fixed Base Operator / Airport Management Agreement with Todd Parks of Texas Air Center and take any necessary action.
	FBO Amendment
	Original Contract
	blank page




